
*non voting advisory member 
 
 
 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
 

 
Ian Walton 
247 4350 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

A 

 

 
 
 
 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Wednesday, 16th April, 2008 at 1.00 pm 

 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

Councillors 
 

A Carter (Chair) 
R Brett 
J L Carter 
S Golton 
R Harker 
P Harrand 
J Procter 
S Smith 
 

K Wakefield 
J Blake * 
 

R Finnigan 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



B 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

The reason for confidentiality or exemption is stated on the agenda and on each of the reports in 
terms of Access to Information Procedure Rules 9.2 or 10.4(1) to (7). The number or numbers 
stated in the agenda and reports correspond to the reasons for exemption / confidentiality below: 
 
9.0  Confidential information – requirement to exclude public access 
9.1 The public must be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature of 

the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that confidential 
information would be disclosed. Likewise, public access to reports, background papers, 
and minutes will also be excluded. 

 

9.2 Confidential information means 
(a)  information given to the Council by a Government Department on terms which 

forbid its public disclosure or  
(b)  information the disclosure of which to the public is prohibited by or under another 

Act or by Court Order. Generally personal information which identifies an 
individual, must not be disclosed under the data protection and human rights 
rules.  

 

10.0 Exempt information – discretion to exclude public access 
10. 1 The public may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature of 

the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that exempt information 
would be disclosed provided: 
(a) the meeting resolves so to exclude the public, and that resolution identifies the 

proceedings or part of the proceedings to which it applies, and 
(b) that resolution states by reference to the descriptions in Schedule 12A to the 

Local Government Act 1972 (paragraph 10.4 below) the description of the 
exempt information giving rise to the exclusion of the public. 

(c) that resolution states, by reference to reasons given in a relevant report or 
otherwise, in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.  

 

10.2 In these circumstances, public access to reports, background papers and minutes will 
also be excluded.  
 

10.3 Where the meeting will determine any person’s civil rights or obligations, or adversely 
affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 establishes a 
presumption that the meeting will be held in public unless a private hearing is necessary 
for one of the reasons specified in Article 6. 
 

10. 4 Exempt information means information falling within the following categories (subject to 
any condition): 
1 Information relating to any individual 
2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
3  Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 

(including the authority holding that information). 
4 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising 
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or officer-
holders under the authority. 

5 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 
maintained in legal proceedings. 

6 Information which reveals that the authority proposes – 
(a)  to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which 

requirements are imposed on a person; or 
(b)  to make an order or direction under any enactment 

7 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime 

 

 



 

C 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded) 
 

 

2   
 

  

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes) 
 

 



 

D 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of those parts of the agenda 
designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information. 

 
 
 

 

4   
 

  

  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81(3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 

 

5   
 

  

  MINUTES 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 12th March 2008. 
 

1 - 8 

   CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 
 

 



 

E 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

6   
 

K 

 10.4(3) 
(Appendix 
2 only) 

ICT "APPLICATIONS INFRASTRUCTURE" 
 
To consider the report of the Director of Resources 
on a proposed ICT Software Applications 
Infrastructure (AI) strategy and associated 
governance arrangements and a proposed 
strategic partnership with Microsoft for the future 
provision, development and deployment of the AI 
components.  
Appendix 2 to this report is designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 
10.4(3). 
 
 

9 - 20 

7   
 

  

  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY SCHEME 2008-2011 
 
To consider the report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement) on a 
proposed new single Equality and Diversity 
Scheme incorporating the Council’s race, disability 
and gender equality schemes .  
 

21 - 
110 

8   
 

  

  PPP/PFI 6 MONTHLY UPDATE REPORT 
 
To consider the report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive providing a 6 monthly  update on 
progress of the authority’s PPP and PFI projects 
and implementation of the governance framework. 
 

111 - 
124 

9   
 

  

  ACCESS TO COUNSEL'S OPINION 
 
To consider the report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Corporate Governance) in response to 
recommendation 2 in relation to the availability of 
Counsel’s advice to the public as contained in the 
report of the Scrutiny Board (Culture and Leisure) 
in regard to their enquiry into the decision of this 
Board to erect fencing at Wharfemeadows park, 
Otley.   
 

125 - 
126 

   DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 
 

 



 

F 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

10   
 

  

Beeston and 
Holbeck 

10.4(3) 
(Appendix 
only) 

PROPOSED ASSEMBLY OF LAND AT ELLAND 
ROAD, LEEDS 
 
To consider the report of the Chief Asset 
Management Officer outlining the range of 
development and regeneration opportunities at 
Elland Road, and on a proposal to enter into 
negotiations for the acquisition of land at Elland 
Road by agreement and, in principal, the use of 
Compulsory Purchase Powers if the acquisition by 
agreement is not successful.   
Appended to the report is exempt information 
designated as such under Access to Information 
Procedure Rule 10.4(3). 
 

127 - 
142 

   NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 
 

 

11   
 

  

  SAFER LEEDS PARTNERSHIP PLAN 
 
To consider the report of the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods seeking approval 
of the Safer Leeds Partnership Plan which sets out 
the strategic outcomes and annual improvement 
priorities and activities for the next three years. 

 

143 - 
168 

12   
 

  

  COUNCIL HOUSE BUILDING 
 
To consider the report of the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods providing an 
update on the progress made in developing 
options for building council houses in line with the 
recommendations made by the December 2007 
Executive Board. 
 

169 - 
174 

   CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 
 

 



 

G 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

13   
 

  

  STRATEGIES TO ADDRESS COMPARATIVE 
UNDERACHIEVEMENT IN LEEDS SCHOOLS 
 
To consider the report of the Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds summarising the strategies 
employed to target underachieving young people 
and schools in Leeds, so that the gap in 
achievement between the most and least 
successful groups is narrowed. 
 

175 - 
184 

14   
 

  

  ACADEMY PROTOCOLS 
 
To consider the report of the Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds on the outcome of consultation 
on the Academy Protocols proposed to inform the 
City Council’s response to requests to establish 
academies in Leeds and on the proposed 
development of a corresponding memorandum of 
understanding to be signed by prospective 
sponsors, the DCSF and the local authority.  
 

185 - 
204 

15   
 

  

Bramley and 
Stanningley 

 EXPRESSION OF INTEREST TO ESTABLISH 
AN ACADEMY TO SERVE THE BRAMLEY 
AREA 
 
To consider the report of the Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds on a proposal to progress an 
expression of interest into a detailed feasibility and 
consultation process that will allow a full 
examination of the issues surrounding the 
establishment of an academy to serve the Bramley 
area in inner West Leeds.  
 

205 - 
210 

16   
 

  

 10.4(5) 
(Appendix 
1 only) 

SCHOOL ADMISSION APPEALS CODE 
 
To consider the report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Corporate Governance) on the potential 
to challenge the paragraphs within the School 
Admissions Appeals Code which currently limit the 
ability of elected Members to represent or act as 
witnesses for parents who appear before school 
admission appeals panels. 
Appendix 1 to this report is designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 
10.4(5). 
 

211 - 
214 



 

H 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

   LEISURE 
 
 

 

17   
 

  

  ROUNDHAY MANSION - PROGRESS UPDATE 
 
To consider the report of the Director of City 
Development providing an update on progress with 
the letting of the Roundhay Mansion as a 
Restaurant/Function facility and on the proposed 
evaluation methodology to be used to evaluate 
bids. 
 
 

215 - 
218 

 

     

     



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 16th April, 2008 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 12TH MARCH, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor A Carter in the Chair 

 Councillors R Brett, R Finnigan, S Golton, 
R Harker, P Harrand, J Procter, S Smith, 
K Wakefield and J Blake 
 
Councillor Blake – Non-voting Advisory Member 
 

 
 

188 Exclusion of Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated exempt on the 
grounds that it is likely, in the view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so 
designated as follows: 
 
(a) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 197 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
this information is not publicly available from the statutory registers of 
information kept in respect of certain companies and charities.  It is 
considered that since this information will be obtained through inviting 
of best and final offers for the property/land then it is not in the public 
interest to disclose this information at this point in time and will affect 
the integrity of disposing of property/land by this process.  Also it is 
considered that the release of such information would or would be 
likely to prejudice the Council’s commercial interests in relation to other 
similar transactions in that prospective purchasers of other similar 
properties would be informed about the nature and level of offers which 
may prove acceptable to the Council.  It is considered that whilst there 
may be a public interest in disclosure, much of this information will be 
publicly available from the Land Registry following completion of this 
transaction and consequently the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing this information at 
this point in time. 

 
(b) Appendices 1 and 3 to the report referred to in minute 198 under the 

terms of Access to Information Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
publication could prejudice the Council’s commercial interests as they 
include financial information relating to land and property that if 
published could influence negotiations between the Council and private 
property owners.  In these circumstances it is considered that the 
public interest in not disclosing this commercial information outweighs 
the interests of disclosure. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 16th April, 2008 

 

(c) Appendix 5 to the report referred to in minute 202, which was circulated 
at the meeting under the terms of Council Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and 
on the grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption in 
relation to the appendix outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information by reason of the commercially sensitive information 
concerning the individual site values contained therein. 

 
(d) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 204 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 4 and on the grounds that 
publication could prejudice the City Council’s commercial interests as it 
includes financial information relating to land and property. 

 
189 Late Items  

There were no late items but supplementary/revised information provided 
since the despatch of the agenda was noted as follows: 
 
Minute 194 - Supplementary information submitted by the Relate charity 
 
Minute 198 - A revised report circulated on 5th March 2008 
 
Minute 199 - A revised covering report circulated at the meeting 
 

190 Declaration of Interests  
Councillor Blake declared a personal interest in the item relating to ‘Joint 
Service Centres’ (Minute 200) due to her position as Non-Executive Director 
of Leeds North West Primary Care Trust. 
 
Councillor Smith declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the item 
relating to a deputation to Council entitled ‘Members of Relate regarding the 
Organisation’s Funding’ (Minute 194) as he had a client organisation 
operating a similar enterprise to Relate. 
 

191 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 8th February 2008 be 
approved. 
 
 

192 Matters Arising from the Minutes  
Inquiry into River Safety Management of Wharfemeadows Park, Otley – 
Officer Observations (Minute 166 refers) 
 

 RESOLVED – That a report be submitted by the Assistant Chief Executive 
(Corporate Governance) to the April meeting of Executive Board on 
recommendation 2 of the Scrutiny Board (Culture and Leisure) report entitled 
‘River Safety Management at Wharfemeadows Park, Otley’, in relation to the 
availability of Counsel’s advice. 
 
Annual Standards Report _ Secondary (Minute 182 refers) 
 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 16th April, 2008 

 

 RESOLVED – That a report be submitted by the Chief Executive of Education 
Leeds to the April meeting of Executive Board on the strategies being used to 
address identified areas of comparative under achievement in schools. 

 
 
LEISURE 
 

193 Deputation to Council - Tinshill Recreation De-fence Group regarding 
use of permitted development to fence off green space including Tinshill 
Recreation Ground  
The Director of City Development submitted a report responding to each of 
the issues raised by the deputation from Tinshill Recreation De-Fence Group 
to full Council on 16th January 2008. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
(Under the provision of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he voted against the decisions taken in this 
minute). 
 
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

194 Deputation to Council - Members of Relate Regarding the Organisation's 
Funding  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report responding to the 
deputation from representatives of the charity Relate to full Council on 16th 
January 2008.  Supplementary information submitted by the charity was 
circulated at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the request for a recurring grant payment of £23,000 be 
not supported by Adult or Children’s social care services and that it be noted 
that officers have provided advice to the Relate organisation in relation to 
other sources of funding that they might access to support their work.   
 
(Having declared a personal and prejudicial interest,  Councillor Smith left the 
meeting during the consideration of this matter). 
 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he voted against the decisions taken in this 
minute). 
 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

195 Deputation to Council- Local Residents Requesting the Council to 
Purchase Sports Facilities at Leeds Girls High School for use by Primary 
Schools and the Local Community  
The Director of City Development submitted a report in relation to the 
deputation from local residents to full Council on 16th January 2008. 
 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 16th April, 2008 

 

RESOLVED – That the interim response as contained in the report be noted 
and that a further report be brought back to this Board on the feasibility of 
bringing some or all of the playing pitches and sports facilities into public 
ownership. 
 

196 Deputation to Council - Headingley Network Regarding the Future Use of 
the Elinor Lupton Centre  
The Director of City Development submitted a report in response to the 
deputation from Headingley Network to full Council on 16th January 2008. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
LEISURE 
 

197 Stage 1 Application for Parks for People Heritage Lottery Funding for 
Middleton Park  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the proposed 
submission of a Stage 1 Parks for People Programme Heritage Lottery Fund 
application for a Middleton Park restoration scheme with the support of 
Wade’s Charity; the match funding for the scheme to be provided by the 
Council’s surrender of its leasehold interest in 218 and 220 Middleton Town 
Street and adjoining land and the subsequent sale of the freehold in the 
properties by Wade’s Charity. 
 
Members noted that the restoration scheme would deliver a maximum of 
£1.65 million of capital investment into Middleton Park, rather than the £1.4 
million as detailed within the report. 
 
Following consideration of appendix 1 to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which was considered in 
private at the conclusion of the meeting it was  
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given to the proposal to submit a Stage 1 application 

to the Heritage Lottery Fund, with support from Wade’s charity, to 
restore Middleton Park and that the Acting Chief Recreation Officer be 
authorised to sign off the application on the Council’s behalf. 

(b) That approval be given to the surrender of the leases of 218 and 220 
Middleton Town Street to Wade’s Charity to facilitate the sale and 
subsequent use of the proceeds as match funding for the restoration 
project which will deliver up to £1,650,000 of capital investment into 
Middleton Park. 

 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

198 Roundhay Road Relocation Project  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the proposed 
allocation of funding equal to the full capital receipt and service budget from 
Roundhay Road, in order to support the relocation costs of all the teams and 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 16th April, 2008 

 

services from the site, and on the proposed injection of funds into the capital 
programme to enable the identified schemes to progress. 
 
Following consideration of appendices 1 and 3 to the report designated as 
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which were 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the relocation proposals set out in appendix 1 to the report be 

approved, particularly in respect of the Mental Health Day Centre and 
Community Alternatives Team and office facility for Area Teams. 

(b) That funds equal to the capital receipt from Roundhay Road be used to 
support the capital requirements of the Social Care Services 
relocations, plus site disposal costs and resource costs. 

(c) That approval be given to the injection of £3,298,500 into the capital 
programme for acquisition of Digital/Dunbar, refurbishment of Lovall 
Park plus the other identified schemes in appendix 1 to the report  plus 
associated site and project costs. 

(d) That authority to spend as indicated in appendix 1 to the report be 
given for the acquisition and fit out of Digital and Dunbar Houses 
subject to a satisfactory evaluation and mitigation of identified risk by 
the Director of City Development. 

(e) That in the event that the purchase of Digital and Dunbar Houses does 
not proceed, authority to spend an equivalent sum on alternative office 
accommodation be given subject to consultations between the 
Directors of City Development and Adult Social Care and the relevant 
Executive Members. 

(f) That the current revenue budget for Roundhay Road be retained within 
the service to meet relocation revenue requirements. 

(g) That a planning brief and marketing strategy be drawn up in 
preparation for the site disposal. 

(h) That the Director of Adult Social Services provides updates to 
Members of the Board on the risk assessments currently being 
undertaken through the Environment Agency with regard to the 
potential issue of flooding on the Sheepscar site. 

 
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

199 Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-2011  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted 
a report on the development, approach and broad content of the Leeds 
Strategic Plan 2008-2011 and presenting the text of the plan prior to 
negotiations with central government concerning priorities for improvement in 
Leeds.  A revised version of the report was circulated at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the text of the Leeds Strategic Plan, attached as 
appendix 1 to the report, be endorsed. 
 

200 Joint Service Centres - Approval to Proceed to LIFT Stage 2 for Joint 
Service Centres at Chapeltown and Harehills  

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 16th April, 2008 

 

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on a 
package of proposals from Leeds’ Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) to 
develop two joint service centres to be constructed at Chapeltown and 
Harehills. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the Offer as prepared by Leeds Lift Limited be accepted and that 

the Deputy Chief Executive be authorised to formally accept that offer 
on behalf of the Council. 

(b) That the Deputy Chief Executive be authorised to submit the Offer to 
the Leeds Lift Strategic Partnering Board for Stage 1 Approval under 
the LIFT process. 

(c) That the Joint Service Centre Project Board be authorised to take the 
procurement of the project forward. 

 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

201 Town and District Centres Parking Strategy and Priorities  
The Director of City Development submitted a report summarising the findings 
from the town and district parking strategy overview studies previously 
approved by Executive Board and setting out proposals for taking the parking 
strategy development work to the next stage of targeting priorities for detailed 
strategy development and for consultation with Ward Members and local 
communities. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(a) That approval be given to the continued development of the parking 

strategy programme focusing on the centres described in sections 3.7 
and 3.8 of the submitted report (Appendix 3) and to further consultation 
with Ward Members on the outcomes of the study and future priorities 
including those not specifically referred in this decision. 

 
(b) That a further report be brought to this Board on proposals for the 

implementation of the programme. 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

202 Regional Housing Board Funded Clearance Sites and Their Inclusion in 
the Strategic Affordable Housing Partnership  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on a 
proposal to incorporate the Regional Housing Board funded clearance sites 
into the pool of Council owned land which has been set aside for the 
development of affordable housing via the Strategic Affordable Housing 
Partnership. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix 5 to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure rule 10.4 (3) which was circulated and 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was  
 

Page 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 16th April, 2008 

 

RESOLVED – That the Regional Housing Board funded clearance sites, as 
outlined in paragraph 2.2 and in appendix 5 of the submitted report, be 
transferred to the Affordable Housing Strategic Partnership for the purpose of 
developing affordable housing schemes in these locations, subject to land 
swap arrangements for the Stanley Road site from the affordable housing 
land bank to enable a contribution of equivalent value to the capital 
programme within 2009/10. 
 

203 Development and Hardware Costs for the Housing ICT Project  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on a 
proposal to allocate £1,150,000 to complete Phase 2 of the Housing IT 
Project, as outlined within the report. 
 
RESOLVED – That approval be given for the injection of £1,150,000 of 
unsupported borrowing into the Environment and Neighbourhoods HRA 
Capital Programme and that expenditure in the same amount be authorised 
for the scheme. 
 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

204 Fountain Primary School - Rationalisation onto One Site  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on a proposal to 
ringfence all of the capital receipt received from the sale of Fountain Primary 
School Annex, in order to invest in a scheme to rationalise the 
accommodation at Fountain Primary School onto one site. 
 
Following consideration of the appendix to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which was considered in 
private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given for 100% of the capital receipt arising from the 

sale of Fountain Primary School Annex (formerly Cross Hall Infant 
School) to be invested in Fountain Primary; 

(b) That the design proposals in respect of Phase Two of the scheme to 
rationalise the school onto one site by providing an extension to the 
former Junior building be approved. 

(c) That expenditure of £1,844,300 from capital scheme 14095 EXT be 
authorised 

(d) That the incurred expenditure against this scheme be reimbursed from 
the realisation of a future capital receipt from the sale of the former 
Cross Hall Infant School site, to be injected into the Education Capital 
Programme for reinvestment in the Education estate. 

 
205 Prescribed Alteration and Change of Lower Age Range of Hollybush 

Primary School  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report on a proposal to 
publish a statutory notice to formally alter the lower age limit for which 
education services are provided at Hollybush Primary School, in order to 

Page 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 16th April, 2008 

 

facilitate the delivery of children’s centre and extended school services on 
these sites. 
 
RESOLVED – That approval be given for the publication of statutory notices 
to alter the lower age limit for Hollybush Primary School from 3 to 11 years of 
age to 4 to 11 years of age and that the provision on site by Early Years of a 
children’s centre for children aged 0 to 4 be noted. 
 

206 Annual Consultation on Admission Arrangements for 2009/2010  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report outlining the 
proposed key changes to the Local Authority Admission Policy for the 
2009/2010 academic year. 
 
RESOLVED – That the following proposals be approved for implementation in 
the 2009 admission round: 
 

• Primary and secondary school co-ordinated admission arrangements. 

• Changing the sibling link criterion when the older child is in the sixth 
form in accordance with paragraph 3.5 of the report. 

• Asking academies and foundation schools to adopt the ‘nearest’ criteria 
within their policies. 

• Asking parents to confirm acceptance of the offer of a school place. 

• Giving priority to pupils in the infant schools when transferring to their 
linked junior school. 

• Changes to school admission numbers 
Barwick in Elmet CE Primary  25 to 30 
Swillington Primary   40 to 30 
Haigh Road Infants   60 to 45 
Guiseley Infant   80 to 90 
Mill Field Primary   45 to 30 
Farnley Park High   150 to 210 
Roundhay High   240 to 250 
 

 
DATE OF PUBLICATION   -  14TH MARCH 2008 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN -  27TH MARCH 2008 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items Called In by 12.00 noon on 
Friday 28th March 2008). 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

 
 
 
 
Report of the Director of Resources 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date:  16th April 2008 
 
Subject:  Applications Infrastructure (software) for the Council 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report recommends that following a period of approved negotiation, the Council extends 
its existing agreement with Microsoft to establish a strategic framework contract with them 
and where appropriate their partners for the supply and implementation of software – 
‘Applications Infrastructure’ (AI). 
 
New ICT investment will be necessary as part of the business programmes of work to deliver 
the priorities of the Council over the next five to ten years. The AI will provide the flexible 
framework through which this investment in technology can be made.  We will achieve 
increased value for money from our future ICT investments through the better utlilsation of 
common AI components and through ICT staff who will be skilled in fewer technologies.   
 
This in turn will give the Council, from an ICT perspective, the capability to meet its ‘One 
Council’ transformation agenda in an efficient and effective way.  In the past this Applications 
Infrastructure has been developed piecemeal and this has resulted in technologies that do 
not necessarily interoperate or integrate effectively.  This Microsoft framework arrangement 
will enable technologies to be acquired on a business case by business case basis that do 
interoperate more efficiently and effectively, reducing our ICT integration and support costs 
and hence our total cost of ownership. 

 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator: Dylan 
Roberts 

Tel: 0113 272272 

 

 

 

X  

Appendix 2 is Not For Publication - exempt under the terms of Access to Information 

Procedure Rule 10.4 (3). 

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



Page 2 

1.0 Purpose Of This Report 

1.1 For Executive Board to endorse the ICT Software Applications Infrastructure (AI) 
strategy and associated governance arrangements. 

1.2 To gain approval to enter into a strategic partnership with Microsoft for the future 
provision of the AI components and the development and deployment of these. 

2.0   Background Information 

2.1 As a Council we are continually being driven to enhance the value of services we 
offer.  The Leeds Strategic Priorities and the Business Plan inform Leeds City 
Council’s Corporate ICT Services of the need to enable the delivery of new strategic 
capabilities. These will use information and technology to enhance the way citizens 
are served, in particular by taking a more holistic view of information and business 
processes, not just across the services of Leeds City Council (LCC) but also in 
joining up across agencies and other partners at a local level.  

2.2 As the ‘One Council’ programme is rolled out across the organisation with services, 
processes and information being aligned, so there is a need for the ICT elements to 
do the same. The Council currently has a large number of separate software 
application technologies from many suppliers, and there are a number of business 
cases e.g. Document and Records Management, Collaboration, Business 
Intelligence etc. currently under production that will require the procurement of more 
still.  In order to deliver the better services agenda outlined above, it is clear that 
there will need to be a high level of integration and interoperability between these 
technologies. However, if we continue as we are, these multiple separate 
technologies will require exponential support and increased integration effort that 
will result in higher total costs and long term sustainability issues. Therefore, there is 
a very compelling requirement to consolidate (reduce) the range of technologies 
used down to fewer from fewer suppliers.   
 

2.3 The technologies where there are strong inter dependencies and a strong need for 
interoperability have been grouped into seven domains that make up what 
Corporate ICT Services are calling the ‘One Council’ Applications Infrastructure (AI). 
This is described in more detail in Appendix 1. This AI approach has been 
developed through rigorous research and advice from leading industry analysts 
(including the Gartner and Butler Groups) and consultation with the main AI vendors 
themselves. It has also concluded that we should partner strategically in order to 
design and build this AI.  
 

2.4 A comprehensive evaluation process was undertaken by ICT Services that 
considered the main vendor capabilities of delivering the AI. It is generally the view 
across the whole ICT community that there are only five main suppliers in the world 
capable of providing this AI – IBM, Oracle, Novell, SAP and Microsoft .  The 112 
page document ‘LCC ICT Technical Architecture Planning’ describes in detail the 
approach, scenarios and scoring for the evaluation.  The process concluded in 
Microsoft being invited to enter into formal negotiations (in full compliance with our 
Contract Procedure Rules) for the strategic provisioning of the AI – this being based 
primarily, but not exclusively on their own technologies. This is outlined in Appendix 
1 - which also describes what these technologies actually mean and how they add 
value in ‘business language’ terms.  Microsoft not only demonstrated the required 
level of technical capability but they also demonstrated ‘Best Value’ in terms of their 

Page 10



Page 3 

initial pricing proposals. 
 

2.5 The negotiations with Microsoft are in the final stages and it is recommended that 
subject to their satisfactory conclusion in early April 2008, that they are appointed as 
Leeds City Council’s strategic partner for delivery of the Applications Infrastructure 
(AI). This means that in future, there will be no individual procurements for separate 
AI components.  

 
3.0 What the Applications Infrastructure (AI) delivers  

3.1 The AI will deliver many benefits and innovative capabilities. Examples of some of 
these are detailed below: 
 

3.2 The AI provides the re-usable technology components needed to deliver the 
different priorities of the Council. Therefore, consistent unified components will be 
reused to underpin the new business processes. For example, ‘The Security 
Infrastructure Domain’ components (see Appendix 1) will manage the authentication 
and registration of people to Council services as well as for employees to access 
Council systems.  Many of these same security components will be used for a whole 
range of services from perhaps the complex process of checking identity and 
eligibility for Adult Social Care to the more routine signing up for a Leeds Card 
renewal. This is instead of having to procure or develop multiples of separate 
applications to meet these requirements. 
 

3.3 Through this new AI model, the Council will derive increased value from their ICT 
investments.  
 

3.4 Once the foundations for the AI are in place, this will increase the agility with which 
our organisation can change and importantly, the speed at which ICT will be able to 
deliver solutions.  
 

3.5 The AI will also provide the tools to integrate and automate processes and 
information across services. These areas are where there are usually break points 
and where the greatest efficiencies can be made. This is also where the greatest 
potential improvements to customer services can also be realised.  For example, as 
a possible future scenario, pensioners who are unaware that they are eligible for 
housing benefit could be automatically paid it.  This being enabled through 
Integration and Business Intelligence technologies working across LCC and with 
appropriate different agencies such as the DWP.  
 

3.6 Councillors and staff will be able to easily connect to people and knowledge across 
the organisation and with partners through new modern collaboration tools. Through 
the same method, also access the systems and the information they need to 
effectively carry out their jobs - any time and from any place. This will enable more 
flexible working arrangements and greater ability to deliver service in the localities. 
These will be the first components that we implement starting with the replacement 
of current e-mail, calendaring and other collaboration tools. 
 

3.7 The supporting hardware infrastructure that the AI will be hosted on will, through its 
intrinsic reusability have a significantly smaller carbon footprint than the multiple 
technology supplier equivalents. 
 

3.8 Failure to follow this strategic approach around the principles of the AI will result in 
LCC not having the capabilities to deliver its future priorities or meet the needs of 

Page 11



Page 4 

the people in the context of new government policy. The alternative approach of 
multiple separate “best of breed” technologies will result in significantly increased 
ICT costs, slower delivery times and ultimately fewer benefits for the Council. This is 
not a ‘Best Value’ approach. 

 
4.0 Why Microsoft 

4.1 There is very high intrinsic interoperability and integration between the Microsoft 
components in the AI. This has been independently verified by external experts – 
Gartner and Butler Group. 

4.2 There is good maturity alignment between Microsoft and Leeds City Council. That 
is, the plans and ambitions Microsoft have for their AI components and their use in 
government are aligned to where the Council is today and where it wants to be in 
the future 

4.3 Microsoft has a proven track record of delivering AI in many organisations across 
the world and also in the public sector. 

4.4 The Microsoft proposal provided the best commercial proposition and balance of 
risk in that Microsoft prices for the next three years are guaranteed and beyond that 
term we expect them to continue to be competitive.  Also, there is not a requirement 
to commit to purchasing software up front or by particular dates in time – effectively 
it’s “pay as you go”.  

4.5 The investment Microsoft is willing to put in free of charge to the development of 
business cases and the knowledge transfer to LCC staff.  Microsoft will benefit once 
projects are commissioned, post business case, when funding is allocated against 
particular returns on investment for software and services. 

4.6 Leeds ICT are at the forefront of Government ICT. Therefore, Microsoft is very keen 
to establish Leeds as a major reference.  This has provided leverage in the 
negotiations and subsequently investment into the MS Leeds account. 

5.0 Definition of partnership and risks 

5.1 The arrangements with Microsoft are viewed as a partnership because there will be 
levels of shared benefit and risk. For example, Microsoft will invest free resources to 
help LCC establish business cases, work on showcase solutions, trial new software, 
conduct technical briefings and validate designs. LCC in turn will be a local 
government showcase and reference for Microsoft and will impart intellectual 
property in terms of Local Government working and best practices that will help in 
the development of Microsoft’s product development and positioning.  
 

5.2 The risks involved in the relationship are viewed as low and manageable.  Microsoft 
are the largest software organisation in the world, their products are well established 
and are viewed by independent analysts as enterprise class i.e. capable of 
supporting very large organisations.  Where Microsoft cannot directly supply 
products, they engage best in class partners to supply products compatible with 
their own products i.e. that integrate well. Building an AI on Microsoft technology is 
not unique and many major organisations have already achieved it. The AI will be 
built from the bottom up on a business case by business case basis. This approach 
in contrast with proposals from some of the other vendors means that we don’t have 
to make up front investment in technology or licenses. This also contributes to 
lowering the risks. 

Page 12



Page 5 

 
 
6.0 Main Issues 

6.1 Previously, ICT developments have been carried out on a service by service basis. 
This means that individual services would typically articulate their business 
requirements and ICT would then deliver corresponding “line of business” solutions.  
 

6.2 The current priorities of the Council require solutions that will involve re-engineering 
business processes that span traditional service boundaries. To do this, there is a 
need to determine business requirements at a more holistic ‘One Council’ level. The 
Chief Officers - Resources and Strategy (CORS) are helping to facilitate this work. 
 

6.3 In addition to this, programmes of work to deliver against these requirements will be 
managed at a corporate level through new officer governance arrangements headed 
by the Business Transformation Board. 
 

6.4 ICT is only one component of successful business change and this has to be 
delivered in parallel to the necessary people and process changes. 
 

6.5 The returns on the investment, from the ICT part of this transformation, will be 
realised through the automation and integration of these processes - through re-
usable components instead of multiples of disparate systems. The successful 
utilisation of the AI is dependant on the business change work identified above. 
 

6.6 Due to the scale of the AI and the high level of interoperability and dependencies 
between the components that constitute the AI, the commitment to the Microsoft 
partnership will be for the long term – seven to ten years.   
 

7.0 Implications For Council Policy And Governance 

7.1 To ensure a strategic approach and overall best value from ICT for the Council, all 
business requirements for ICT and subsequent procurements of solutions must 
come through Corporate ICT Services.   

7.2 ICT delivery programmes will be one part of the Council’s overall Business 
Transformation Programme. People and process changes must be aligned to the 
technology changes for these programmes to be a success. 

7.3 In future, the components in the Microsoft based AI and associated implementation 
services, will be sourced directly from Microsoft or approved Microsoft strategic 
partners - as detailed in Appendix 2 (confidential) - on a business case by business 
case basis.   Appendix 2 of this report is ‘Commercially Confidential’ and exempt 
under the terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3).  This is on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information by reason of the fact that disclosure could 
prejudice negotiations to the effect that there would be potentially increased cost to 
the Council at public expense and therefore be prejudicial to the public interest. 

Page 13



Page 6 

 

8.0 Legal and Resource Implications 

8.1 The Council is entering into a strategic partnership with Microsoft and Microsoft 
approved partners for the development and deployment of an Applications 
Infrastructure (AI). The final selection of Microsoft and the procurement process 
followed, complies with our Contract Procedure Rules i.e. using the negotiated 
procedure without prior publication of a contract notice under regulation 14 (1) (iii) of 
the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 (the Reg’s) which states - "when, for 
technical or artistic reasons,.., the public contract may be awarded only to a 
particular economic operator”.  A Delegated Decision for the ‘Procurement of 
Collaboration Tools and the wider Applications Technical Architecture’ was taken 
and approved in November 2007 in support of this. 

 
8.2 The procurement of the individual AI components of the infrastructure and 

associated services will be done on a business case by business case basis. In 
order to successfully deliver the outcomes of the Council, we will re-profile existing 
ICT funding in this framework contract up to a value of approximately £15M over the 
next five years.  If additional business cases are not approved then the level of 
investment with Microsoft will stay at current levels. 

 
9.0 Recommendations 

 
9.1 Microsoft and Microsoft approved partners are selected as the strategic partners of 

Leeds City Council for the development and deployment of the ‘One Council’ 
Applications Infrastructure (AI) as defined in Appendix 1. 
 

9.2 All business requirements that have a potential ICT element will be directed through 
Corporate ICT Services, who, in partnership with the particular business area 
concerned will decide on what is the best value technology solution to meet those 
requirements. 

Page 14



Page 7 

Appendix 1 
 
The internal LCC document ‘ICT Technical Architecture Planning’ sets out the rationale and technical principles that help define a complete and 
preferred Applications Infrastructure model for LCC in order to: 
 

Ø Ensure a robust, maintainable and supportable ICT environment for LCC, through technology consolidation and skills consolidation, 
by helping to reduce the overhead of vendor overlap between similar/identical products and applications. 

Ø Deliver maximum value per ICT employee, by developing highly skilled and proficient staff, focusing on a core set of technologies, 
rather than having to support a proliferation of - potentially near duplicate - technologies.  

Ø Help to produce a more agile environment that can more quickly adapt and align with corporate priorities and strategies. 

Ø Maximise the potential for using pre-built out-of-the-box vendor integration between applications and systems, therefore allowing the 
more rapid deployment of solutions that deliver real business benefit. 

Ø Provide a governance and decision making framework in order to assist with ensuring all decisions and new initiatives are performed 
in a strategic way. 

 
Ø Through a combination of the above avoid the significant costs of a heterogeneous (mixed) applications infrastructure and provide a 
more sustainable technical architecture. 

 
 
 

Domains and Constituent Components Domain described in business 

language terms 

High level examples of how this 

domain will help enable some 
of the future outcomes of the 
Council 

1 – Applications Integration (SOA) Domain  

§ Enterprise Service Bus (ESB) 

§ Business Process Management (BPM) I 

o Design 

o Modelling 

o Simulation 

§ Business Process Management (BPM) II 

o Implementation / Execution (Enterprise 

These tools are used to improve business 

processes and make it easy to change 

them when required.  The processes can be 

simple or complex, manual or automated 

and can involve partners and suppliers.  

Monitoring of these processes in real time 

is used to identify bottlenecks and ensure 

service targets are constantly maintained.  

Common tasks and processes can be 

identified and combined in new ways to 

create new business processes much more 

It will be possible to manage processes end 

to end.  For service requests submitted by 

citizens this will allow the process to be 

monitored from the front office to the back 

office.  Alerts will identify bottlenecks and 

the need to take corrective action to ensure 

customer service targets are met. 

P
a
g
e
 1

5



Page 8 

Workflow) 

§ Business Rules Management 

§ Business Activity Monitoring (BAM) 

§ Enterprise Service Registry (ESR) 

§ Pre-built vendor integration to 3rd party apps 

 

efficiently and quickly. 

2 – Knowledge Management & Utilisation 

§ Enterprise Portal 

§ Electronic Doc. Mgt (EDM) 

§ Electronic Rec. Mgt (ERM) 

§ Web Content Management 

§ Collaboration Tools (incl. E-Mail, Calendaring) 

§ Enterprise Search 

§ Office Document Authoring Tools 

 

 

This domain provides the means to share 

information with colleagues, citizens, 

partners and suppliers.  Tools will ensure 

that information is easy to find and there 

will be a range of communication channels 

to support collaborative working.  Other 

tools will ensure that information is 

managed correctly and that the Council 

complies with legislation (Data Protection 

and Freedom of Information) and 

regulatory governance. 

Community portals jointly managed by the 

Council and the local community could 

assist in producing stronger communities.  

Local activities could be publicised, 

community cohesion improved through 

information sharing and communities 

empowered through consultation on 

decisions affecting them.  Portals would 

also provide the means for communities to 

publicise and market themselves to a wider 

audience. 

3 – System / Application Development Domain 

§ Bespoke Application Development 

o Browser Deployment 

o Thick Client Deployment  

§ Service Development 

 

The Council will still need tools for writing 

its own computer programs.  These 

programs could be large e.g. a new back 

office system or small scale e.g. 

automation of tasks within a business 

process.  The tools will allow programs to 

be reused which will shorten the 

development time and reduce costs. 

These software development tools will 

complement and enable the other domains 

and together they will provide the 

technology to assist in delivering the 

Council’s change programme and the 

transforming government agenda. 

4 – Enterprise Intelligence Domain 

§ Business Intelligence (BI) 

§ Performance Management 

o Scorecard 

o Dashboard 

o Budgeting  

o Planning 

 

This domain allows business decisions to be 

made based upon fact.  Data from several 

computer systems can be combined for 

analysis.  Performance can also be tracked 

against targets and opportunities identified 

for improvement and how to achieve them. 

All of the Council’s strategic outcomes and 

improvement priorities will benefit from 

business intelligence (BI) and performance 

management (PM).  BI will provide 

benchmarks e.g. the proportion of 

vulnerable groups engaged in education, 

training or employment.  PM will allow 

performance to be monitored against the 

targets set for improvement.  It will also 

indicate the effectiveness of strategies for 

improvement and the resources required 

EDRMS
ECM 

P
a
g
e
 1

6



Page 9 

for further improvement. 

PM should also be used for continual 

monitoring of progress against the CPA 

(Comprehensive Performance Assessment) 

and service specific inspections.  This way 

corrective action can be taken well in 

advance of the official review or inspection. 

These tools will ensure the Council has the 

right intelligence to inform its strategic 

planning. 

5 – Data Infrastructure Domain 

§ Enterprise Data Integration 

§ Integrated Metadata Management / Business 

Vocabulary 

§ Master Data Management (MDM) 

 

An organisation will typically have several 

different computer systems which store the 

personal details of customers.  However, it 

is not always possible to identify the same 

customer in each system.  This domain 

contains tools to consolidate customer 

details from these systems into a master 

customer database.  The master customer 

database can then be used to create a 

‘single view of the customer’ bringing 

together information about a customer 

from a number of different systems. 

Having a master customer database will 

make it easier to share and share much 

more information with other agencies such 

as the NHS e.g. for health and wellbeing 

improvements.  Sharing greater amounts 

of information will assist analysis into the 

causes of health inequalities and the 

development of strategies to address these 

inequalities. 

The master customer database is the key 

to the better understanding of our 

customers and increasing the provision of 

choice to them. 

6 – Security Infrastructure Domain 

§ Single sign-on 

§ Directory services 

§ Identity management 

o Identity Federation 

§ SOA Security Common Services 

 

These tools ensure that users (staff, 

citizens, partners, suppliers) can only 

access the information they are entitled to 

either as individuals or according to their 

role within the organisation. 

Sharing data electronically with other 

agencies e.g. the NHS for health and 

wellbeing improvements cannot take place 

without this. 

Providing citizens with online access to 

personal information and services also 

cannot be achieved without appropriate 

security measures to prove the identity of 

the citizen and protect the confidentiality of 

the data. 

7 – Enterprise Business Applications Domain 

§ Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) 

o Human Resources (HR) 

o Finance 

o Procurement 

An organisation will typically have a 

number of computer systems which can be 

classified as either line of business or 

enterprise business applications.  Line of 

business applications are used to deliver 

the services provided by the organisation 

e.g. planning, social care, housing 

management systems.  Enterprise business 

The Gershon report identified support 

services as a key area for efficiency 

savings.  Initiatives currently under 

development include staff self service for 

support functions e.g. expense claims and 

receiving invoices in electronic format.  

Citizen self service via the Council’s website 

is also more cost effective than other 

P
a
g
e
 1

7



Page 10 

§ Customer Relationship Management (CRM) 

§ Geographic Information System (GIS) 

 

applications are used by the support 

services within an organisation e.g. human 

resources, finance, procurement.   

channels such as the telephone and face to 

face.  A range of electronic forms is being 

developed for the website to support citizen 

self service. 

 
Based on industry information derived from our external consultancy, Gartner and Butler and our own rigorous evaluation together with 
consistent technical and commercial interviews/presentations with/from IBM, Novell, Microsoft and Oracle we concluded that one of these 
suppliers will be best placed to provide tools across the majority of these domains and where they do not, they have the partners and 
capabilities to integrate with them.  SAP although considered initially, were subsequently discounted on advice from Gartner and Butler 
because their products do not integrate well in an environment like LCC’s that has many legacy ICT applications from multiple suppliers. 
 
It was on this basis that Corporate ICT Services negotiated a best value contract for the Council using the negotiated procedure without prior 
publication of a contract notice under regulation 14 (1) (iii) of the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 (the Regulations) with one of these four 
suppliers. 

P
a
g
e
 1

8



Page 19

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (3)

Document is Restricted



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement) 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date: 16th April 2008 
 
Subject: Equality and Diversity Scheme 2008 - 2011 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
In response to legislative requirements the Council’s first Equality and Diversity Strategy was 
developed and approved in June 2006. Since this strategy was introduced there have been 
further legislative changes and areas for development of the Strategy plan have been 
identified. 
 
The strategy was initially developed as a two year plan to enable future documents to align 
with other key council documents, such as,  the Leeds Strategic Plan and the Council 
Business Plan.  This report, therefore, recommends the approval of the Council’s new 
Equality Scheme for the period 2008 – 11. 
 
The new Equality Scheme builds on the earlier Equality and Diversity Strategy 2006 – 08 
and develops our approach further.  In reviewing the 2006 Strategy there was learning which 
was taken forward, and has helped inform both the process used and the development of the 
document itself.  The review of the 2006 strategy has included involvement by all key 
equality and diversity stakeholders and priorities identified by them have been used as the 
basis for the development of the action plan as a key part of the new Equality Scheme. 
 
The new Equality and Diversity Scheme 2008 – 11 will ensure that we meet our current legal 
duties whilst also taking account of the direction of travel of future legislation. 
 
 

 
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator: Lelir Yeung 
 
Tel:247 4152  

 

 

 

  

Agenda Item 7

Page 21



 
 

1.0 Purpose Of This Report 

1.1 There is a complex legal framework for equality which places general and specific  
duties on the council within: employment; training; procurement; service delivery; 
leadership; involvement; communication and publishing activities. These include the 
production and publication of race, disability and gender equality schemes and there 
is a key legislative requirement to detail the authority’s response to the duties to 
promote race, disability and gender equality. 

 
1.2 In 2006, the Council produced its first Equality and Diversity Strategy 2006-08 to 

respond to these legal requirements and develop a strategic approach to delivering   
with equality and diversity issues. This Strategy has now been reviewed, in line with 
other key corporate documentation, and a new response developed.   

 
1.3 A new single equality and diversity scheme reflects the statutory duties of the 

council under the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, the Disability 
Discrimination Act 2005 and the Equality Act 2006.  It also takes account of the 
Council’s responsibilities under other equality and diversity legislation. 

 
1.4 This single equality and diversity Scheme incorporates our race, disability and 

gender equality schemes, hence why the new document is referred as our Equality 
and Diversity scheme, as opposed to a strategy.   

 
1.5         This report sets out: 
 

• An overview of the process used to review the current Strategy and develop the 
new scheme. 

• Highlights learning; 

• Introduces the new Equality Scheme 2008 -11; and 

• Seeks approval for the new Scheme. 
 

2.0 Background Information 

2.1         The Equality and Diversity Strategy 2006 – 2008 was published in June 2006 and    
built on the principles and activities established within the previously published Race 
Equality Scheme.  It broadened them to include all six equality areas covered by 
legislation i.e. race, gender, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief and age. 

 
2.2        The strategy focused on the impact organisational barriers can have on a diverse  

population and identified practical ways of removing or reducing those barriers.  
 
2.3         The strategy aimed to weave equality and diversity into the culture of the  

organisation in order to: 
 

• Eliminate unlawful discrimination; and 

• Promote equality of opportunity and good relations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



2.2         In May 2007 a review was started with the intention of: 
 

• Identifying areas for improving the strategic approach to equality and diversity; 

• Identifying strategic equality and diversity priorities; and 

• Involving representatives of all the relevant equality and diversity stakeholders in 
the development and implementation of the council’s approach to equality and 
diversity for 2008 – 2011. 

 
2.3        Before the review began, some areas for improvement had already been identified.   

These, along with some constructive criticism that had been received from individuals 
and groups on the approach that we had previously adopted, identified the need: 
 

• To have clear evidence of specific priorities and targets for each equality area – 
race, disability, men, women, sexual orientation, religion and belief and age;  

• To increase participation of interested groups both internal and external, in 
developing the strategy and supporting documents;   

• To focus on outcomes – what difference is being made and to whom; 

• To simplify the action plan and performance management of the strategy; 

• To improve accountability and challenge of the council’s progress; and 

• Call the future strategy a “scheme” as this is how legislation describes what 
needs to be in place and is what people ask for when contacting the council. 

 
3.0         Equality and Diversity Review 

3.1 The new Equality Scheme 2008 – 11 builds on the good practice which was           
              established within the Equality and Diversity Strategy 2006 – 08, and seeks to   
              further embed equality and diversity throughout employment and service delivery. 
 
3.2         The Scheme provides contextual information, priorities and includes a robust action   

plan.  The action plan is based on the priorities identified by both communities of 
interest and by the council. It highlights those areas which are generic to a number 
of communities and those which are specific to some. 

 
3.3 It sets out arrangements to performance manage the progress of the action plan 

within a clear accountability framework.  
 
3.4 As part of the review process work took place to ensure that stakeholders would be 

involved in the development of the Scheme.  This is in line with our legal duties 
under a range of equality and diversity legislation.  

 
3.5 Alongside the considerable involvement with a wide range of stakeholders, desktop 

research has also taken place. This has involved an analysis of:  
 

• Existing local and national research that has already been carried out; 

• Corporate Assessment – initial findings from the Audit Commissions 
inspection carried out in December 2007; 

• Existing anti-discrimination legislation; 

• Changes being implemented to introduce a National Indicators set; 

• Equalities Review – fairness and freedom. An independent review 
commissioned by the Prime Minister;  

• Findings from the Residents Survey, and; 

• Findings from the Staff Survey. 
 
 

Page 23



 
3.6 This scheme also demonstrates how our approach to equality goes beyond our 

statutory obligations and provides an indication of how we embed equality and 
diversity within all areas of operation. 
 

3.7         An integral part of the scheme is the need to continue the involvement of the six  
equality communities in challenging and monitoring progress against the action 
plan.  Work will take place to ensure that this happens. 

 
 

4.0 Equality and Diversity Action Plan 
 
4.1 The analysis of the priorities identified by communities of interest and individuals 

involved in the review and the development of the scheme highlighted that there 
were many common areas.  These have been used to develop the following 
overarching priorities which have been divided into the following themed areas: 

 

• Employment, training and development 
 

• Safer communities 
 

• Service delivery 
 

• Participation and involvement 
 

• Promotion of equality and diversity 
 
4.2 Generally, priorities within these themes are similar for all equality areas: race, 

disability, gender, sexual orientation, religion and belief and age. However there are 
some priorities that are specific to particular equality areas. These have been 
identified in the action plan. 

 
4.3 All of these outcomes and priorities have been matched to ensure that they support 

the delivery of the Leeds Strategic Plan and Council Business Plan draft 
improvement priorities. 

 
4.4 The priorities in the action plan have been developed in partnership with services. It 

is specifically designed to ensure that both the priorities highlighted by the 
communities of interest and council equality priorities are reflected.  It does not 
record all the activity taking place around equality and diversity, but shows the 
corporate approach and focuses on some service specific priorities which reflect 
identified priorities 

 
4.5        The action plan will be formally monitored through the normal performance  

management framework.  There will also be regular reports to the Corporate 
Leadership Team and to the lead Executive Board member with responsibility for 
Equality and Diversity. 

 

6.0         Implications For Council Policy And Governance 

6.1         The new Equality and Diversity Scheme 2008 – 11 supports  the delivery of the   
              improvement priorities in the Leeds Strategic Plan and the Council Business Plan 
 

Page 24



 
 
7.0  Legal And Resource Implications 
 

7.1 There is a complex legal framework for equality which places general and specific  
duties on the council within: employment; training; procurement; service delivery; 
leadership; involvement; communication and publishing activity. The Equality 
Scheme 2008 – 11 meets these legal requirements. 

 

8.0 Conclusions 

8.1 The production and publication of the Equality Scheme 2008 – 11 will ensure that 
we meet our legal requirements and sets out the equality and diversity priorities for 
the council. It also works in synergy with other strategic documents, such as, the 
Leeds Strategic Plan, and Council Business Plan.  

 
9.1 It provides an overarching corporate approach to equality and diversity which will 

further embed this within service delivery and employment 
 

9.0         Recommendations 

Executive Board is asked to: 

• Note the content of this report 

• Approve the Equality and Diversity Scheme 2008 – 2011 as attached at 
Appendix 1. 

 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Equality and Diversity Scheme 2008 – 2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contents  

 
3 Our Mission and Values 

 
4 Contacting Us 

 
5 Statement of Intent 

 
6 Introduction 

 
8 About Leeds 

 
10 Overview of Equality and Diversity Achievements 2006 – 2008 

 
15 Meeting our Legal Duties 

 
23 Key Equality and Diversity Improvement Tools and Techniques 

 
26 Involvement and Consultation 

 
29 Improving our Approach to Equality and Diversity 

 
32 Leadership and Accountability 

 
33 Reporting on Progress of the Scheme 

 
34 Equality and Diversity Policy 

 
37 Equality and Diversity Outcomes and Priorities 

 
41 Equality and Diversity Action Plan 

 
 Appendices 

1 Equality Legislation 
2 Key Priorities for  Impact Assessments 2008 – 2011 
3 Key Issues from Focus Groups 
4 Equality Monitoring of Involvement in the Review 
 

 
 
 

Page 28



 3

 
 
 
 
 

Leeds City Council’s Mission Statement 

 

‘To bring the benefits of a prosperous, vibrant and 
attractive city to all the people of Leeds’ 

 

Our Values 
 

Looking after Leeds 
  
We are committed to improving the quality of life in Leeds and want to inspire 
pride in our city and communities. We will work with our partners, build on our 
success and protect our city for future generations. 

 
 

Putting customers first  
 
We will make sure our services meet the needs of our customers and 
communities. We will communicate clearly and work hard to find out and 
respond to our customers’ needs. We are committed to providing excellent 
services that are value for money. 

 

Treating people fairly 
 
We value the diversity of our communities and strive to ensure that everyone 
shares in the city’s success. We will tackle discrimination and improve access 
to our services — especially to those with the greatest need. 

 

Valuing colleagues 
   

We know that the good work of our colleagues is key to providing excellent 
services. We will support colleagues and encourage them to work creatively. 

 
 
 

 

 

Icons aligned 
to x-height of 
parhead 

Page 29



 4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
For enquiries about the Equality and Diversity Scheme please contact: 
 
 
E-mail: equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk 
 
or  Telephone: 0113 247 4190 
     Text: 07891 270 162 
 
Write to: 
 
Equality Team 
Leeds City Council 
Ground Floor 
Civic Hall 
Leeds LS1 1UR 
 
Website: www.leeds.gov.uk/equality 
 
 
 
 
This information is available in Large Print, Braille, on Audio Tape and on Computer 
Disk. 
 
If you need this information in another language, please phone 0113 247 4190 
 
If you need to speak to us in a language other than English, please state the language 
and we will put you on hold while we contact an interpreter. 
 
 
Other useful contacts: 
 
The Equality Team holds a contact list for a wide range of equality organisations. This list is 
regularly updated and is available on our website. For paper copies please contact the 
Equality Team as above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 5

 
 
 
 
    
Equality and Diversity Scheme 2008 – 2011 
 
Statement of Intent 
 
We are pleased to present the Equality and Diversity Scheme 2008 – 2011 for Leeds City 
Council. 
 
We all aspire to live in a society that is fair and which supports each individual to fulfil their 
potential. The scheme takes into account the Council’s Values: looking after Leeds, putting 
customers first, treating people fairly and valuing colleagues. 
 
Leeds City Council recognises the need to embed equality and diversity at the heart of what 
we do and is committed to making this happen. The Scheme seeks to address the different 
aspects of identity individuals and communities have. These can be based on race, 
disability, gender, sexual orientation, religion or belief and age. It recognises too that 
disadvantage experienced by others, such as carers and single parents, is no less 
significant. Taking full account of these differences, the Leeds approach focuses on: 
 

• the effects organisational barriers can have on a diverse population 

• practical ways of removing or reducing those barriers. 
 
The Scheme seeks to bring these various strands together in order to strengthen the equality 
and diversity work we have been undertaking, and to map out our approach for the next 
three years. In summary the Scheme sets out: 
 

• how we will promote equality and diversity 

• how we will eliminate harassment and discrimination in the work we do 

• how we will meet our legal responsibilities 

• actions we plan to take from 2008 – 2011 to improve our performance. 
 
Strong leadership, together with commitment and support from our staff, our communities 
and our partners, are what will make the Scheme successful. The development of this 
Scheme has involved representatives from all of our stakeholders, customers, staff, elected 
members, community groups, trade unions and partners. We welcome your continued 
support and hope you will let us have your views and comments about how well we are 
doing as our work progresses.  
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Richard Brett          Paul Rogerson, Chief Executive 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



 6

Introduction 
 

Our Mission is to bring the benefits of a prosperous, vibrant and attractive city to all the 
people of Leeds.  
 
The Equality and Diversity Scheme 2008 - 2011 outlines our commitment as an employer, a 
service provider, a commissioner of services and as a lead partner in the city. 
 
The Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 - 2011 will set out what the council will deliver itself and what 
it will deliver in partnership with others over the next three years. 
 
Equality and diversity is at the heart of the plan and will be central to how we turn our vision 
into a reality working in partnership across the city. We are committed to increasing equality 
and valuing the diversity of all communities in the city. We recognise that priorities and 
actions can affect some communities or groups of people who participate in the city 
differently.  
 
We know we need to work more intensively to make sure that the implementation of our 
improvement priorities supports and encourages a shared sense of belonging in all 
communities in the city and a widely shared sense of the contribution of different individuals 
and groups to a future local vision. We recognise that people with different backgrounds 
should experience similar life opportunities and access to services and work to develop a 
strong sense of an individual’s local rights and responsibilities. 
 
One of the strategic outcomes identified is to have more inclusive, varied and vibrant 
communities through empowering people to contribute to decision making and delivering 
local services, as well as improved community cohesion and integration through meaningful 
involvement and valuing equality and diversity. 
 

Work will also take place to ensure that linkages are made to the key strategies and plans 
that link to and support the equality and diversity agenda. In addition to the Strategic Plan 
outlined above these include the Council Business Plan 2008 – 2011 where we have 
highlighted three equality, diversity and community cohesion business improvement 
priorities: 
 

• ensure colleagues reflect the diversity of our communities 

• ensure fair access to all our services 

• embed equality and diversity throughout the organisation. 
 
In addition, community cohesion is now a commonly used term and has been in place as a 
policy driver for the last couple of years. Community cohesion is a priority for the council and 
the city as a whole. How we respond to tensions within and between our communities and 
the changing demographics of our city, as well as providing harmonious communities is 
critical for the future success of the city.   
 
We have recognised that equality and diversity and community cohesion are two interlinked 
policy areas and our responses reflect this. This scheme will also be linked to the Cohesion 
and Integration Plan 2008 – 2011. 
 

This single equality and diversity scheme reflects the statutory duties of the council under the 
Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, the Disability Discrimination Act 2005 and the 

Page 32



 7

Equality Act 2006. It also takes account of the Council’s responsibilities under other equality 
and diversity legislation. 
 
This single equality and diversity scheme incorporates our race, disability and gender 
equality schemes. 
 
This scheme builds on the work that has already started following the publication of the 
Equality and Diversity Strategy 2006 – 2008. Our ongoing challenge is to ensure that we 
consistently convert our values into actions that deliver appropriate services and improve 
employment opportunities to all communities in the city.  
 
We can only maintain our high levels of performance if we build an explicit commitment to 
equality and diversity into everything we do. 
 
This single equality and diversity Scheme outlines the continued commitment of Leeds City 
Council to creating an environment of true equality and diversity across the city. 
 
The Scheme highlights priority actions over the next three years. It is acknowledged that 
there are core similarities between the different strands of equalities legislation. The Scheme 
recognises that people do not exist in neat and clearly definable groups and most people 
identify with more than one equality area at a time and the Scheme assists us in responding 
to the issues of multiple discrimination. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 8

 
 
About Leeds  
 
The Leeds Metropolitan District covers 552 square kilometres and is the second largest 
Metropolitan District in England. It is recognised as one of Britain’s most successful cities 
having transformed itself from a mainly industrial city into a broadly based commercial centre 
regarded as the most important financial, legal and business service centre in the country 
outside London. 
 
Geographically, the local authority area is one of contrast with a busy, thriving and densely 
populated city centre and suburban inner ring, surrounded by a huge, sparsely populated 
rural hinterland with market towns of distinct character. 
 
At the time of the 2001 Census, Leeds had a population of 715,400 living in approximately 
301,000 households. Following recent revisions by the Office for National Statistics to the 
way in which population estimates are calculated (largely aimed at redistributing international 
migration, which had previously gone to London, to the rest of the country) the population of 
Leeds is now estimated to be 750,250, an increase of 4.8% from the 2001 figure and 
representing the largest absolute increase in the country.  
 
There will also be significant changes in the size and profile of black and ethnic minority 
communities and work by the University of Leeds (School of Geography) suggests that by 
2030 the black and minority ethnic population in Leeds will increase by 55% and that the age 
structure of black and minority ethnic communities will also contain higher proportions of 
people in older age groups. It should also be noted that migration patterns may well be 
affected by any future developments in the European Union, international political unrest and 
climate change, as borders open and people flee war or natural disasters.  
 
During 2006/7 8,480 non-UK nationals from 69 countries registered for National Insurance 
numbers from addresses in Leeds. Of these 2,960 were from Poland, with other nationals 
from the European Union Accession States accounting for a further 1,000 registrations. This 
does not include partners, children and other dependent relatives that are anecdotally known 
to be accompanying those registering in order to access work. 
 
Leeds is clearly becoming a more diverse place and is now home to more than 130 different 
nationalities. This diversity is valuable and has helped fuel the prosperity of the area. While 
communities are comfortable with each other and, in comparison to other major cities, Leeds 
has little history of conflict this pace of change does create some issues. However, we are 
addressing the challenge and are in the process of commissioning research to establish the 
patterns of settlement and the impact of the emergence of new communities. 
 
Population – Some Key Facts and Figures 
 

• Population has grown by 27,700 in the last 5 years 

• 15% of the population is over 65 and 20% is under 16 

• 51.7% of the population is female 

• 10.8% of the population is from black and minority ethnic communities. If ‘white other’ 
and ‘white Irish’ are excluded this figure falls to 8.15% 

• People not in work and claiming benefit has fallen from 45,868 in 2000 to 44,484 in 
2006 

• 7% of the working age population receives Incapacity Benefit 

Page 34



 9

 
 
Like other local authorities we are building our understanding and approach to changing 
demographics in the city and some of the challenges this may present us with. 
 
A Cross Sector New Migrants Research Task Group has been set up by the council with a 
view to better understanding the demographics, experiences and aspirations of new 
migrants and the impact on cohesion, services and the city. Council services such as 
schools, adult and children’s services, housing and others are responding to emerging 
needs. Understanding service impact is a priority. 
 
The council is working with partners to understand this dynamic situation, which is 
presenting opportunities and challenges for the economy and employment. Management 
and integration of new migrants to Leeds is not limited to new European migration.  
 
We have a strong history of welcoming and supporting independence and integrating asylum 
seekers, refugees, family joiners, students and others. Our growing experience and 
understanding through partnership working will determine the need for and content of any 
future city-wide strategy on migration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 10

 

Overview of Some Equality and Diversity Achievements 2006 – 2008 

 
The Equality and Diversity Strategy 2006 – 2008 outlined four equality objectives and 
strategic outcomes and this section provides a summary of key achievements for each of 
these. 
 
1. Leadership 
 
Equality and Diversity Objective (2006 – 2008): 
 
To provide strong leadership which enables the principles of equality to be embedded in all 
areas of employment and service delivery. 
 
Equality and Diversity Strategic Outcome (2006 – 2008) 
 
There is effective leadership at all levels. Examples of some key achievements: 
 

• The Policy, Performance and Improvement Team carried out its second quality 
assurance exercise on Service Plans during April and May 2006 and it was noted that 
equality and diversity were routinely included within them. Service Plan guidance has 
recently been revised and in order to ensure more Service Plans take account of 
equality and diversity issues the reference to inclusion of equality, diversity and 
community cohesion has been strengthened.  

• Within Directors’ appraisals there is a specific focus on equality and diversity. 

• The Equality Board within Adult and Children and Young People’s Social Care and 
the Equality Champions group in Children and Young People’s Social Care continue 
to provide opportunities for sharing good practice and opportunities for monitoring and 
review.  

• Children and Young People’s Social Care have started a transformation project with 
neighbouring authorities to consider how we can involve children and young people 
with social care needs in operational and strategic planning. Another strand of the 
transition project also looks at involving young disabled children in reviews and other 
planning groups. These projects should inform creative and innovative approaches to 
involving hard-to-reach and vulnerable children and young people. 

• An Equality Suggestion Scheme has been developed in City Development and 
advertised to staff via posters, Team Talk messages, the intranet etc. 

• In the Resources Directorate all service areas now have a standard equality agenda 
item on Senior Management Teams (SMTs) and equality representatives attend to 
brief on equality issues and update on progress on the Equality Standard and 
employment staffing information. Benefits and Revenues have created an equality 
area under their service area on the intranet to communicate equality issues and 
progress to staff.  

• Services across the council continue to review current equality and diversity indicators 
with the aim of identifying gaps and ensuring existing indicators are improved for all 
equality areas. For example, within Environments and Neighbourhoods a number of 
indicators have been identified and are part of its performance framework. Statistics 
are now being provided for several of the indicators. Within Adult and Children’s 
Social Care a list of performance indicators is now being finalised and will be available 
after the Equality Board has considered them.  

Page 36



 11

• Across the council we continue to improve the way we communicate equality and 
diversity information to staff at all levels. Directors and Heads of Services are 
responsible for ensuring that equality and diversity messages are included and 
embedded into Corporate and Departmental Team Talk messages and any other 
existing forms of communication such as the intranet and staff magazines. 

• Within the Leadership Challenge equality is a key component. The pilot is being 
undertaken within Children’s Services and learning being rolled out. 

 
 
2. Service Delivery 
 
Equality and Diversity Objective (2006- 2008): 
 
To provide accessible and appropriate services to all the people of Leeds. 
 
Equality and Diversity Strategic Outcome (2006- 2008): 
 
Our customers receive excellent services, which are efficient and effective at meeting their 
needs. Examples of some key achievements: 
 

• The Communication Team continues to ensure that key employment and service 
delivery information is available in appropriate formats. There is also guidance/policy 
on equality and community cohesion in communications. Browse aloud, British Sign 
Language videos plus translations and other accessibility tools are available on the 
website. 

• The Central Interpretation and Translation Unit (CITU) provides a range of 
interpretation and translation services for council departments and other public 
services. This ensures that services are made more accessible to individuals in 
communities where English is not their first language. 

• There have been improvements on the number of Equality Impact Assessments that 
have been carried out. These include 17 Equality Impacts Assessments carried out by 
Aire Valley Homes. Early Years Service completed its first Equality Impact 
Assessment on the delivery of children’s centre services in August 2007. Community 
Safety has undertaken 4 Equality Impact Assessments and a timetable has been 
agreed for further assessments. 

• The Children’s Social Care actions arising from the previous Equality Impact 
Assessment of Family Resource Centres have been completed. A guidance 
document on valuing diversity and the cultural needs of children during access, 
referrals, assessment and planning has been produced. 

• Parks and Countryside has carried out Equality Impact Assessments on the following 
service planning elements: Golf, City Park: Temple Newsam, City Park: Middleton 
Park, City Park: Roundhay Park, City Park: Chevin Forest Park, City Park: Kirkstall 
Abbey, City Park: Golden Acre, Community Parks, Recreation Areas and POS, 
Streetscape: Floral Initiative, Streetscape: Partnerships, Biodiversity, Burial and 
Cremation and Public Rights of Way.  

• For equality monitoring Adult Social Care has added sexual orientation monitoring to 
the Electronic Social Care Records. It is now possible for the directorate to monitor 
the sexual orientation of service users where appropriate, in addition to all other 
equality strands. Equality monitoring is used for statistical purposes only. 

Page 37



 12

• Work has progressed on the pilot project within Environment and Neighbourhoods to 
link records in the Orchard system with Contact Leeds. This will include equality 
monitoring and will enable data to be shared across the systems.  

• West North West Homes has implemented its customer profiling exercise and is 
currently analysing information received. This will be used to tailor services where 
West North West has identified gaps from monitoring in customer/tenant involvement.  

• Early Years routinely collects data relating to service users in the centres in terms of 
gender, ethnicity, disability, age, and religion via Family Registration Forms, monthly 
monitoring returns and Annual Parents Survey. Early Years Service is currently 
undertaking an exercise to develop a Children’s Centre profile for each centre. This 
will include demographic data by Super Output Areas for the area each centre covers. 
It is anticipated that Children’s Centre Managers will then be able to use this data to 
identify gaps in service delivery and improve services to users. 

• In the Parks and Countryside Service a comprehensive survey of allotment holders 
has been undertaken that included a full set of equality and diversity questions. 
Information will be used to target under-represented groups. 

• Throughout the year Leeds City Council has supported a number of events to 
promote and celebrate the city’s cultural diversity. These include: Leeds Mela, The 
Bollywood Awards, Breeze Youth Festival, Gay Pride, Leeds West Indian Carnival, 
Black History Month and International Day of Older People. 

 
 
3. Consultation and Engagement 
 
Equality and Diversity Objective (2006- 2008): 
 
To engage in appropriate, effective and timely consultation processes (including 
feedback) with the citizens of Leeds, to inform service delivery, employment practices and 
improvements. 
 
Equality and Diversity Strategic Outcome (2006- 2008): 
 
All communities are thriving and harmonious places where people are happy to live and our 
customers receive excellent services, which are efficient and effective at meeting their 
needs. Examples of some key achievements: 
 

• Across each directorate there are a range of consultation and engagement 
mechanisms that are used with customers. For example, within Children’s Social Care 
a consultation exercise with children and young people in public care was conducted 
to determine different cultural aspects of care provision. As a result, a cultural booklet 
has been produced to enhance the cultural identity of children from diverse 
backgrounds.  

• Education Leeds has consulted on an all-encompassing inclusive learning strategy 
which they are hosting for Children’s Services. This will be linked to an equality and 
diversity strategy to ensure that resources are targeted at priorities and will raise the 
profile of providing services for disabled children including those with learning 
difficulties. 

• The Asset Management Service conducted a public consultation exercise on the draft 
Master Plan for Elland Road to enable and inform the planning statement to be 
developed for the site to address identified inequalities. The stakeholder analysis was 
undertaken prior to the implementation of the consultation exercise. Through this 
process, the following minority groups were identified: Young people in association 

Page 38



 13

with St Luke Cares; Leeds Access Committee; Leeds United Disability Organisation; 
Hamara Healthy Living Centre including members of the Hamara Women’s Thursday 
Group. The outcome of the consultation exercise helped to shape the content of the 
informed planning statement prior to its approval. 

• Corporate Equality Staff Groups for black minority ethnic staff (BME), disabled staff, 
women and lesbian, gay and bisexual staff (LGB) continue to meet on a corporate 
level and link with key decision makers. A review of the Corporate Staff Groups will be 
undertaken during the summer of 2008. 

• The Diversity Staff Forum, attended by a representative from each of the Corporate 
Equality Staff Groups, the Equality Team and Human Resource Services, meets 
regularly to discuss key issues impacting upon them; acts as an advisor or 
consultation forum for the council on equality and diversity issues on behalf of their 
respective staff groups; and influences and supports the development of the equality 
and diversity agenda.  

• Across the council there are a number of established black, minority ethnic disabled 
and women’s groups, although it should be noted that the movement of services 
within the council has had an impact on membership of some of the staff groups. It is 
expected that recommendations following the review of Corporate Staff Groups will 
influence staff groups within directorates. 

• The Corporate Consultation Review has been completed and work is being 
undertaken to establish an Equality Assembly. 

 
 
4. Employment and Training 

 
Equality and Diversity Objective (2006- 2008): 
 
To provide fair and equitable employment. 
 
Equality and Diversity Strategic Outcome (2006- 2008): 
 
Our staff reflect the diverse communities of our city, perform well, are constantly learning, 
and are able to develop their careers through all levels of the council without discrimination. 
Examples of some key achievements: 
 

• The recent changes across Human Resource Services have had an impact on the 
production of employment-related performance information. The Business Support 
Centre is currently only able to produce Corporate Organisational Health data rather 
than data that facilitates the comparison of specific employment-related targets across 
services. 

• However, the corporate data shows that at the end of September 2007 the council 
(excluding Education Leeds and the Arms Length Management Organisations) was 
exceeding the target for the top 5% of earners to be black and minority ethnic, was 
only 0.37% away from the target for the top 5% of earners to be women and would 
have met the target for the top 5% of earners to be disabled if there had been another 
1.7 full time employees classified as disabled under the Disability Discrimination Act. 
It should be noted that while we continue to exceed the target for minority ethnic 
groups, the number of employees classed as disabled under the Disability 
Discrimination Act has fallen over recent years. A new strategy to invigorate 
employment of disabled people within the council has been developed and 
implemented in December 2007.  

Page 39



 14

• Work is still in progress to include all equality strands on the Human Resources 
management system to ensure that equality and diversity monitoring data is compliant 
with existing, new and changing legislation. For example the inclusion of sexual 
orientation and religion or belief, in addition to the existing monitoring fields for 
gender, race, disability and age, is a priority for the council. This is a priority exercise 
with the intention being to introduce these changes by March/April 2008. 

• Across the council we endeavour to meet the employment targets with the 
implementation of positive action measures and initiatives that aim to support our 
achievement. These include school placements, mentoring, shadowing, LEODIS and 
Workstep and supported trainee schemes such as PATH. For example, Human 
Resources currently has 3 Flagship trainees, 2 PATH trainees and 2 UK Academy 
placements; Adult Social Care has 4 PATH trainees; Children’s Social Care has 2 
PATH trainees; Aire Valley Homes currently has 1 PATH and 2 Flagship trainees; 
West North West Homes, in partnership with West Leeds Family Learning Centre, 
have taken on people who have no or very little qualifications, to help with their self 
esteem and confidence. A number of these trainees are of a young age and East 
North East Homes has created links with Voluntary Action Leeds, East Leeds Family 
Learning Centre, Sure Start, PATH Yorkshire and Nari Ekta to promote job vacancies.  

• In HR Service, policies are regularly reviewed with the aim of identifying 
improvements to ensure that all our key policies are inclusive and do not create 
barriers which could cause discrimination. A programme and timetable to review and 
equality impact assess key policies has been developed, which includes a schedule to 
ensure all existing and new policies are assessed. The Recruitment and Selection 
Policy and Procedure are currently being reviewed.  

• Phase one of the job evaluation process is now complete and involved all staff up to 
and including scale 6 (spinal point 28). This includes the former manual worker 
grades, as well as scales 1 to 6 on the officer pay structure. Phase two of the job 
evaluation process has already started. All jobs currently between scale 6 and PO6 
(spinal points 29 to 49) will be included in this phase. Ongoing job evaluation 
exercises will ensure future proposed re-gradings consider equal pay issues. 

 
 
 

Page 40



 15

Meeting Our Legal Duties 
 
As a public authority we have legal responsibilities to promote equal opportunities and 
address inequalities by eliminating discrimination through a complex legal framework. These 
responsibilities are set out in Appendix 1. 
 
In order to meet our legal duties we have developed this Scheme which includes the 
requirements for disability, race and gender schemes. We are taking forward work on a 
number of areas which support this: 
 
1. Promoting Equality and Diversity 
 
It is recognised that there is much work being undertaken and progress being made to 
promote equality of opportunity and eliminate discrimination. However, disadvantage is still 
experienced in all equality areas. 
 

Equality areas include:  
 

• young people and older people 

• disabled people, including people with physical or sensory impairments, people with 
learning difficulties, people with mental health issues and people with long-term health 
conditions 

• lesbians, gay men and bisexual people 

• black and minority ethnic people including Gypsies and Travellers, migrant workers, 
asylum seekers and refugees 

• men, women and people who identify as transgender/transsexual 

• people of religion or belief and those with none 

• disadvantage can also be experienced by others such as carers and single parents. 
 
Throughout the review process of the original strategy contributions have helped to identify a 
number of barriers experienced by individuals and groups. These will be used to develop 
briefings to help address inequalities. Contributions have included: 
 

• stereotyping – for example: young people lack the experience needed to manage 
services; women are always primary carers; over 50’s do not want to work; disabled 
people, young people and older people are vulnerable and needy; people who are 
religious/have faith are extreme in their views and intolerant 

• negative media images and a lack of positive role models 

• fear of, and experience of, crime creating “no go areas” within the city and rural areas 

• public transport – cost, availability, accessibility, safety 

• lack of understanding of the needs of people – people are not asked what their needs 
are 

• publicity about availability of policies that all staff can use – for example, flexible 
working; managing attendance; maternity and paternity leave 

• lack of engagement and involvement – communities, whether internal or external, are 
expected to “come to” decision-makers rather than decision makers going to people 

• transgender issues are often put together with lesbian, gay men and bisexual issues 
which has a negative impact on recognising gender issues, reporting of hate crime 
and accessing services. 

 
 

Page 41



 16

2. Increasing Effective Communication and Information 
 
Ensuring Public Access to Information and Services 
 

Leeds City Council is committed to transparency and openness, and recognises that 
individual members of the public and sections of the community may experience barriers in 
accessing information and services. The council therefore makes an overarching 
commitment through this Scheme to use language appropriate to the intended audience and 
ensure that information is available in accessible formats. 
 

We recognise that different sections of the community prefer to receive information in 
different ways and that different communication styles are more effective with some people 
than others. We will continue to seek to be informed by specialist groups about preferred or 
most effective communication methods and will try to be a learning organisation when it 
comes to understanding how barriers to accessing information and services are perceived by 
those we aim to communicate with. 
 
The council also makes the following commitment to improving and ensuring public access 
to information and services: 
  

• all information will be written in plain English 

• all information will be available in accessible formats such as, Braille, large print, tape, 
CD 

• standard information leaflets will make it clear how and who to contact to obtain 
information in alternative formats 

• standard information leaflets will make it clear how to access face-to-face and 
telephone interpreting for community languages 

• where illustrations are used there will be good colour contrast 

• translation into community languages will be in line with recent government guidance. 
 
Braille, Large Print and Audio Tape 
 
On 1 February 2008, ownership of the council’s Braille, large print and audio service 
changed hands. Leeds Society for Deaf and Blind People now runs this service but it is still 
based at Shire View in Headingley, and should still be used by services for any customer 
requesting a council document in Braille, large print or on audio tape. 
 
3. Employment and Training 
 
Developing Our Capacity 
 

In response to the Council Change Programme and the national direction of travel for local 
government, the provision of learning and development must be modernised, transformed, 
and be a proactive business at both strategic and local level. 
 
The key to learning and development adding value to the council, city and region is to link all 
learning and development activity to the council’s planning framework. Linking staff 
knowledge, skills and performance gaps to strategic priorities and plans will help to ensure 
that all learning and development resources are being targeted towards agreed key priorities 
enabling individuals to fulfil their roles, support their local service plans and meet personal 
responsibilities in delivering these service plans. 
 

Page 42



 17

Managers must be able to performance manage and develop their staff with an improvement 
in both quality of the appraisals and number of appraisals taking place.  
 
The current Workforce Development Strategy reflects this, and reflects the work taking place 
to consolidate equality and diversity training within, and the Equality and Diversity Learning 
and Development Plan for Leeds City Council.  
 
A learning needs analysis against the Equality Standard identified various skills gaps, and 
further information was gained from focus groups held during the review of the 2006 - 2008 
Equality Strategy. 
 
Learning and Development is key to ensuring staff and partners are fully equipped to deliver 
the equality and diversity agenda, fully implementing our Core Values and the Customer 
Outcomes from the Business Plan and the aims of the Strategic Plan. 
 
Gender Pay Gap 
 

The 1997 Single Status Agreement required local authorities to harmonise terms and 
conditions of service for former blue- and white-collar employees. The introduction of the 
National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services terms and conditions of service 
handbook was introduced. In addition to harmonisation, authorities were also required to 
carry out pay and grading reviews including implementing a job evaluation scheme. 
 
The report of the Local Government Pay Commission and subsequent National Pay and 
Workforce Strategy, coupled with changes to the case law surrounding Equal Pay at the end 
of 2003, changed the context for local pay reviews.  

The National Joint Council pay circular of 2004 detailed implementation requirements for 
local authorities, namely: 

• new local pay structures and systems to be agreed by April 2006 

• local pay reviews must be completed and implemented by March 2007. 
 
Carrying out such a review for an organisation of the size and complexity of Leeds is 
significant. The main purpose of the review is to deliver a modern and fair pay structure for 
the organisation that is modern and fit for purpose for the future. The revised pay and 
grading structure will eliminate historical pay inequalities and go some way to reducing the 
gender pay gap. 
 
Employment Opportunities for Disabled People 
 
Our Council Plan identifies a priority to widen employment opportunities for disabled people. 
Key elements of the Disability Employment Strategy are: 
 

• changing culture, perceptions and knowledge 

• workforce planning and service commissioning 

• improving delivery 

• improving results and returns on investment. 
 
While the focus is on disability, some actions would be transferable to support other priority 
groups within the context of ‘Narrowing the Gap’ between the most disadvantaged people 
and communities and the rest of the city. 

Page 43



 18

 
 
Apprenticeship Programme 
 
The Leeds City Council Apprenticeship Programme will provide opportunities for young 
people and adults to access employment with the council. It will contribute towards the 
council's workforce development planning, the Skills Pledge and the Corporate Social 
Responsibilities Programme, while helping to increase the diversity of the workforce. It will 
support the Narrowing the Gap agenda by targeting young people and adults. 
 
Stonewall Workplace Equality Index 
 
For the second year running the council has been named in the UK’s top-100 employers for 
lesbian, gay and bisexual people in Stonewall's Workplace Equality Index 2008. Stonewall is 
a campaigning organisation for equality and justice for lesbians, gay men and bisexual 
people. Its Workplace Equality Index is the definitive national benchmarking exercise 
showcasing Britain's top employers for lesbian, gay and bisexual staff. This year Leeds City 
Council has been placed 67th.  
 
This follows the ongoing top-level commitment by the council to provide a supportive 
environment for its gay, lesbian and bisexual employees. 
 
Following the publication of the index results representatives from the Corporate Lesbian, 
Gay Men and Bisexual Staff Network, the Equality Team and Human Resource Services met 
with our Stonewall link person to help us identify areas for improvement. These areas for 
improvement will link to the action plan for the Scheme. 
 
As the index develops to include service delivery so too will we be improving representation 
of existing and/or potential customers who identify as lesbian, gay or bisexual and can 
contribute to delivering the actions. 
 
 
4.        Staff Survey 
 

The staff survey helps the council to take the temperature of the organisation in relation to 
levels of satisfaction and motivation, opinions on management and supervision, quality of 
communications and learning and development, and to invite feedback on employment 
conditions and the working environment. 
 
The survey gives staff an opportunity to voice their opinions in confidence and to help the 
council meet its aims of being an employer of choice. 
 
The 2007 survey maintains the momentum of the previous staff surveys carried out by the 
council over the years and the response rate has continued to increase. In 2004 the 
response rate was 26% and in 2005 this increased to 37%. This year a total of 7,721 
completed questionnaires were received, representing which accounted for 41.3% of all 
council staff. 
 
Examples of responses relating directly to equality and diversity: 
 

• The 70% target of staff who feel the council is genuinely committed to equality and 
fairness for all has been exceeded by 2%, at 72%. 

Page 44



 19

• 16% of people working for the council have experienced unfair discrimination, 
harassment or bullying while at work. Of those people 37% said the behaviour that 
they experienced was in relation to personal circumstances.  

• The majority of discrimination, harassment or bullying experienced by staff 
members came from their managers and/or a colleague. 

• The majority of people who experienced discrimination, bullying or harassment did 
not report the incident (57%). This was for a number of different reasons ranging 
from fear to a lack of confidence that a resolution would be reached. 

 
 
5. Leeds Inclusive Learning Strategy 2007 – 2010 
 
This strategy focuses on high achievement and attainment of all disabled children within the 
context of Every Child Matters and the five outcomes. 
 
Children Leeds believes that through focusing on personalised approaches, all children, 
young people and families in Leeds will have access to high-quality learning that enables 
them to be fully included, to achieve, and to be happy, healthy, safe and successful. 
 
The Leeds Inclusion Strategy 2004 – 2010 was developed with key partners in response to 
the government’s strategy for special educational needs: Removing Barriers to Achievement. 
The strategy incorporated objectives from the government’s strategy from a local 
perspective. It was developed in the spirit of the Children’s Bill and responses outlined in 
Every Child Matters. It continues to make a significant contribution to the aims and 
aspirations identified in the Vision for Leeds 2004 – 2020, contributing directly to the three 
strategic areas of developing harmonious communities, health, wellbeing and learning. It 
represents a commitment to promoting equality and inclusion that is consistent with Leeds 
City Council’s policy, providing a basis for partnership working and corporate action. 
 
Children and families are at the heart of our refreshed strategy. The Leeds Inclusive 
Learning Strategy aims to escalate the progress we have already made through focusing on: 
 

• high-quality inclusive learning outcomes across our universal offer 

• increased opportunities through our specialist provision 

• improved integrated service delivery at a local level that is responsive to the needs of 
the child and family. 

 
We will achieve our refreshed strategy for inclusive learning and deliver the five outcomes of 
Every Child Matters by: 
 

• ensuring that all our educational provision in schools and education support services 
is inclusive, providing a wide range of personalised pathways to meet the needs of all 
children and young people 

• building partnerships to meet the wider needs of children and young people with other 
agencies and services with Children Leeds. 

 
Central to these developments is the concept of partnership. We will engage all stakeholders 
in a range of discussions to develop shared understanding and ownership and a sustainable 
commitment to transforming outcomes for all children and young people. 
 
 

 

Page 45



 20

 

 

 

6. Partnership Working 
 

Leeds Domestic Violence Delivery Plan 2008 – 2011 
 
Domestic violence accounts for at least 17% of all violent crime and has significant human 
and financial consequences for individuals, families, communities and services.  
 
Domestic violence is a complex and cross-cutting issue and requires varied levels of 
responses across a wide range of sectors. The Leeds Domestic Violence Delivery Plan 2008 
- 2011 is underpinned by a recognition of and commitment to partnership working and an 
acknowledgement that no single agency can address this issue in isolation.  
 
The overall aim of the strategy is to reduce the level and impact of domestic violence in 
Leeds. 
 
Hate Crime Strategy 
 

Safer Leeds is one of the first community safety partnerships in the country to publish a 
‘Hate Crime’ strategy. It has been designed to provide a framework to deal with all aspects of 
hate crime and has drawn on the valuable lessons learned in the field of racist crime. The 
overall vision of this strategy is to create an environment where no form of hate-motivated 
crime is tolerated.  
 
Hate incidents cannot be dealt with by any single agency in isolation because the issues 
involved are usually cross cutting and impact upon more than one agency or organisation. 
Such incidents require a multi-agency joined-up approach to effectively tackle them. It is 
extremely important that all reports of hate crime are dealt with consistently and investigated 
thoroughly and that, wherever possible, offenders are prosecuted.   
 
The strategy aims to provide a comprehensive and consistent approach to tackling hate 
incidents across the city and offers advice and guidance to all organisations in their response 
to hate incidents. It sets out a clear vision for further work in Leeds to increase public 
awareness and increase reporting of incidents in order to establish a base line from which to 
work. Once a clearer picture is established, then appropriate responses can be made. It also 
provides an opportunity for agencies to create an environment where hate crime is not 
tolerated. 
 
It aims to: 
 

• increase awareness, reporting and recording of hate crime incidents   

• improve service response to victims 

• improve responses to deal with perpetrators of hate crime  

• develop preventative and educational activity to address hate incidents.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



 21

 
 
 
7. Procurement  
 

Leeds City Council spends millions of pounds every year on contracts with private and 
voluntary organisations for goods, works and services. All groups in our communities have a 
right to expect that public money is spent on local services which suit their needs, that it is 
spent in a way that promotes equality of opportunity and delivers high-quality goods and 
services. Promoting equality and diversity through procurement is important. 
 

We will develop our approach to ensure that all our services, whether delivered directly or 
through a contractor or commissioning arrangement, take equality considerations into 
account and improve the development of their skills through a bespoke programme of 
learning provided by an external work-based learning provider and funded/part-funded by the 
Learning and Skills Council. 
 

 

8. Residents Survey 
 

An independent organisation was commissioned by Leeds City Council to undertake 
planning and delivery of the Leeds Annual Survey 2007 following on from the first Annual 
Survey in 2005. This major consultation exercise combined national benchmarking questions 
and localised questions covering a range of topics. 
 
The aim of the project was to measure and benchmark satisfaction levels across several 
aspects of the service offered by the council including how people feel about the place they 
live in, the quality of local services, what facilities and services people wish to see improved 
and given priority, and the ease of communicating with local service providers. 
 
In total, 2,171 face-to-face interviews were completed, set against a quota of age, gender 
and area. 
 
Examples of responses: 
 

• Of a list of services provided or supported by the council, respondents who used 
them were most likely to say they were satisfied with libraries (89%), and theatres 
and concert halls (89%). The most significant increases in user satisfaction are 13 
percentage points for keeping public open spaces clean (up from 52% to 65%), 10 
percentage points for theatres and concert halls (up from 79% in 2005) and parks 
and open spaces (up from 72% to 81%). 

• Three-quarters of respondents said they feel they belong to their neighbourhood 
and nearly half (49%) said they feel that local people work together to improve 
their neighbourhood. 

• Respondents were most likely (35%) to say that teenagers hanging around on the 
street was a problem for them. This was followed by rubbish and litter lying around 
(33%) and parents not taking responsibility for the behaviour of their children 
(31%). 

• Half (51%) of respondents said they think that the council keeps residents well 
informed about the services and benefits it provides. 

• The greatest proportion (69%) of respondents agreed that the service providers in 
the Leeds area are responsive to their needs. 

Page 47



 22

              
 

Work is currently being undertaken to develop proposals to ensure that results from 
residents and staff surveys will inform action plans to improve work in these areas. 
 

Page 48



 23

Key Equality and Diversity Improvement Tools and Techniques 
 

This Scheme sets out our approach to equality and diversity for the next three years and our 
corporate equality and diversity action plan. The action plan includes specific actions we will 
take for age, disability, gender, race, religion or belief and sexual orientation. The plan shows 
our strategic actions, responsibility for the actions, the timescales for delivery, and the 
expected outcomes.  
 
Each directorate and its services are responsible for helping deliver the Corporate Equality 
and Diversity Action Plan. Monitoring and management of our equality and diversity work is 
embedded into our existing performance management systems. 
 
There are a number of key tools and techniques which the council has adopted to help it 
deliver against overall objectives and these will enable the achievement of progress in 
equality and diversity. 
  
 
Service Planning  
 
Service Planning is used to help continuously review and improve the way services are 
provided to best meet the needs of existing and potential customers. It links the service with 
the council’s values and priorities and shows how the service will contribute to delivering 
these. 
 
Service Planning provides a clear statement of areas which the service will concentrate on 
improving over a 12-month period. It outlines the actions and resources needed to achieve 
these improvements, details the way success will be measured, and how and when it will be 
reviewed to track progress throughout the year. 
 
The Service Plan is a high level strategic document rather than a work programme or a list of 
actions for the year. It focuses on a small number of really key issues and links into budget 
planning, the Council Plan and other relevant strategy documents such as the Domestic 
Violence Strategy, the Children and Young People’s Plan and the Equality and Diversity 
Scheme. All services across the council produce a Service Plan each year. 
 
During 2007 the guidance and supporting documents for developing a Service Plan were 
reviewed and improved and as a result equality, diversity and community cohesion impact 
assessments were included within the new guidance. The intention is to help all services 
consider equality, diversity and community cohesion within their annual service review, to 
improve service delivery, to recruit, retain and develop their workforce, and to communicate 
and promote progress. 
 
 
Equality Standard for Local Government 
 
In 2002 Leeds City Council adopted the Equality Standard for Local Government.  
The Standard recognises the importance of fair and equal treatment in local government 
services and employment. 
 
It has been developed primarily as a tool to enable local authorities to mainstream age, 
disability, gender, race, religion or belief, and sexual orientation into council policy and 
practice at all levels. 

Page 49



 24

There are five levels to the Equality Standard and directorates and services are required to 
provide evidence of how they meet the requirements set out within each level of the 
standard.  
 
As the council has continued to progress through the standard we have improved the 
collection of information that evidences our work, enabling us to monitor performance, 
identify areas for improvement and take appropriate action. A challenge for the organisation 
is to not only provide evidence that the processes are established and being used but also 
that information is being used to make a difference to: 
 

• promote equality of opportunity for all 

• eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation 

• promote good relations 

• encourage participation and involvement. 
 
Leeds City Council has achieved level 3 of the Equality Standard for local government and 
has set a target of achieving level 5 by 2010. 
 

 
Equality Monitoring  
 

Equality monitoring is the process of gathering and analysing equality information in relation 
to customers and staff. This shows the extent to which services and employment 
opportunities are accessed by all communities, and enables the council to identify areas for 
improvement.  
 
Having appropriate and sufficient equality monitoring information helps the council to: 
 

• provide benchmarks with which to set targets for improvement 

• compare results with targets 

• identify the need for new or changed services or employment policies 

• promote equality of opportunity, cohesion and integration 

• highlight satisfaction levels by different communities 

• highlight if any policies are not complying with equality legislation 

• identify if any policies are adversely affecting people from different communities 

• show the numbers of particular communities using services and what outcomes they 
experience 

• measure the effectiveness of service changes. 
 
The council’s approach to equality monitoring has been developed during the life of the 
Equality and Diversity Strategy to include all equality areas.  
 
The monitoring for disabled people has been increased to establish the type of impairments 
that disabled people have. This will be useful in relation to identifying barriers to service 
delivery or employment or for assessing their satisfaction with such services. We use the 
types as specified by current legislation:  
 

• Physical impairment 

• Sensory impairment 

• Mental health condition 

• Learning difficulty 

Page 50



 25

• Long-standing illness or health condition, such as cancer, HIV, diabetes, chronic 
heart disease, or epilepsy. 

 
Access needs are established separately and we aim to meet these needs wherever we are 
aware of them. 
 
Sexual orientation and religion and belief are now also monitored in order to establish 
understanding of differences experienced by these communities. In addition residency is 
included as this will help in collecting information about our new and emerging communities.  
 
Full guidance on the equality monitoring process is available on our website at 
www.leeds.gov.uk/equality or from the Equality Team. 
 
 
Impact Assessments 
 

Our impact assessment process helps us to put equality, diversity and community cohesion 
at the heart of everything we do, from strategic decision making to the delivery of front-line 
services. It is a process which considers all our current and proposed policies and activities 
to ensure they do not disadvantage black and minority ethnic people, disabled people, men, 
women and transgender people, and people of different ages, religion or belief, or sexual 
orientation. 
 
By undertaking Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion impact assessments we are 
able to: 
 

• identify how services can be improved to meet the needs of existing and potential 
customers 

• ensure that different groups are equally served by our policies or decisions; 

• avoid adopting unfair policies and procedures 

• identify where policies and activities can be more effective in promoting equality of 
opportunity and positive attitudes to, and good relations between, different groups. 

 
Services across the council have developed priority lists for equality, diversity and 
community cohesion impact assessments to take place over the next 3 years, and a 
summary of key assessments is outlined in Appendix 2. 
 
Full guidance on the impact assessment process is available on our website at 
www.leeds.gov.uk/equality or from the Equality Team. 
   
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 26

Involvement and Consultation 
 
1. The Corporate Approach to Consultation 
 
Community engagement helps us to develop an understanding of the needs of our citizens 
and communities, by listening and by offering them a greater say in and influence on what 
happens in their city. 
 
Leeds City Council values all of the people of Leeds and recognises the contribution that 
individuals make to the development of the city. Community engagement is essential to 
improving services. It helps to unite local people and communities and builds citizenship and 
community pride.  
 
Leeds is now home to growing communities of much greater diversity than even 5 years ago 
and this diversity is constantly changing. We ensure that everyone has an opportunity to 
contribute including people with disabilities, of different races, religion or belief, gender, age 
or sexuality. We have a statutory responsibility to consult with our citizens, users and 
groups and communities. The Vision for Leeds 2004 – 2020 also makes a commitment to 
develop a more strategic approach to community engagement. As a partner of the Leeds 
Initiative, the council shares this aspiration. 
 
We have a “good practice” working group to improve and refine the appropriateness and 
quality of consultation and engagement, and more widely we contribute to and benefit from 
the West Yorkshire Consultation Network. 
 
We produced a Corporate Engagement Strategy in partnership with other stakeholders to 
help our staff in understanding the different engagement methods available to them and we 
will shortly be rolling out an electronic portal called ‘Talking Point’. This is an online 
application for managing consultation and research projects and a gateway to find out what 
consultation is being conducted across the council and which reports on the results of 
previous consultation are available. The portal and database will ensure that we reduce any 
potential for duplicating consultation and that ultimately we can share the facility with our 
partners. 
 

Within Leeds we have adopted six different types of community engagement: 
 

• researching needs, priorities and attitudes 

• providing information to communities 

• consulting communities about actions/decisions 

• involving communities in shaping plans 

• acting together 

• empowering communities to take responsibility for making decisions or delivering 
services with our support. 

 

We recognise that successful community engagement can be achieved where a mix of 
approaches are used. Our community engagement activities ensure that the way the council 
consults and engages is consistent and co-ordinated and that all activities are monitored and 
evaluated. 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



 27

 
2. Corporate Equality Consultation 
 
For a number of years we have supported corporate equality consultation forums covering 
the traditional equality strands of race, women and disability. Although current arrangements 
have served us well in terms of engaging with these communities, the agenda is changing; 
different equality needs and equality-related groups are emerging. 
 
We recognise the need to consult with and involve a wider range of communities in decision-
making processes, and in the planning and delivery of services, including the lesbian, gay 
and bisexual community, young people, older people and people from religious and faith-
based organisations. A different type of engagement is needed to reflect the complex make-
up of these diverse equality-related communities across Leeds. Learning from our past 
experiences, we need to improve how we engage with diverse communities across the city 
and to make our arrangements even more effective and responsive. 
 
During 2007 a review of our existing arrangements took place with the purpose of identifying 
gaps and providing an appraisal of the way in which the council engages with all of its 
diverse communities — leading to proposals that would bring about an improvement in the 
way that equality groups can effectively contribute to, and influence, the way in which 
services are delivered to them.  
 
The review included facilitating a series of workshops with a range of equality forums and 
networks, a number of one-to-one meetings, and a series of workshops with other 
stakeholders.  
 
The review concluded that:  

• there are currently a range of positive documents, guidance and toolkits in place to 
guide our equality consultation and engagement activity 

• there are generally good relationships in place between many equality groups and 
Leeds City Council staff 

• there are some very well developed one-to-one relationships between community 
leaders, elected members and officers 

• the council has a relatively long history and tradition of supporting equality forums for 
the traditional equality areas, women, black and minority ethnic community members 
and disabled people. 

 
It was agreed to shift from a model of consultation to one of involvement, ensuring that a 
community development approach was adopted, moving away from one-off events to 
developing long-term and sustainable relationships. A community-led Equalities Assembly 
will now be established consisting of all equality strands and communities of interest. At the 
centre of the Equalities Assembly will be a Community Equalities Champion Network of 
individuals who are supported to provide a voice/representation on behalf of the diverse 
community they come from. 
 
Equality Hubs will be established representing at the minimum the following communities:  
black and minority ethnic; gender; lesbian, gay and bisexual people; older people;  
disabled people; young people; and faith communities. They will consist of existing 
individuals and organisations but also new and emerging groups, ensuring that no-one is 
excluded and that opportunities for duplication are reduced. The Community Equality 
Champions will be drawn from the Equality Hubs.  

Page 53



 28

3. Community Involvement with Services 
 
Services continue to develop initiatives to actively involve representatives from communities 
in helping to improve provision and access to their service. These include developing 
community consultation forums, visiting communities, using questionnaires and holding 
focus groups. 
 
Consultation has traditionally tended to focus on women, black and minority ethnic people 
and disabled people. The wider breadth of equality areas is now being considered by 
services and a move to improve involvement based on the proposals from the corporate 
equality consultation review. 
 
4. Staff Networks and Groups 
 
Staff networks and groups are useful forums not just for staff acquiring peer support but also 
for specific equality areas to have an active role in influencing decision-making processes 
across the organisation. Traditionally these have focused on disability, women and black and 
minority ethnic people.  
 
We have four corporate staff groups; the black and minority ethnic staff network, disabled 
staff network, women’s staff network and lesbian, gay and bisexual staff network. These are 
supported by Directorate support groups. 
 
The chairs and deputies of these staff networks and groups meet on a regular basis as 
members of the Staff Diversity Forum to provide opportunities for generic equality issues to 
be raised. 
 
The role, purpose and function of staff networks and groups will be evaluated during 2008 - 
2009. 
 
5. Challenge Forums 
 
Challenge Forums are also being developed within directorates. The objective of these 
forums will be to encourage employees to embed equality and diversity throughout the 
directorates and to help determine the extent to which equality and diversity actions are 
making a difference to the lives of our employees and customers. 
 
6. Compliments and Complaints  
 

We recognise that not everyone wants or has the time to be involved with meetings and 
forums and a simple way of making a difference is when people give feedback directly to 
services. 
 
As well as completing questionnaires and attending focus groups, individual services can 
encourage people to use the compliments and complaints procedure to let them know what 
they are doing well and what problems have been encountered. This information can be 
used to help improve service delivery and policy. 
 
 

 

 
 

Page 54



 29

Improving Our Approach to Equality and Diversity 
 

1. Equality and Diversity Strategy Review 
 
During 2007 the Equality Team led a review to: 
 

• identify areas for improvement in our approach to equality and diversity 

• identify strategic equality, diversity, cohesion and integration priorities 

• involve representatives of all our stakeholders in the development and 
implementation of our future approaches to equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration for 2008 – 2011. 

 
Before the review began the Equality Team had already identified some areas to improve 
within the existing strategy. The needs identified by the Equality Team and also via the 
review and constructive criticism received from individuals and groups were to: 
 

• have clear evidence of specific priorities and targets for each equality area – race, 
disability, men, women, sexual orientation, religion or belief and age 

• increase participation of interested groups both internal and external, in developing 
the strategy and supporting documents   

• focus on outcomes – what difference is being made and to whom 

• simplify the action plan and performance management of the strategy 

• improve accountability and challenge of the council’s progress 

• call the future strategy a “scheme” as this is how legislation describes what needs 
to be in place and is what people ask for when contacting the council. 

 
In implementing the review the Equality Team aimed to involve representatives from all our 
stakeholders: customers, staff, councillors, community groups, residents, trade unions and 
partner agencies. 
 
In the first instance a questionnaire was designed that could be completed by individuals or 
groups and/or used as prompts by individuals or groups and/or partner agencies to consider 
barriers experienced by people from different equality areas, actions to take to reduce or 
remove those barriers, and equality and diversity priorities for the next 3 years. 
 
Equality monitoring information was matched against the responses within the questionnaire 
and helped to identify priorities for specific equality areas as well as providing reassurance 
that all equality areas were being represented. For example, the disability responses 
included those who identified as having: hearing impairments; long-term health conditions; 
physical impairments and learning difficulties. 
 
These were then followed by a series of focus groups and meetings to ensure a wide range 
of individuals and groups were able to be involved in the review process. 
 
During the development of the scheme consideration was given to ensure inclusive 
involvement for all groups.  Specific targeted work took place to ensure involvement of 
disabled people in the development of the scheme. 
 

• Focus Groups – these were held in December 2007. Two were held for disability; 
and one each for gender, black and minority ethnic, sexual orientation, religion or 
belief, and age.  

Page 55



 30

 

• Leeds Involvement Project Consortium – A joint meeting of representatives 
from the Equality Team and the Leeds Involvement Project Consortium to discuss 
their priorities. The Consortium had developed this following contact and 
involvement from representatives of all impairment groups: physical impairments; 
sensory impairment; hearing impairment; learning difficulties; long-term health 
conditions and mental health issues. 

 

• Leeds Voice – held an event in October 2007 to consider “What makes good 
community relations?” Using the questionnaire as a prompt the event was 
attended by a broad range of voluntary, community and faith sector organisations.  

 

• Corporate Staff Groups – The staff support groups and networks have supported 
individuals to complete the online questionnaire and/or use it to prompt ideas for 
developing priorities. In addition, an equality and diversity workshop was held at a 
City Development’s Women’s Conference during 2007 and was used to gain the 
additional views of women during the process.  

 
Work has also taken place with individual council officers and the Joint Trade Union 
Committee.  
 
Feedback was given to all participants who took part in the review and the scheme 
development.  Specific feedback was given to a group of disabled people who had been 
involved, outlining how their contributions would be included in the scheme. 
 
Alongside considerable involvement with a wide range of stakeholders, desktop research 
has also taken place, and has involved an analysis of:  
 

• existing local and national research  

• Comprehensive Performance Assessment – initial findings from the Audit 
commission’s inspection carried out in December 2007 

• existing anti-discrimination legislation 

• changes being implemented to National Best Value Performance Indicators 

• Equalities Review – fairness and freedom. An independent review 
commissioned by the Prime Minister  

• findings from the Residents’ Survey 

• findings from the Staff Survey. 
 
A report was produced in February 2008 that: 
 

• summarised our current approach to equality and diversity 

• explained how improvements were identified through our review 

• detailed the outcomes of the analysis which will inform our corporate work and 
clarify what we intend to do with contributions that were service specific. 

 
A key element of this report was setting out the draft equality and diversity priorities 
developed from all hose who contributed to the review, and which was distributed with a 
request for any further comments. 
 
A meeting took place in late February 2008 to specifically engage the disabled community to 
ensure that further contributions were captured. 

Page 56



 31

 
All feedback received has been used to further improve the priorities set out in this Scheme. 
 
2. Guidance 
 
Throughout the review process individuals and groups suggested developing guidance that 
would help people to deliver the Equality and Diversity Agenda. This will be developed 
during the first year of the Scheme, and we will use information gathered from the review 
process as well as involvement from appropriate experts. 
 

3. Continued Involvement 
 
Effective challenge of the council’s equality and diversity progress is an important aspect of 
continued involvement: 
 

• Community groups and representatives will have an opportunity to contribute to 
and challenge the progress of the Scheme and the corporate equality and 
diversity action plan through the Equalities Assembly  

• Staff networks across the council will also have an opportunity through the 
Corporate Staff Diversity Forum to contribute to and challenge progress 

• Members have a vital role in bringing robust challenge to our performance by 
analysing the corporate performance reports through the political leadership 
team, Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Scrutiny Boards. 

 

 
Attached at Appendix 3 is an overview of the information gained from different equality 
communities via focus groups and questionnaires. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



 32

Leadership and Accountability  
 
1. Overview 
 
We are all responsible and accountable for our behaviour and actions towards our 
colleagues, customers, partners, peers, members, communities, friends and family, and the 
citizens of and visitors to, the city. As such we all have a role to play in treating people with 
dignity and respect. 
 
However, there are specific responsibilities and accountability for ensuring equality diversity 
is delivered within the council.  
 
Elected members are responsible for setting policies that are non-discriminatory and which 
promote equality and diversity for all employees and service users. 
 
The Chief Executive is responsible for implementing these policies through Directors, Chief 
Officers and Heads of Services. 
 
Directors, Chief Officers and Heads of Services are responsible for ensuring that all 
employees, customers, contractors and suppliers are aware of the policy and that the policy 
is implemented in all parts of the management and departmental structures. Practices within 
each directorate and service should be monitored and reviewed to ensure equality and 
diversity is promoted in all its forms and that there are no discriminatory practices which 
affect employees or the service they provide. 
 
Managers and supervisors are responsible for recruiting, training, promoting and 
implementing conditions of service and council policies in a manner that is non-
discriminatory. They should comply with the spirit and intention of this policy in carrying out 
their duties and in managing staff and services. 
 
All employees make a positive contribution to equality and diversity by treating people with 
respect and promoting equality and diversity. 
 
2. Supporting Structures 
 
Supporting structures have now been agreed to ensure that we are able to deliver on our 
equality and diversity improvement priorities while ensuring ownership at all levels. 
 
The Corporate Leadership Team provides strategic leadership and organisational direction 
for the equality and diversity improvement priorities agenda.  
 
The Resource and Performance Board, on behalf of the Corporate Leadership Team, will 
have responsibility for moving the agenda forward, driving organisational development and 
monitoring progress.  
 
Delivery would be tasked to an Equality and Diversity Group which would be set up as a 
subgroup to the Resources and Performance Board. Work is currently underway to develop  
terms of reference and roles and responsibilities for this group. 
 
This group will work in partnership with the Stronger Communities Outcomes Group which is 
responsible for the Cohesion and Integration Plan 2008 - 2011 to ensure linkages between 
the two interlinked policy agendas.  

Page 58



 33

Reporting on the Progress of the Scheme 
 
This Scheme sets out our approach to equality and diversity for the next three years and our 
corporate Equality and Diversity Action Plan. The action plan includes specific actions we will 
take for age, disability, gender, race, religion or belief, and sexual orientation. The plan 
shows our strategic actions, responsibility for the actions, the timescale for delivery and the 
expected outcomes.  
 
Directorates and Services are responsible for helping deliver the corporate Equality and 
Diversity Action Plan. Monitoring and management of our equality and diversity work is 
embedded into our existing performance management systems. 
 
We will continue to report publicly each year on our progress towards meeting our outcomes 
and priorities set out within our Scheme. The Equality Team is responsible for using the 
information provided in the six-monthly reports by Directorates along with any challenges, to 
produce an annual overview of our progress.  
 
These six-monthly reports will be made available to our external and internal stakeholder 
challenge forums. This will provide an opportunity for key decision makers and interested 
stakeholders to challenge progress, support delivery and identify and address any issues 
that affect the whole organisation. 
 
The Scheme will be reviewed at least every 3 years and a revised Scheme developed 
following the review (subject to any major legislative changes). Annual reports on progress 
will be produced and published. 
 
We will ensure continued involvement of all stakeholders will take place during this period. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



 34

Equality and Diversity Policy 
 
Mission statement 
 
“The mission of the Council is to bring the benefits of a prosperous, vibrant and attractive city 
to all the people of Leeds”. 
 
Commitment 
 
We are one of the largest employers in the city and provider of public services to a 
population of almost three-quarters of a million people. 
 
We consult and engage with a wide range of groups and individuals in the community to 
shape our services and our overall goal is to close the gap between those enjoying the 
wealth of the city and disadvantaged communities who experience high levels of 
unemployment and crime, low income and skills levels, poor health and low educational 
achievement. 
 
Equal opportunities in the council is about making sure that everyone can fully join in the 
social, cultural, political and economic life of the city. We are committed to treating our staff, 
and the people of Leeds, fairly. We will make sure that we do not discriminate against people 
because of their age, impairment, ethnic origin, nationality, religious belief, social class, 
gender, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, marital status, responsibility for 
dependents, trade union activity or for any other unfair reason. 
 
We want to make sure that we take equality and diversity into account, in a positive way, at 
every stage of our work. We will make sure that we follow equal opportunities policies in the 
way that we recruit and treat our staff, deliver our services, consult the people of Leeds, and 
work with other organisations. 
 
We will take all reasonable steps to prevent a provision, criterion or practice applied by or on 
behalf of us, as an employer or service provider from placing a disabled person at a 
substantial disadvantage compared with persons who are not disabled. This will apply to 
employment and occupation and the provision of goods, facilities, services and premises.  
 
Making a Difference 
 
We have developed a policy with a clear vision to ensure fair and open access to services 
and employment. We recognise the need for continuous improvement and the following 
actions will enable us to do this: 
 
Employment, Learning and Development 
 
We want to have a workforce that reflects the diverse communities of our city, performs well, 
is constantly learning, and is able to pursue career development through all levels of the 
council without discrimination. We will provide support through: 
 

• employment policies that secure flexible and fair working practices 

• school placements, mentoring, shadowing and supported trainee schemes 

• employment initiatives to support disabled people 

• a range of learning and development opportunities. 
 

Page 60



 35

Stronger Communities 
 
To help us listen to the views of people in Leeds we have set up various community groups, 
where representatives from different communities can give their views and ask us to take 
action on various issues. These include: 

 

• Area Management Committees 

• The Citizen’s Panel 

• Youth Forum 

• Equalities Assembly. 
 
Service Delivery 
 
All Directorates provide annual plans for the services they provide. Equality and diversity 
issues are considered to ensure the needs of minority or disadvantaged groups are taken 
into account. We also monitor the take-up of services to find out if we are failing to meet the 
needs of some sections of the community. 
 
We have set up various key equality services: 
 

• Stop Hate UK — providing support for victims of hate crime 

• Braille, tape and large print service 

• Sign language interpreting service 

• Corporate translation and interpretation service 

• Leeds Inter-Agency Project — providing services for women experiencing domestic 
violence. 

 
Safer Communities 
 
To help create an environment where all forms of hate crime and domestic violence are not 
tolerated, we are active partners in the development and delivery of: 
 

• Leeds Hate Crime Strategy 

• Leeds Domestic Violence Strategy. 
 
Promotion of Equality and Diversity 
 
We want to create an environment where all people in Leeds are respected and valued. We 
will continue to raise the profile of equality and diversity through, for example: 

• “About Leeds” magazine – distributed to all households and carries regular positive 
articles and promotes equality and diversity initiatives and campaigns 

• Producing an annual overview of the council’s achievements in relation to equality 
and diversity.  

 
Measuring Progress 
 
How well we perform on the priorities and outcomes we have developed on equality and 
diversity will be monitored through the council’s performance management framework. 
 
We are all responsible and accountable for our behaviour and actions towards our 
colleagues, customers, partners, peers, members, communities, friends and family, and the 

Page 61



 36

citizens of and visitors to the city. As such we all have a role to play in treating people with 
dignity and respect. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



 37

Equality and Diversity Outcomes and Priorities 2008 - 2011 
 
The equality and diversity outcomes and priorities were revised following the review of the 
Equality and Diversity Strategy 2006 – 2008, which included the involvement and 
consultation of a wide range of stakeholders and partners during 2007. 
 
The identified priorities have been divided into five themed areas, as follows:  
 

• employment, training and development 

• safer and stronger communities 

• service delivery 

• stronger communities 

• promotion of equality and diversity. 
 

Generally, priorities within these themes are similar for all equality areas (race, disability, 
gender, sexual orientation, religion or belief and age). However there are some priorities that 
are specific to particular equality areas. These have been identified in the action plan. 
 
All of these outcomes and priorities have been matched to ensure that they support the 
delivery of the Leeds Strategic Plan and Leeds Business Plan improvement priorities. 
 
  
1. Employment, Learning and Development 
 

Plan Improvement priority 

Leeds Strategic 
Plan 

Enhance the skill level of the workforce to fulfil individual and 
economic potential 

Leeds Business 
Plan 

Ensure colleagues reflect the diversity of our communities 

 
Equality and Diversity Outcome  
 
Our staff reflect the diverse communities of our city, perform well, are constantly learning, 
and are able to develop their careers through all levels of the council without discrimination. 
 
Equality Improvement Priorities 
 

• Equality monitoring employment, training and development through development of 
the change to the Human Resource Management System: 

 
o Recruitment and selection: application, short listing and appointment 
o Voluntary leavers 
o Grievance and disciplinary 
o Attendance at training and development 
o Appraisals 
 

• Development of an action plan to deliver employment targets presently linked to best 
value performance indicators: 

 
o Increase the representation of women in senior management positions 

Page 63



 38

o Increase the representation of black and minority ethnic staff in senior 
management positions 

o Increase the representation of disabled staff in senior management positions 
o Increase the number of staff declaring they meet the Disability Discrimination 

Act as a percentage of the total workforce 
o Increase the number of black and minority ethnic employees as a percentage 

of the total workforce 
 

• Addressing the requirements of the Single Status Agreement with respect to equal 
pay legislation — specifically relating to men and women 

• Developing and delivering improved equality and diversity training and development 
to provide a range of learning and development opportunities that challenge 
stereotypes and assumptions, promote equality, diversity and human rights and 
explore responsibility 

• Continue to undertake equality, diversity and community cohesion impact 
assessments of employment policies, guidance and human resources initiatives 

• Raising the profile of what harassment, discrimination and victimisation are 

• Continued support for staff groups. 
 
 
2. Safer Communities 
 

Plan Improvement priority 

Leeds  Strategic 
Plan 

Reduce bullying and harassment 

Leeds Business 
Plan 

Build trust with local communities to encourage greater engagement 

 
Equality and Diversity Outcome 
 
Leeds is a city where hate crime and domestic violence is not tolerated.  
 
Equality Improvement Priorities 
 

• Increase promotion of reporting hate crime issues and incidents 

• Increase recording of hate crime issues and incidents 

• Increase service responses to victims of hate crime issues and incidents 

• Improve access to services for women experiencing domestic violence 

• Improve access to services for children and young people witnessing and/or 
experiencing domestic violence 

 
Reporting hate crime issues, incidents and bullying and taking action focuses on: race, 
disability, sexual orientation and in particular gay men, transgender/transsexual people and 
older people.  
 
It is recognised that domestic violence occurs in same sex relationships, by women against 
men and by other family members. However, the majority of domestic violence incidents and 
the most serious and repeated acts are committed by men against women and children, and 
young people are often witnesses to domestic violence. 
 
 

Page 64



 39

 
 
 
 
 
3. Service Delivery 
 

Plan Improvement priority 

Leeds Strategic 
Plan 

Develop extended services, using sites across the city, to improve 
support to children, families and communities 

Leeds Business 
Plan 

Ensure fair access to all our services 

 
Equality and Diversity Outcome 
 
Leeds City Council provides fair access to services which meet the needs of our diverse 
communities and individuals. 
 
Equality and Diversity Priorities 
 

• Equality and diversity is considered within the procurement and management of 
contracts where services have been, or are planned to be outsourced 

• Providing accessible information in the promotion of services 

• Improve access to local authority buildings open to the public 

• Increase the number of equality, diversity and community cohesion  impact 
assessments to identify and reduce or remove barriers to accessing services 
experienced by any particular groups   

• Increase promotion of the barriers experienced by different equality groups/areas 
 
Providing accessible information in the promotion of services is a priority particularly for: 
disabled people, young and older people, black and minority ethnic people and women. 
 
Although positively impacting on everyone, improving access to local authority buildings is a 
specific priority for disabled people and there are key performance indicators in place. 
 
4. Stronger Communities 
 

Plan Improvement priority 

Leeds Strategic 
Plan 

An increased number of local people engaged in activities to meet 
community needs and improve the quality of life for local residents 

Leeds Business 
Plan 

Increase involvement, engagement and participation of all our diverse 
communities  

 
Equality and Diversity Outcome 
 
Leeds is a city that values the contributions of all the people of Leeds and actively engages 
with all our diverse communities. 
 
Equality and Diversity Priorities 
 

• Develop effective participation, involvement and challenge mechanisms 

Page 65



 40

• Increase promotion of participation, involvement and challenge mechanisms and 
associated activities 

• Increase representative participation, involvement and challenge 

• Increased involvement of users in improving services 

• Increase local initiatives and events for all equality and diversity areas 
 
With the exception of religion or belief representatives, all equality areas identified the same 
priorities for inclusive participation and involvement. Although often visible, men expressed 
concern that their needs and barriers to services, employment, training and development 
were often not considered. 
 
5. Promotion of Equality and Diversity 
 

Plan Improvement priority 

Leeds Strategic 
Plan 

An increased sense of belonging and pride in local neighbourhoods 
that help to build cohesive communities 

Leeds Business 
Plan 

Embed equality and diversity throughout the organisation 

 
Equality and Diversity Outcome  
 
Create an environment where all the people of Leeds are respected and valued.  
 
Equality and Diversity Priorities 
 

• Raise the profile of the positive impact of equality and diversity in service delivery, 
employment, training and development and partnership work 

• Improve links on the council’s website to organisations where people can obtain 
additional advice and/or support 

• Increase the use of positive role models in service delivery, employment, training and 
development and partnership work 

• Increase the promotion of local, national and international equality and diversity 
initiatives and events  

 
As with the stronger communities priorities, all equality areas (race, disability, gender, sexual 
orientation, religion or belief and age) identified the same priorities.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 66



 41

Equality and Diversity Action Plan 
 
The Equality and Diversity Action Plan sets out the activities we will undertake over the next 
3 years to meet our legal duties. 
 
In putting together this plan it should be noted that: 
 

• actions that cover all equality areas (race, disability, gender, age, sexual orientation 
and religion or belief) are listed once to avoid duplication. Those actions that are for 
specific equality areas are identified separately 

 

• the dates for completing all actions have been referenced as: 
 

o Year 1    
o Year 2    
o Year 3    

 

• the action plan is a working and developing document and will be reviewed and 
updated regularly in line with the 6-month performance reports. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



 42

Appendix 1 
 

Equality Legislation 
 

There is a raft of legislation which covers equality and diversity. This is encompassed within: 
 

• Children’s Act 2004 

• Civil Partnership Act 2004 

• Disability Discrimination Act 1995 and 2005 

• Employment Equality (Sexual Orientation) Regulation 2003 

• Employment Equality (Religion and Belief) Regulation 2003 

• Employment Equality (Age) Regulation 2006 

• Equal Pay Act 1970 

• Equality Act 2006 

• Gender Recognition Act 2004 

• Race Relations Act 976 and the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000 

• Sex Discrimination Act 1975 and the Sex Discrimination (Amendment) Act 2006. 
 
The following gives a brief overview of the requirements against each of the equality areas. 
 
Race 
 
The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000 was introduced following the Stephen Lawrence 
Inquiry, and extended the scope of the Race Relations Act 1976. It introduced a new general 
positive duty upon specified public bodies including local authorities to promote race 
equality. The general duty is to have due regard to the need to: 
 

• eliminate unlawful racial discrimination 

• promote equality of opportunity and good race relations between persons of different 
racial groups. 

 
Specific duties were also placed on certain public authorities to help them meet the general 
duty, and include: 
 

• having a race equality scheme with an annual report each year 

• assessing which functions and policies are relevant to the general duty 

• monitoring the negative effect of policies and services 

• assessing and consulting on policies and proposals for adoption 

• publishing the results of any assessments, consultation and monitoring 

• making sure that the public has access to information and services 

• training and briefing staff. 
 
Disability 
 
The Disability Discrimination Act 2005 introduced the Disability Equality Duty which came 
into force in December 2006. The general duty applies to all public authorities, plus 
additional specific duties to support the majority of public authorities in achieving the 
outcomes required by the general duty. 
 
The general duty for disability includes: 
 

Page 68



 43

• promote equality of opportunity for disabled people 

• eliminate discrimination 

• eliminate harassment. 
 
The specific duties which have been established to support progress in delivering the 
general duty are, in brief, to: 
 

• publish a disability equality scheme 

• involve disabled people in its production 

• report on progress 

• review and revise the scheme every 3 years 

• promote equality of opportunity between disabled people and other people 

• eliminate discrimination that is unlawful under the Disability Discrimination Act 

• eliminate harassment of disabled people that is related to their disability 

• promote positive attitudes towards disabled people 

• encourage participation by disabled people in public life 

• take steps to meet disabled peoples’ needs, even if this requires more favourable 
treatment. 

 
Gender 
 
The Gender Equality Duty came into force on 6 April 2007.  
 
A public body in carrying out its functions must have due regard to the need to: 
 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination and harassment on the grounds of sex 

• promote equality of opportunity between women and men. 
 
The specific duties which have been established to support progress in delivering the 
general duty are, in brief to: 
 

• prepare and publish a gender equality scheme, showing how it will meet its general 
and specific duties and setting out our gender equality objectives 

• (in formulating its overall objectives) consider the need to include objectives to 
address the cause of any gender pay gap 

• gather and use information on how the public authority’s policies and practices affect 
gender equality in the workforce and in the delivery of services 

• consult stakeholders (i.e. employees, service users and others, including trade 
unions) and to take account of relevant information in order to determine its gender 
equality objectives 

• assess the impact of its current and proposed policies and practices on gender 
equality 

• implement the actions set out in its scheme within three years, unless it is 
unreasonable or impracticable to do so 

• report against the scheme every year and review the scheme at least every 3 years. 
 
Public authorities will also need to look at how their employment policies affect transgender/ 
transsexual men and women. 
 
 
 

Page 69



 44

 
Sexual Orientation 
 
From 1 December 2003, when the Employment Equality (Sexual Orientation) Regulations 
came into force, it became unlawful to discriminate against workers on the grounds of sexual 
orientation. The regulations also cover providers of vocational training. 

 
The Equality Act extends the regulations to cover the provision of goods, facilities and 
services. The sexual orientation provisions came into force on 30 April 2007. 
 
The regulations prohibit discrimination on the basis of: 
 

• a person’s actual sexual orientation 

• the sexual orientation he or she is thought to have 

• the sexual orientation of someone with whom he or she is associated. 
 
Religion or Belief 
 
From 2 December 2003, when the Employment Equality (Religion or Belief) Regulations 
came into force, it became unlawful to discriminate against workers on the grounds of 
religion or similar belief system. Again, the regulations also apply to providers of vocational 
training. 

 
The Equality Act extends the regulations to cover the provision of goods, facilities and 
services. The religion and belief provisions came into effect on 30 April 2007. 

 
The regulation prohibits discrimination on the basis of: 
 

• a person’s actual religion or belief 

• a religion or belief they are thought to have 

• the religion or belief of someone else with whom they are associated (for instance, 
a friend or member of his or her family). 

 
They also prohibit discrimination against a person on the grounds that he or she does not 
follow a religion or belief system. 
 
This protects people from being discriminated against because, for example, they: 
 

• hold a particular religion 

• are married to a person of a particular religion 

• appear to be of a particular religion because of the way they dress 

• are not a follower of a particular religion. 
 
Age 

 
From 1 October 2006 the Employment Equality (Age) Regulations made it unlawful to 
discriminate against workers, employees, job seekers and trainees because of their age. 
 
These regulations apply to all employers, private and public sector vocational training 
providers, trade unions, professional organisations, employers organisations and trustees 
and managers of occupational pension schemes. 

Page 70



 45

 
 
 
The regulations make it unlawful in relation to employment to: 
 

• discriminate directly against anyone – that is, to treat them less favourably than 
others because of their age – unless the treatment can be objectively justified 

• discriminate indirectly against anyone – that is to apply a criterion, provision or 
practice which disadvantages people of a particular age, unless it can be 
objectively justified 

• subject someone to harassment because of their age 

• victimise someone because they have made or intend to give evidence in relation 
to a complaint of discrimination on the grounds of age 

• discriminate against someone, in certain circumstances, after the working 
relationship has ended. 

 
Upper age limits on unfair dismissal and redundancy have been removed. There is a 
national default retirement age of 65, making compulsory retirement below 65 unlawful 
unless objectively justified. 
 
Employees have the right to request to work beyond 65 or any other retirement age set by 
the employer. The employer has a duty to consider such requests. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71



 46

 
 
 

Appendix 2 
 

Key Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion Impact Assessments to be 
Undertaken 2008 – 11 

 
 

Policy, plan, function Responsibility 

Drugs and Alcohol Policy Corporate HR 
Service 

Dignity at Work Corporate HR 
Service 

JNC Disciplinary Corporate HR 
Service 

Home Working Corporate HR 
Service 

Fixed Term Contracts Corporate HR 
Service 

Early Leavers Initiative Corporate HR 
Service 

One Stop Centres (all 15) Customer Services 

The Contact Centre Customer Services 

Welfare Rights and surgery sites Customer Services 

CITU offices Customer Services 

Taxi and Private Hire* Legal and 
Democratic 

Entertainment Licensing* Legal and 
Democratic 

Electoral Services* Legal and 
Democratic 

Registrars* Legal and 
Democratic 

Local Land Charges* Legal and 
Democratic 

St George House Reception* Legal and 
Democratic 

Chief Executive’s Office Executive Support 

Communications Team (consultation and media) Executive Support 

Director of Children’s Services Unit Reception Children’s Services 

14 – 19 Strategy and Implementation Plan Education Leeds  

Strategic Plans Education Leeds  

Extended Services Core Offer Plans Education Leeds  

Review of new policies Education Leeds  

New transformational strategies Education Leeds  

Human Resources Education Leeds  

Leadership development and governance Education Leeds  

People Development Strategy and the Quality Framework Education Leeds  

Learning Environments: Building Schools for the Future 
Developments 

Education Leeds  

Page 72



 47

Leeds Inclusive Learning Strategy Education Leeds  

School Improvement Strategy Education Leeds  

New Year’s Eve City Development 

Breeze International Youth Festival City Development 

Use of the self-service facility that enables customers to take 
out and return books without queuing for counter service. 

City Development 

Capital schemes, including the refurbishment of libraries, which 
will allow opportunities to improve sites to deliver better service 
to communities. 

City Development 

Provision of parking bays for disabled people City Development 

Highways Asset Management Plan which looks at how the 
City's roads, pavements and footpaths are going to be treated. 

City Development 

LIAP — Communication Environments and 
Neighbourhoods 

Regeneration: Aire Valley — Risk Environments and 
Neighbourhoods 

Regeneration: EASAL Project — Resources Environments and 
Neighbourhoods 

Housing Needs: Care Ring Service Environments and 
Neighbourhoods 

Environmental Health: Out of Hours   Environments and 
Neighbourhoods 

Environmental Health: Adaptations Environments and 
Neighbourhoods 

Housing Needs: Choice-based Lettings Service Environments and 
Neighbourhoods 

Piloting of the Budget Holding Lead Professional arrangements 
for looked after children 

Children and Young 
People Social Care 

Access to Services Children and Young 
People Social Care 

Improving the quality of assessment and care management 
(11) 

Children and Young 
People Social Care 

Reconfiguration of disability services Children and Young 
People Social Care 

Transitions Children and Young 
People Social Care 

Continuing Health Care Children and Young 
People Social Care  

Participation (3) Children and Young 
People Social Care 

Review of placements (and related decision making) (8, 10) Children and Young 
People Social Care 

Contact Children and Young 
People Social Care 

Direct Payments Children and Young 
People Social Care 

CART Children and Young 
People Social Care 

Redesign of day services function, development of specialist 
services and access to universal service 

Adult Social Care 

Redesign intermediate tier services function, development of Adult Social Care 

Page 73



 48

specialist services and access to universal service 

Ensure links to non ILP properties are maintained and impact 
on day services is considered 

Adult Social Care 

Prepare ‘whole’ service plan incorporating service priorities and 
responsibilities for delivery 

Adult Social Care 

Collaborative working and new service delivery models Adult Social Care 

Review opportunities for closer working with other 
organisations including health, voluntary and independent 
sector 

Adult Social Care 

Provision of hostel in line with independent living requirements Adult Social Care 

Review of current systems for supporting people from 
childhood into adults 

Adult Social Care 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



 49

Appendix 3 
Key Issues from Focus Groups 
 
The following provides an overview of the information gained from the different equality 
communities via focus groups and questionnaires:  
 
Concerns for Age 
 

• There is a need to understand about welfare rights, benefits and funding streams 
available 

• There is very little provision for older people in the city centre particularly at weekends 

• Access can be an issue due to poor lighting and stairs 

• Access to transport is a concern 

• More outreach work would ensure more involvement in decision making 

• People need to have feedback and see the results of involvement 

• Would appreciate more ongoing engagement from councillors 

• Insufficient facilities and work done with young people  

• Lack of respect for young people from older people 

• The complaints procedure should be widely promoted 

• Leeds City Council staff need a better awareness of the issues of older and younger 
people 

• Contracted out services, particularly in the case of Adult Social Care, has reduced 
decreased the quality of the service, and there is a general lack of respect for the 
elderly 

• Barriers to employment as a result of age-related stereotypes or recruitment methods 
which target younger people 

 
 
Priorities for Age 
 

• Information and communication 

• Challenge stereotyping 

• Role models for younger people 

• Safe public transport for children 

• Integration for children 

• Involvement in decision making 

• Improving services delivered through contractors  
 
Concerns for Black and Minority Ethnic 
 

• Information and communication need to be more accessible 

• Lack of awareness of different communities by staff and councillors 

• Stereotyping 

• Negative media and press 

• There needs to be an infrastructure support for local community groups 

• Employment opportunities are not open 

• Equality monitoring would benefit from being more detailed 

• There needs to be more real involvement 

• There is a lack of trust in the complaints procedure 

Page 75



 50

• Contracted out services, particularly in the case of Social Care, do not understand the 
needs of black and minority ethnic communities 

 
Priorities for Black and Minority Ethnic 
 

• Increase staff awareness of different communities, using local trainers/people 

• Prioritise service-specific issues where these are identified  

• Involvement in decision making 

• Challenge stereotyping, by both staff and councillors 

• Reduce employment barriers, and increase employment for black and minority ethnic 
community 

• Raise awareness of how to challenge the system 
 
Concerns for Disability 
 

• There is a need for a genuinely disabled representative body 

• There is a need to recognise the work of voluntary organisations 

• Lifetime homes should remain so even when a disabled person has vacated the 
property 

• Middle managers do not have sufficient understanding of disability issues 

• Access to transport is a concern 

• Access to shops  

• Access to meetings – these need to start after 10.30am 

• More real involvement 

• Needs to be more flexibility in system – people taken into hospital should have library 
fines disregarded 

• Wheelie bins and cars on pavements 

• Overgrown hedges and unstable pavements 

• Street lighting 

• Services for deaf people are limited and not accessible 

• There are problems with outsourcing home care 

• Useful to have a councillor as a disability champion 
 
Priorities for Disability 
 

• All decisions need to be impact assessed, and leaders be accountable 

• Increase managers’ awareness of different communities, using local trainers/people 

• Change the culture of the council 

• Respite facilities 

• Reduce employment barriers, and increase employment for disabled community 

• Eligibility criteria within Adult Social Care 

• Maintenance of paths 

• Access to buildings 

• Be positive about disabled people  
 
Concerns for Gender 
 

• Transgender should be linked to gender not lesbian, gay and bisexual 

• Increase staff and managers’ awareness of gender issues 

• Contracted out services do not understand the needs of different communities 

Page 76



 51

• Stereotyping 

• Harassment and hate crime 

• Information and communication 

• Employment barriers 
 
Priorities for Gender 
 

• Increase staff awareness of different communities 

• Services to be gender specific where needed e.g. domestic violence 

• Multi-agency approach to hate crime 

• Challenge stereotyping, by both staff and councillors 

• Include transgender on equality monitoring forms 
 
Concerns for Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual 
 

• Stereotyping 

• Increase staff and managers’ awareness of gender issues 

• Negative media portrayal 

• Procurement needs to take account of needs of lesbian, gay and bisexual community 

• Lesbian, gay and bisexual couples wanting to adopt are treated differently than 
heterosexual couples 

• Homophobic bullying in schools 

• Residential housing for older lesbian, gay and bisexual couples 
 
Priorities for Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual 
 

• Increase staff awareness of different communities 

• Hate crime and homophobic bullying 

• Improving services delivered through contractors  

• Impact assess service 

• Reduce stereotyping 

• Undertake sexuality monitoring 

• Provide links on website to support organisations 
 
Concerns for Religion and Belief 
 

• Need for more equal funding for different religious groups and associated events 

• Hold multi- and cross-cultural events in the community 

• Information and communication via religious buildings and community groups 

• Need to provide feedback 

• Stereotyping 

• Need to be positive about different religious festivals 
 
Priorities for Religion and Belief 
 

• Need to promote basic human rights 

• Take information out to religious buildings and community groups 

• Recognise that 25% of people in Leeds state they have no religion 

• Provide feedback 
 

Page 77



 52

Appendix 4 
 

Equality Monitoring of Involvement in the Review 
 

In implementing the review the Equality Team involved representatives from all its 
stakeholders. The initial involvement took the form of individual discussions, focus groups 
and questionnaires. Once the responses had been analysed these were fed back to the 
original participants. 

In all, 7 focus groups were held (2 for disabled people) and a total of 103 people attended. 
The equality monitoring breakdown is: 

 
Age      16 
Black and minority ethnic  16 
Disabled    32 
Gender    10 
Sexual orientation   10 
Religion or belief   19 
 

In addition 61 questionnaires were completed and equality monitoring information was 
provided for 32. This showed 

 
Disabled    11 
Black and minority ethnic  6 
Lesbian, gay and bisexual 2 
Over 50    8 
Under 25    0 
 

Further information about the involvement in the review is in the ‘Equality and Diversity 
Strategy Review: Analysis of Outcomes and Involvement’ which is available on our website 
at www.leeds.gov.uk/equality. 

Page 78



     
 

 
    

E
q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 t
o
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

Page 79



E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
: 
O
u
r 
s
ta
ff
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 d
iv
e
rs
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
it
y
, 
p
e
rf
o
rm
 w
e
ll
, 
a
re
 c
o
n
s
ta
n
tl
y
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
e
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
ll
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 d
ig
n
it
y
 a
t 

w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 f
a
ir
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
  

 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

 C
o
m
p
le
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

p
o
lic
ie
s
, 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 

 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 T
a
rg
e
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 T
a
rg
e
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 T
a
rg
e
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

A
ll 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

d
a
ta
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
n
ti
ty
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
f 
a
ll 
H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 

re
p
o
rt
s
 o
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

Y
e
a
r 
1
 A
ll 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

d
a
ta
 o
n
 t
h
e
 H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

S
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 a
n
d
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
ll 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
re
a
s
. 
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
ll 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
d
a
ta
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
ll 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
re
a
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
ll 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
d
a
ta
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
ll 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
re
a
s
 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

     M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

A
ll 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

to
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
g
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 d
is
c
ip
lin
a
ry
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
u
b
lic
it
y
 a
n
d
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 R
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

a
n
d
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 t
o
 b
e
 

g
a
th
e
re
d
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  

H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

A
ll 

Page 80



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

h
a
ra
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 

b
u
lly
in
g
, 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

v
ic
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n
 

     

a
b
o
u
t 
h
a
ra
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 b
u
lly
in
g
, 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 v
ic
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n
 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 o
f 
z
e
ro
 

to
le
ra
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
ll 
fo
rm

s
 o
f 
b
u
lly
in
g
 

   

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 s
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
ta
ff
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 u
n
fa
ir
 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
h
a
ra
s
s
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 b
u
lly
in
g
 f
ro
m
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 o
f 

1
6
%
  

 (S
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9
) 

Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 s
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
ta
ff
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 u
n
fa
ir
 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
h
a
ra
s
s
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 b
u
lly
in
g
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 S
ta
ff
 S
u
rv
e
y
 

 (S
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
) 
 

 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

     
 

      M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
a
ti
n
g
 o
n
 

th
e
 S
to
n
e
w
a
ll 

W
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

In
d
e
x
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
re
a
s
 

fo
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
v
ia
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

C
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
ff
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

   

Y
e
a
r 
1
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 s
c
o
re
 a
n
d
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
o
p
 

1
0
0
 U
K
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 s
c
o
re
 a
n
d
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
o
p
 

1
0
0
 U
K
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  
 

 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 

S
e
x
u
a
l 

O
ri
e
n
ta
ti

o
n
 

Page 81



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 s
c
o
re
 a
n
d
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
o
p
 

1
0
0
 U
K
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

A
ll 
n
e
w
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 

a
w
a
re
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
, 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 

a
n
d
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 

p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
, 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 

in
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 

in
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
m
a
te
ri
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
o
lle
d
 o
u
t 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

Y
e
a
r 
2
 P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
m
a
te
ri
a
l 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 1
0
0
%
 o
f 
a
ll 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

Y
e
a
r 
3
 T
a
rg
e
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 a
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

A
ll 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 f
a
ir
 a
n
d
 

e
q
u
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

    

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 

to
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
 o
f 

le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

c
o
u
rs
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
ix
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
re
a
s
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 B
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
t 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

A
ll 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 o
n
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
lis
e
 t
h
e
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 

 S
o
u
rc
e
 e
x
p
e
rt
is
e
 f
o
r 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

P
la
n
 i
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 E
x
p
e
rt
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

s
o
u
rc
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
 l
is
t 
is
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 

H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 

A
ll 

Page 82



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

ro
le
s
 a
n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 

 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 

o
f 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 t
o
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
is
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
o
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
  

 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 h
a
v
e
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 

jo
b
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

s
c
o
p
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
J
o
in
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
r 
L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 

J
o
b
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

fo
r 
p
h
a
s
e
 2
  

Y
e
a
r 
1
 E
a
c
h
 j
o
b
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

a
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 a
 s
c
o
re
 

    

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

   

A
ll 

     

N
e
w
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 

g
ra
d
in
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 

   

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
re
v
is
e
d
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 

g
ra
d
in
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 f
o
r 
p
h
a
s
e
 1
 

 Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
re
v
is
e
d
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 

g
ra
d
in
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 f
o
r 
p
h
a
s
e
 2
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 A
ll 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 

h
a
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 g
ra
d
in
g
 

a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

p
a
y
 a
n
d
 g
ra
d
in
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

A
ll 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

E
n
a
b
lin
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

   

In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 E
n
a
b
lin
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
tr
a
in
e
e
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
tr
a
in
e
e
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

J
o
b
s
 a
n
d
 

S
k
ill
s
  

A
ll 

Page 83



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

O
u
r 
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

re
fl
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

o
f 
o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
t 
a
ll 
le
v
e
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 t
o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 

 Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 3
 y
e
a
r 
p
la
n
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
s
 

a
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
r 
o
f 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
e
o
p
le
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
 g
re
a
te
r 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 o
f 
a
ll 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

 R
o
ll 
o
u
t 
jo
b
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
q
u
a
l 

p
a
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
  

 E
m
b
e
d
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 i
n
to
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 

B
V
1
1
a
 3
9
%
 

B
V
 1
1
b
 6
.2
5
%
 

B
V
1
1
c
 4
.2
%
 

B
V
1
6
a
 3
.6
%
 

B
V
1
7
a
 8
.0
%
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 

B
V
1
1
a
 4
0
%
 

B
V
 1
1
b
 6
.5
%
 

B
V
1
1
c
 4
.4
%
 

B
V
1
6
a
 3
.7
%
 

B
V
1
7
a
 8
.5
%
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 

B
V
1
1
a
 4
1
%
 

B
V
 1
1
b
 6
.7
5
%
 

B
V
1
1
c
 4
.6
%
 

B
V
1
6
a
 3
.8
%
 

B
V
1
7
a
 9
.0
%
 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

      M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

      M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

B
M
E
 

B
V
P
I 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

B
V
1
1
a
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
w
o
m
e
n
 i
n
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
s
 

B
V
1
1
b
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
la
c
k
 a
n
d
 m
in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
s
 

B
V
1
1
c
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
s
 

B
V
1
6
a
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 d
e
c
la
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
y
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 D
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 A
c
t 
a
s
 a
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 

w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

B
V
1
7
a
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
b
la
c
k
 a
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
s
 a
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

Page 84



S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
: 
L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 a
 c
it
y
 w
h
e
re
 h
a
te
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
to
le
ra
te
d
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
h
a
te
 c
ri
m
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 

R
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 
h
o
w
 h
a
te
 c
ri
m
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

to
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
  

           C
re
a
te
 a
 n
e
w
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
n
ti
ty
 o
f 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 h
a
te
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 

a
n
d
 t
ra
c
k
e
d
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

Y
e
a
r 
o
n
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 h
a
te
 c
ri
m
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
, 
in
c
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 S
e
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 a
n
d
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
y
e
a
rs
 2
 a
n
d
 3
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 T
a
rg
e
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 T
a
rg
e
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 a
n
d
 s
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 

Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 

Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 

      M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty
 

A
ll 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 

v
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
h
a
te
 

in
c
id
e
n
ts
 

 

M
a
p
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 c
it
y
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 g
a
p
s
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 n
e
e
d
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 h
a
te
 c
ri
m
e
 f
o
r 

a
ll 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
ff
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 a
n
d
 s
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty
 

A
ll 

Page 85



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

 
Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
it
y
-w
id
e
, 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

to
 w
o
m
e
n
, 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 

 

2
0
0
 k
e
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 

L
e
e
d
s
 I
n
te
r-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 P
ro
je
c
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
1
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 M
in
im
u
m
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 M
a
rk
 

Y
e
a
r 
o
n
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 l
e
v
e
l 
1
 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
  
1
5
%
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
  
2
0
%
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
  
2
5
%
 

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

L
e
e
d
s
 I
n
te
r-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 

P
ro
je
c
t 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

 

Page 86



S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
: 
L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 f
a
ir
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
o
u
r 
d
iv
e
rs
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

A
ll 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

m
e
e
t 
th
e
 d
u
ti
e
s
 

w
it
h
in
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
in
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ilo
t 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ilo
t 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 S
e
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 a
n
d
 

ta
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
y
e
a
r 
3
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

U
n
it
 

A
ll 

       

O
u
r 
s
ta
ff
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

s
k
ill
s
, 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

th
ro
u
g
h
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

m
e
e
t  
d
u
ti
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
y
 k
n
o
w
, 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
o
u
r 
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 d
u
ti
e
s
 i
n
 

a
w
a
rd
in
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 f
o
r 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

g
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

    2
0
%
 s
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
/i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 T
ra
in
in
g
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 

a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
  

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

m
in
im
u
m
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

U
n
it
 

A
ll 

Page 87



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

m
in
im
u
m
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

m
in
im
u
m
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

A
ll 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
rm

a
ts
 

         

T
ra
n
s
la
te
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b
y
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 g
u
id
e
 

to
 a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
/r
e
v
is
e
 p
o
lic
y
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

B
ra
ill
e
/l
a
rg
e
 p
ri
n
t/
ta
p
e
 i
n
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 m

o
v
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 

   Id
e
n
ti
fy
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 m
o
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

   

Y
e
a
r 
1
 A
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 

h
is
to
ri
c
 d
a
ta
 b
y
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
re
a
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
o
ls
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n
e
e
d
s
  
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
o
ls
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n
e
e
d
s
  
 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
 

o
f 
n
e
w
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

/S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 

re
v
ie
w
/e
v
a
lu
a
te
 t
h
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
k
e
y
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 R
o
ll 
o
u
t 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

       M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

       C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti

o
n
 a
n
d
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

  B
la
c
k
 

M
in
o
ri
ty
 

E
th
n
ic
 

              

Page 88



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

n
e
w
/u
p
d
a
te
d
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
/s
o
ft
w
a
re
 

 

O
u
r 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
 o
p
e
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
re
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
  

 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 o
r 
re
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 

th
a
t 
p
re
v
e
n
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

b
u
ild
in
g
s
  

Y
e
a
r 
1
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

C
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

     

A
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

o
u
r 
c
it
iz
e
n
s
 

 

C
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 o
r 
re
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 

to
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lis
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

Y
e
a
r 
o
n
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 o
f 

p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
s
u
m
m
a
ri
e
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
b
s
it
e
 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 S
e
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 

d
a
ta
. 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 T
o
 b
e
 s
e
t 
o
n
c
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 T
o
 b
e
 s
e
t 
o
n
c
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 

      M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

A
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

A
ll 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
le
a
re
r 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

b
a
rr
ie
rs
 f
a
c
e
d
 b
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 a
n
d
 s
h
a
re
 

g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 o
f 
re
m
o
v
in
g
 o
r 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 E
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 

A
ll 

Page 89



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 

o
u
r 
c
it
iz
e
n
s
 

b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

ro
lle
d
 o
u
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

re
v
ie
w
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

O
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 

   

C
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 a
ll 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
/a
re
a
s
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 g
a
p
s
 a
n
d
 t
re
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
  

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

A
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

A
ll 

            

Page 90



S
e
rv
ic
e
-s
p
e
c
if
ic
 e
q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 e
.g
. 
th
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 L
o
c
a
l 

In
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

N
e
tw
o
rk
 (
L
IN
k
) 
a
n
d
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
  

         

 
A
w
a
rd
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 a
 h
o
s
t 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 
L
IN
k
 

 
 

 
W
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
re
v
ie
w
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

 
 

 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w
it
h
 o
n
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

 
 

 
 

 
  

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
3
6
 

(P
e
o
p
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
) 

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
1
9
 

(S
e
lf
-r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
) 

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
3
9
 

(T
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 

o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 a
t 
h
o
m
e
) 

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
4
0
 

(F
a
ir
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 

                   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

      
 

    

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

Page 91



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

    

P
re
p
a
re
 “
w
h
o
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
” 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 

 Id
e
n
ti
fy
 l
in
k
s
 t
o
 a
n
d
 r
o
le
s
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 A
g
re
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 p
re
p
a
ri
n
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
3
6
 

(P
e
o
p
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
) 

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
4
0
 

(F
a
ir
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 

        M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

   

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

s
ti
m
u
la
te
d
 m
a
rk
e
t 
to
 

e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 o
f 

s
o
c
ia
lly
 e
n
te
rp
ri
s
in
g
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

     

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 

a
n
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

th
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
s
o
c
ia
lly
 e
n
te
rp
ri
s
in
g
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
3
6
 

(P
e
o
p
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
) 
 

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
3
0
 

(D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
B
u
d
g
e
ts
) 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

        M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

Page 92



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 

p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 (
s
e
lf
-

d
ir
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 p
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
3
0
 

(S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 c
lie
n
ts
 

re
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
lf
-d
ir
e
c
te
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
) 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 

     M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

  

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

S
e
lf
-d
ir
e
c
te
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 

p
ro
m
o
te
d
 

     

A
lig
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
lf
-d
ir
e
c
te
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
it
h
 

o
th
e
r 
p
ro
je
c
t 
w
o
rk
 

 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
3
0
 

(S
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 c
lie
n
ts
 

re
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
lf
-d
ir
e
c
te
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
) 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

     M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

  

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

Page 93



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 “
V
a
lu
in
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 N
o
w
” 
 

      

P
re
p
a
re
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
id
e
 p
la
n
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
“V
a
lu
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 N
o
w
” 

 A
g
re
e
 l
in
k
s
 t
o
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
3
0
 

(S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 c
lie
n
ts
 

re
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
lf
-d
ir
e
c
te
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
) 

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
4
5
 

(A
d
u
lt
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 s
e
tt
le
d
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
) 
 

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
4
6
 

(A
d
u
lt
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t)
 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 

               M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 J
o
in
t 

L
o
a
n
s
 a
n
d
 

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
ta
il 
m
o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
3
0
 

(S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 c
lie
n
ts
 

re
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
lf
-d
ir
e
c
te
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
) 

    

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

  

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

Page 94



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

      

e
m
e
rg
in
g
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
1
3
3
 

(T
im
e
lin
e
s
s
 o
f 
S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
) 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 

     M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 A
id
s
 a
n
d
 

A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
 R
e
-e
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 

T
e
a
m
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
A
id
s
 

a
n
d
 A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
s
 P
o
lic
y
  
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 R
e
v
ie
w
  

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

O
u
r 
p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 a
n
d
 

ro
a
d
s
 a
re
 s
ta
b
le
 

a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 

th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
  

Y
e
a
r 
1
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   

C
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

Page 95



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
n
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
  

  

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

  Y
e
a
r 
3
 T
o
 b
e
 s
e
t 

 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

o
v
e
rg
ro
w
n
 h
e
d
g
e
s
 

b
lo
c
k
in
g
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 r
o
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
h
e
d
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 d
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
 

       In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

w
h
e
n
 o
v
e
rg
ro
w
n
 h
e
d
g
e
s
 a
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

        

Y
e
a
r 
1
 B
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 o
n
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 

a
n
d
 s
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 T
a
rg
e
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

  Y
e
a
r 
3
 T
a
rg
e
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

o
v
e
rg
ro
w
n
 h
e
d
g
e
s
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 

re
s
o
lv
e
d
  

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

      M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o

o
d
s
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

Page 96



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

     

o
v
e
rg
ro
w
n
 h
e
d
g
e
s
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 

re
s
o
lv
e
d
  

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

o
v
e
rg
ro
w
n
 h
e
d
g
e
s
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 

re
s
o
lv
e
d
 

 

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
 S
tr
e
e
t 

D
e
s
ig
n
 G
u
id
e
 

P
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
n
 u
p
-t
o
-d
a
te
 S
tr
e
e
t 
D
e
s
ig
n
 

G
u
id
e
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 M
a
n
u
a
l 
fo
r 

S
tr
e
e
ts
 a
n
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 

s
h
a
re
d
 s
u
rf
a
c
e
s
  

 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 D
e
s
ig
n
 G
u
id
e
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

C
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 A
d
u
lt
 

L
it
e
ra
c
y
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
v
is
e
d
 

J
o
b
s
 a
n
d
 S
k
ill
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 M
o
d
e
l 

   D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 n
e
w
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

u
n
d
e
r 
E
n
g
lis
h
 f
o
r 
S
p
e
a
k
e
rs
 o
f 
O
th
e
r 

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
 f
o
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 

m
ig
ra
n
t 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 

 R
e
lo
c
a
te
 J
o
b
s
 a
n
d
 S
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 A
d
u
lt
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 t
o
 T
e
c
h
n
o
rt
h
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 l
in
k
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
re
v
is
e
d
 J
o
b
s
 a
n
d
 

S
k
ill
s
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m

o
d
e
l 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 N
e
w
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

   R
e
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

   

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o

o
d
s
 

A
ll 

Page 97



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

F
a
m
ily
 L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
, 
L
it
e
ra
c
y
 a
n
d
 

N
u
m
e
ra
c
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
  

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 F
a
m
ily
 L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
, 
L
it
e
ra
c
y
 

a
n
d
 N
u
m
e
ra
c
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
  

   L
it
e
ra
c
y
 a
n
d
 N
u
m
e
ra
c
y
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 l
if
e
ti
m
e
 

h
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 

p
e
o
p
le
  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
  

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 

ta
rg
e
t 
th
a
t 
a
ll 
n
e
w
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 w
ill
 c
o
n
fo
rm

 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
if
e
ti
m
e
 

H
o
m
e
s
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
. 

 

Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
ll 
n
e
w
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 

c
o
n
fo
rm

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
if
e
ti
m
e
 

H
o
m
e
s
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o

o
d
s
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

C
h
o
ic
e
-B
a
s
e
d
 

L
e
tt
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
  

 A
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 

a
 t
a
rg
e
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
g
is
te
r 

th
a
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
b
s
e
t 
o
f 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
g
is
te
r 

 

Y
e
a
r 
2
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 

P
e
rs
o
n
’s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o

o
d
s
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

P
e
o
p
le
 u
n
d
e
r 
1
8
 

w
h
o
 a
re
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 

a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

te
n
a
n
c
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 i
n
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 f
u
lf
il 
o
u
r 
le
g
a
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
 u
n
d
e
r 

1
8
 h
a
s
 a
n
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 t
ru
s
te
e
  

Y
e
a
r 
1
 Y
o
u
n
g
 p
a
re
n
t 

te
n
a
n
c
ie
s
 a
re
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 Y
o
u
n
g
 p
a
re
n
t 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o

o
d
s
 

A
g
e
 

Page 98



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

p
la
c
e
 

   

te
n
a
n
c
ie
s
 a
re
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 Y
o
u
n
g
 p
a
re
n
t 

te
n
a
n
c
ie
s
 a
re
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 

 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

S
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

to
 a
ll 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 A
c
ti
v
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 S
p
o
rt
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
’s
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 f
o
r 
S
p
o
rt
 
Y
e
a
r 
1
 P
re
lim

in
a
ry
 a
n
d
 

fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
ta
g
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 

le
v
e
l 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 

le
v
e
l 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

B
o
a
rd
 o
f 

T
ru
s
te
e
s
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 A
c
ti
v
e
 

A
ll 

A
ll 
s
p
o
rt
s
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 o
f 
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
n
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
a
re
  

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 t
h
e
 Q
u
e
s
t 

a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 1
 f
o
r 
s
it
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
e
n
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
 i
t 

 A
tt
a
in
 t
h
e
 Q
u
e
s
t 
a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 

s
it
e
s
 

L
o
c
a
l 
K
e
y
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
-

S
C
1
9
 (
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
p
o
rt
s
 

fa
c
ili
ty
 t
y
p
e
s
 w
it
h
 a
 

s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
re
d
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
) 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 

 

      M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

C
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

A
ll 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

Page 99



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 m
o
re
 

a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
  

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
a
rk
s
 

     

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 P
a
rk
s
 

R
e
n
a
is
s
a
n
c
e
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
K
e
y
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
-

G
1
/C
P
-P
C
5
0
/E
M
3
8
 –
 

T
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
p
a
rk
s
 

a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 s
it
e
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
te
rn
a
lly
 t
h
a
t 

m
e
e
t 
th
e
 G
re
e
n
 F
la
g
 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 1
9
%
 o
f 
s
it
e
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
  

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

s
it
e
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

s
it
e
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

 

        M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

C
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

A
ll 

     

Page 100



S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
: 
 L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 a
 c
it
y
 t
h
a
t 
v
a
lu
e
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
a
ll
 t
h
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 a
ll
 o
u
r 
d
iv
e
rs
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

  O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

P
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 a
re
 m
o
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 

in
 p
o
lic
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 f
u
tu
re
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

        

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

            D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 P
la
n
n
e
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
  

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 

re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
/p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
/p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

     M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

   

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 

           A
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

        

A
ll 

Page 101



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 p
o
lic
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
  

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
3
 

(C
iv
ic
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
re
a
) 

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
4
 

(P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 i
n
 

th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
lit
y
) 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 B
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 

fr
o
m
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

in
fo
rm

 p
la
n
n
e
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

fr
o
m
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 

 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

               M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

       E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 

a
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

 

C
a
re
rs
 a
re
 m
o
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 C
a
re
r’
s
 h
u
b
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 w
it
h
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 E
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 

A
ll 

Page 102



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

in
 p
o
lic
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 f
u
tu
re
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
  

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 P
la
n
n
e
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 

 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 
c
it
iz
e
n
s
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 

b
e
in
g
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 

p
o
lic
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 f
u
tu
re
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

    

P
ro
m
o
te
 a
ll 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
/p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
  

   

Y
e
a
r-
o
n
-y
e
a
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 
E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 a
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

fr
o
m
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 S
e
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 a
n
d
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
y
e
a
rs
 2
 a
n
d
 3
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 T
a
rg
e
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 T
a
rg
e
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
4
 

(P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 i
n
 

th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
lit
y
) 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 B
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 

       M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

       

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 a
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
  

A
ll 

Page 103



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

fr
o
m
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

in
fo
rm

 p
la
n
n
e
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

fr
o
m
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

C
o
h
e
s
iv
e
, 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 a
n
d
 

s
tr
o
n
g
e
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 

A
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
a
ll 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
re
a
s
 

 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
v
e
n
t 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
v
e
n
t 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
v
e
n
t 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
2
 

(P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 

b
e
lo
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
) 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 B
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 

fr
o
m
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

         M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

 

A
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
  

A
ll 

Page 104



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

in
fo
rm

 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
re
a
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

fr
o
m
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 

 

 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

      M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

C
o
n
s
is
te
n
t,
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

s
ta
ff
 g
ro
u
p
s
  

       

A
n
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
ll 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 s
ta
ff
 g
ro
u
p
s
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
e
ir
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
y
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

        D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
n
 

e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

s
ta
ff
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
e
ir
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
y
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 B
a
s
e
lin
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 P
la
n
n
e
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
  

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 P
la
n
n
e
d
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

     M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 

           A
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

    

A
ll 

Page 105



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

  
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 (I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

o
f 
s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 a
re
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 

to
 t
h
e
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
) 

 Y
e
a
r 
1
 B
a
s
e
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 

fr
o
m
 2
0
0
7
 s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
 

e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 7
4
%
 t
a
rg
e
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 7
6
%
 t
a
rg
e
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 

    M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

         M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

        E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 a
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

 

Page 106



P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
: 
 C
re
a
te
 a
n
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
w
h
e
re
 a
ll
 c
it
iz
e
n
s
 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 r
e
s
p
e
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
d
. 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
, 
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 

c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
s
 

a
t 
a
ll 
le
v
e
ls
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 o
u
r 
le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 f
o
r 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
, 
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 

c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 

          

Y
e
a
r 
1
 E
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
s
 

a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 P
la
n
n
e
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 2
%
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 o
f 

s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 g
e
n
u
in
e
ly
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 f
a
ir
n
e
s
s
 

fo
r 
a
ll,
 f
ro
m
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 o
f 

7
2
%
 

 (S
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
) 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fu
tu
re
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

      M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

             M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 a
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

A
ll 

Page 107



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  
2
%
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

o
f 
s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 g
e
n
u
in
e
ly
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
n
d
 f
a
ir
n
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
fr
o
m
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

S
ta
ff
 S
u
rv
e
y
 

 (S
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
) 

 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 

p
ro
m
o
te
d
  

     

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 o
f 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

m
a
te
ri
a
l 
to
 c
e
le
b
ra
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 i
m
a
g
e
s
. 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 D
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 i
m
a
g
e
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 i
m
a
g
e
s
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti

o
n
s
 T
e
a
m
 

A
ll 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
  

     

E
v
a
lu
a
te
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
lin
k
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 o
u
r 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
  

      

Y
e
a
r 
1
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

lin
k
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 T
o
 b
e
 s
e
t 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 

 

A
ll 

Page 108



O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 

W
h
o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
  
E
q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
re
a
s
 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 

lo
c
a
l,
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

in
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 e
v
e
n
ts
. 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l,
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
e
le
b
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

Y
e
a
r 
1
 M
a
p
p
e
d
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 g
a
p
s
 

 Y
e
a
r 
2
 C
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
e
le
b
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

 Y
e
a
r 
3
 E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

re
v
ie
w
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

   M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 a
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

A
ll 

 

Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



  

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Executive Board 
 
Date:  16th April 2008 
 
Subject: Progress Report on the PPP/PFI Programme in Leeds 
 

        
 
Eligible for call In                                                   Not eligible for call in 
                                                                              (details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 

This is the fifth update report on Leeds City Councils PPP/PFI projects and programmes 
and provides: 

• a progress report on the current Council portfolio of 16 projects with a capital value 
in excess of £1 billion  

• highlights of the 4 schemes programmed to achieve financial close within the next 
6 months and the challenges this will pose for the council 

 
There are currently 16 major PFI projects either in development, procurement or delivery, 
with 1 of these closed in March 2008 and 3 now due to close in the current financial year 
2008/09. The risks attached to this programme have been identified and will be 
appropriately managed by the unit, monitored by corporate governance, reported to the 
relevant Board and escalated where necessary to Executive Board.  

Specific implications for:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the gap 

Electoral wards affected:  

 

All 

 

Agenda item:  
 
Originator: David Outram 
 
Tel: 2143939 

 

 

ü  

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 111



 

 
1.0 Background 
  
1.1 
 

Executive Board requested at its meeting on the 9th March 2005, six monthly 
updates on: 

• the progress of PPP/PFI projects and programmes  

• the implementation of the governance framework.   
This is the fifth update report. 

  
2.0 Leeds City Council PPP/PFI Projects and Programmes 
  
2.1 October 2007 – March 2008 has continued to provide a challenging environment 

for the delivery of Leeds City Council PPP/PFI schemes.  In part this is due to the 
number of projects in development together with retention and recruitment 
challenges across the unit and affecting the Council.  

  
2.2 The progress, scope and status, of these schemes are outlined in Appendix 1. 
  
3.0 Schemes Programmed to Close in 2008/09 
  
3.1 The highlights of the 4 schemes which are programmed to achieve Financial 

Close by September 2008 are listed below: 
  
3.1.1 Building Schools for the Future Programme Phases 2 and 3  
  
 The Final Business Case was approved by PFS in March. The new school for 

Inner West Leeds and Wortley reached financial close slightly later than 
scheduled on the 13th March 2008 (plans of the new school will be displayed at 
Executive Board). 
 
Phase 2, which now involves Priesthorpe, Crawshaw and Farnley Park in 
progress, has been reviewed. Phase 3, which involves Mount St. Mary, Corpus 
Christi and Parklands, has been deferred pending a stakeholder review of the 
requirements of the 3 schools remaining, though with an anticipated contract 
close date of May 2009. Phase 4, Intake High, remains subject to the outcome of 
negotiations on the Academy Programme. 
 
This project supports the Corporate Plan strategic outcome of making sure that 
our children and young people are healthy, safe and successful. 

  
3.1.2 New Leaf Leisure Centres Project  
  
 The Department of Culture, Media and Sport approved the Council’s Expression 

of interest in June 2007.  Morley and Armley leisure centres are progressing 
through the New Project Procedure (NPP) Stage 1 as PFI projects under the 
Strategic Partnership Agreement (SPA) between the Council and Leeds LEP Ltd 
with the project now programmed to close in August 2008. 
 
This project supports the Corporate Plan strategic outcome of ensuring that at 
each stage of life, people are able to live healthy, fulfilling lives.  

  
3.1.3 Independent Living PFI Project  
  
 This project has been in procurement since 2006.  The final business case was 

Page 112



 

approved by Executive Board in January 2008 with financial close programmed 
for April 2008. The overall programme is progressing well with planning 
permission secured for all 39 sites. 
 
The final scope of the project remains to be concluded due to outstanding 
negotiations on the cost of the facilities sought by Children’s Services and the 
completion of due diligence by the Consortium for the benefit of their funders.  
 
This project supports the Corporate Plan strategic outcome of making sure that 
all communities are thriving and harmonious places where people are happy to 
live. 

  
3.1.4 Joint Service Centres Phase 1  
  
 A revised stage 1 offer was received from Leeds LIFT Co on the 03rd March 2008 

and approved by Executive Board on the 12th March 2008.  The project is 
scheduled to reach financial close December 2008 with service commencement 
at Harehills in March and at Chapeltown in May 2010.  
 
Work on the identification of a suitable site in Kirkstall continues. 
 
This project supports the Corporate Plan strategic outcome of making sure that at 
each stage of life, people are able to live healthy, fulfilling lives. 

  
4.0 Councils’ Successes Since October 2007 
  
4.1 Evidence of the Councils’ successes since October 2007 can be shown through: 
  
4.1.1 Conferences  
  
 During the last 6 months, Officers of the Unit have been invited to attend and 

speak at 3 national conferences on benchmarking, the lessons learnt in the PFI 
process and in support of the review of BSF commissioned by PFS and DCSF. 

  
4.1.2 Gateway Reviews 
  
 Subject to resources, the Council undertakes independent 4Ps Gateway reviews 

on all of its PFI projects.  The 4Ps review reports provide the Council with a 
position statement on the status of each project at each stage using the RAG 
(red, amber, green) ‘traffic light’ approach. The Independent Living Project 
received a green status and the Leeds Residual Waste Treatment received an 
amber status in December 2007. 

  
 The 4Ps continue to press the Council for resources to assist them in progressing 

their National Gateway Review schedule.   
  
4.1.3 Combined Secondary Schools Project  
  
 All six schools are fully operational and the project has been shortlisted under the 

category ‘Best Operational Schools Project’ at the 2008 PPF Awards, to be 
announced in April 2008. 

  
4.1.4 Little London Social Housing Project  
  

Page 113



 

 The Council has now entered the intensive period of evaluation of the Outline 
Solutions submissions. 

  
4.1.5 Beeston Hill and Holbeck Project 
  
 The Outline Business Case was approved by Executive Board in November 

2007, along with a proposal to join this project with the current procurement of 
Little London. Officers have recently received PRG approval to the project and 
endorsement from CLG to the continued joint procurement with Little London.  
The Council, and bidders, can now continue to develop proposals for the benefit 
of both communities with confidence. 
 
This is, apparently, the first time such an approval has been either promoted, or 
supported, and approval  should result in both a quicker, and more efficient 
outcome for all involved. 
 

  
4.1.6 Joint Procurement  
  
 Subject to the approval of the proposed OBC for the Beeston Hill and Holbeck 

project, the Council can link Little London and Beeston Hill and Holbeck into a 
Joint Procurement and move forward into the future stages with some 
confidence. 

  
4.1.7 New Leaf Project  
  
 An application for PFI credits for a wellbeing centre has been submitted to the 

Department of Health.  The Council, along with the PCT, have been invited to 
develop an Expression of Interest for this scheme, for a maximum of £30 Million 
credits, before the 31st May 2008. 

  
4.1.8 Street Lighting 
  
 The project is on programme, and a contract for advertising on the new lighting 

columns has been entered into with Streetbroadcast Ltd. 
  
5.0 Governance Implementation 
  
5.1 In response to an independent 4Ps Gateway Review of the Council’s Building 

Schools for the Future Programme, a Governance and Management Framework 
for City Council PPP/PFI projects and programmes was approved by Executive 
Board in March 2005.   

  
 

5.2 This framework is currently under review as the Council seeks to ensure that any 
changes arising from the implementation of the Delivering Successful Change 
Programme is implemented. 

  
5.3 The Programme of work for 2008-2009 presents a number of significant 

challenges not least with regard to the continuing difficulties in recruiting and 
retaining specialist staff particularly in legal, technical and finance disciplines. 

  
5.4 A further recruitment exercise is continuing to secure staff for the remaining 

unfilled specialist posts within the unit and all new vacancies created by the 

Page 114



 

departure of colleagues to new opportunities.  The impact of these vacancies on 
the current programme of work has been noted and is being closely monitored, 
with resources redirected to address priorities wherever possible.  

  
5.5 This is considered to be particularly relevant should the Council be invited to 

support the West Yorkshire Police in the delivery of their proposed programme of 
investment in new accommodation through a bid for PFI credits to the Home 
Office. 

  
6.0 Financial Implications 
  
6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report, though this 

substantial investment through this funding initiative does result in some 
significant financial implications for the City Council, in particular the affect on the 
Councils Capital Programme, as it supports improvements to the public 
infrastructure and assets required to facilitate these programmes of change. 

  
7.0 Recommendations 
  
7.1 Executive Board is recommended to note the current status of PPP/PFI projects 

and programmes. 
  
8.0 Documents used in the Preparation of this report 
  
8.1 Leeds City Council – Building Schools for the Future, 4ps Gateway Review 

September 2004. 
 

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
s
 P
P
P
/P
F
I 
P
ro
je
c
ts
/P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 C
IT
Y
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
S
 

IN
F
O
R
M
A
T
IO
N
 

C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 

S
T
A
G
E
 

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 

IN
V
E
S
T
M
E
N
T
 

£
M
 

C
L
O
S
E
D
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
S
  

C
a
rd
in
a
l 
H
e
e
n
a
n
 H
ig
h
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
P
F
I 
P
ro
je
c
t 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

•
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 i
n
 1
9
9
9
 i
t 
w
a
s
 a
 ‘
p
a
th
fi
n
d
e
r’
 p
ro
je
c
t 
in
 t
h
e
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
to
r.
  
 

•
 

T
h
e
 n
e
w
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
w
a
s
 o
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
0
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
a
s
 r
e
fi
n
a
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
3
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 n
e
w
 b
u
ild
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
fo
r 
9
0
0
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
llo
w
 C
a
rd
in
a
l 
H
e
e
n
a
n
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 L
im

it
e
d
 (
C
H
S
S
) 
(t
h
e
 S
P
V
),
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
if
th
 a
n
n
iv
e
rs
a
ry
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t,
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 o
f 
c
e
rt
a
in
 s
o
ft
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
-c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
–
 J
a
rv
is
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 L
td
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 m

a
rk
e
t 
te
s
t 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 J
a
rv
is
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 L
td
  

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

£
9
m
 

L
e
e
d
s
 7
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 P
F
I 

P
ro
je
c
t 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

•
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
1
. 
 

•
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
iv
e
 p
ri
m
a
ri
e
s
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
2
 

a
n
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 t
w
o
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
3
. 
 

•
 

T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
e
v
e
n
 n
e
w
 b
u
ild
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
r 
4
,7
0
0
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 

•
 

A
 j
o
in
t 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

b
e
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
ie
s
. 
  

•
 

D
ia
lo
g
u
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

£
3
8
m
 

L
e
e
d
s
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

P
F
I 
P
ro
je
c
t 

•
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
4
. 
 

•
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
5
. 

•
 

T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
e
n
 n
e
w
 b
u
ild
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
r 
o
v
e
r 
3
,8
0
0
 y
o
u
n
g
 c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
. 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

£
3
6
m
 

L
e
e
d
s
 C
o
m
b
in
e
d
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 P
F
I 

P
ro
je
c
t 

O
u
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
, 
s
a
fe
 

a
n
d
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l.
  

•
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
5
. 
 

•
 

P
h
a
s
e
 O

n
e
, 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
fo
u
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 h
a
n
d
o
v
e
r 
in
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
, 
a
n
d
 

P
h
a
s
e
 T
w
o
, 
th
e
 f
in
a
l 
tw
o
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 h
a
n
d
o
v
e
r 
in
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
. 
  

•
 

T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 f
iv
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 o
n
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l,
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
, 
fo
r 
o
v
e
r 
5
,7
0
0
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

£
9
7
m
 

Page 117



C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 C
IT
Y
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
S
 

IN
F
O
R
M
A
T
IO
N
 

C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 

S
T
A
G
E
 

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 

IN
V
E
S
T
M
E
N
T
 

£
M
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 b
o
th
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

•
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
h
o
rt
lis
te
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 c
a
te
g
o
ry
 ‘
B
e
s
t 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

P
ro
je
c
t’
 a
t 
th
e
 i
n
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
2
0
0
8
 P
P
F
 A
w
a
rd
s
, 
to
 b
e
 a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
. 
 

  

Page 118



C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 C
IT
Y
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
S
 

IN
F
O
R
M
A
T
IO
N
 

C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 

S
T
A
G
E
 

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 

IN
V
E
S
T
M
E
N
T
 

£
M
 

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
IO
N
 

S
w
a
rc
li
ff
e
 S
o
c
ia
l 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
F
I 
P
ro
je
c
t 

A
ll 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
re
 

th
ri
v
in
g
 a
n
d
 h
a
rm

o
n
io
u
s
 

p
la
c
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 

h
a
p
p
y
 t
o
 l
iv
e
. 

•
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
0
5
. 
  

•
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
5
 w
it
h
 a
 5
 y
e
a
r 
w
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
  
 

•
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 g
o
o
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
w
a
rc
lif
fe
 a
re
a
 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 1
,6
0
0
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 e
s
ta
te
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 n
e
tw
o
rk
, 
n
e
w
 p
la
y
 a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
r 
4
0
0
 n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s
 

fo
r 
s
a
le
 a
n
d
 r
e
n
t.
 

•
 

T
o
 d
a
te
 s
o
m
e
 6
7
8
 h
o
m
e
s
 o
u
t 
o
f 
a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
1
5
5
5
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

re
fu
rb
is
h
e
d
. 
 

C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

£
1
1
3
m
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 P
F
I 

P
ro
je
c
t 

A
ll 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
re
 

s
a
fe
, 
c
le
a
n
 g
re
e
n
 a
n
d
 

w
e
ll 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 

  

•
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 o
n
 3
1
s
t 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
6
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
a
s
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 i
n
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
6
 w
it
h
 a
 5
 y
e
a
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

•
 

T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 t
o
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
lig
h
ti
n
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 M

e
tr
o
p
o
lit
a
n
 D

is
tr
ic
t.
 W

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
fi
v
e
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t,
 8
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
tr
e
e
t 
lig
h
ti
n
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
d
. 
T
o
 d
a
te
 a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 1
7
,0
0
0
 c
o
lu
m
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
p
la
c
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
6
3
,0
0
0
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 J
u
ly
 

2
0
1
1
. 

•
 

A
 S
L
A
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 b
y
 L
C
C
 w
it
h
 S
tr
e
e
tb
ro
a
d
c
a
s
t 
L
td
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
th
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l.
 

C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

£
1
0
6
m
 

B
u
il
d
in
g
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

F
u
tu
re
 P
F
I 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

(P
h
a
s
e
 1
) 

O
u
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
, 
s
a
fe
 

a
n
d
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l.
  

•
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 0
3
rd
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
 w
it
h
 a
n
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
1
0
 t
o
 1
5
 y
e
a
rs
. 
  
 

•
 

W
a
v
e
 1
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 B
S
F
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 L
o
c
a
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 C

o
m
p
a
n
y
 (
L
E
P
) 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 t
h
e
n
 t
a
k
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
-b
u
ild
in
g
 

o
r 
re
m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
 o
f 
1
4
 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
to
 b
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
d
 i
n
 t
h
re
e
 p
h
a
s
e
s
. 
 

•
 

A
ll 
5
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 W

a
v
e
 1
 a
re
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr
o
m
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
, 
a
n
d
 a
ll 
a
re
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 o
n
 s
it
e
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

fr
o
m
 b
o
th
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,
 a
lo
n
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
ly
 c
h
a
in
, 
a
s
 t
h
is
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 t
h
e
 l
a
rg
e
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
. 
 

•
 

A
ll 
p
a
rt
ie
s
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
ro
ll 
o
u
t 
o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 

re
c
e
n
tl
y
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
lo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 o
n
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
. 

C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
1
3
3
m
 

 

Page 119



 

C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 C
IT
Y
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
S
 

IN
F
O
R
M
A
T
IO
N
 

C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 

S
T
A
G
E
 

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 

IN
V
E
S
T
M
E
N
T
 

£
M
 

IN
 P
R
O
C
U
R
E
M
E
N
T
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
L
iv
in
g
 P
F
I 

P
ro
je
c
t 

A
t 
e
a
c
h
 s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
lif
e
, 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
, 
fu
lf
ill
in
g
 l
iv
e
s
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 D
C
L
G
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 O

u
tl
in
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
a
s
e
 i
n
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
5
, 
a
n
d
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
6
. 

•
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
n
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
7
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
o
p
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
L
iv
in
g
 P
ro
je
c
t 
to
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 P
ro
je
c
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 &
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
, 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 F
B
C
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 B
id
d
e
r,
 L
iL
A
C
 w
a
s
 s
e
le
c
te
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
, 
w
it
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

c
lo
s
e
 n
o
w
 r
e
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 f
o
r 
A
p
ri
l 
d
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
. 

•
 

C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
v
e
r 
3
 y
e
a
rs
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
. 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

£
4
7
m
  

J
o
in
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

P
F
I 
P
ro
je
c
t 

A
t 
e
a
c
h
 s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
lif
e
, 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
, 
fu
lf
ill
in
g
 l
iv
e
s
. 
 

•
 

T
w
o
 J
o
in
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 (
a
t 
C
h
a
p
e
lt
o
w
n
 a
n
d
 H
a
re
h
ill
s
) 
w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 

p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 f
o
r 
fa
c
e
-t
o
 f
a
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 C

a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
 A
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
J
o
in
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
t 
K
ir
k
s
ta
ll 
a
s
 a
 

la
te
r 
p
ro
je
c
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
re
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
it
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 J
o
in
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
re
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
d
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 L
o
c
a
l 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 T
ru
s
t 
(L
IF
T
) 
in
 w
h
ic
h
 L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
 a
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
(P
C
T
).
 A
 S
ta
g
e
 1
 o
ff
e
r 
(u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 L
IF
T
 n
e
w
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
) 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
 g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
d
 m

a
x
im

u
m
 p
ri
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
h
a
p
e
lt
o
w
n
 a
n
d
 

H
a
re
h
ill
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 L
e
e
d
s
 L
IF
T
 L
im

it
e
d
. 

•
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
to
 a
c
c
e
p
t 
th
e
 s
ta
g
e
 1
 o
ff
e
r 
fr
o
m
 L
if
tc
o
 w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 i
n
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
. 
If
 S
ta
g
e
 2
 i
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
, 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
re
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 

to
 o
p
e
n
 i
n
 2
0
1
0
. 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

£
1
5
m
 

N
e
w
 L
e
a
f 
L
e
is
u
re
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 P
F
I 
P
ro
je
c
t 

A
t 
e
a
c
h
 s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
lif
e
, 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
, 
fu
lf
ill
in
g
 l
iv
e
s
 

•
 

T
h
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
u
lt
u
re
, 
M
e
d
ia
 a
n
d
 S
p
o
rt
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 

o
f 
in
te
re
s
t.
  
 

•
 

T
h
e
 O

B
C
 f
o
r 
th
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
a
s
 e
n
d
o
rs
e
d
 b
y
 D
C
M
S
 a
n
d
 P
R
G
 o
n
 1
9
th
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
7
 

•
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 N
e
w
 P
ro
je
c
t 
P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

(L
E
P
) 
p
ro
c
u
re
d
 a
n
d
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
B
S
F
 P
h
a
s
e
 1
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
w
o
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
t 
M
o
rl
e
y
 a
n
d
 A
rm

le
y
 t
o
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
. 

 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

        

£
2
2
m
 

        

L
it
tl
e
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 S
o
c
ia
l 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
F
I 
P
ro
je
c
t 

•
 

T
h
e
 O

B
C
 w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 P
R
G
 o
n
 2
1
s
t 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
6
 w
it
h
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
C
lo
s
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 f
o
r 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

O
B
C
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

£
6
9
m
 

Page 120



A
ll 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
re
 

th
ri
v
in
g
 a
n
d
 h
a
rm

o
n
io
u
s
 

p
la
c
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 

h
a
p
p
y
 t
o
 l
iv
e
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 s
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 
s
u
rv
e
y
s
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 t
o
w
e
r 
b
lo
c
k
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
e
re
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

fo
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 O

J
E
U
 n
o
ti
c
e
 w
a
s
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 l
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 a
n
d
 I
S
O
S
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 w
e
re
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 b
id
d
e
rs
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 a
n
d
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 g
o
o
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 1
,0
4
7
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
te
n
a
n
ts
 a
n
d
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
e
p
a
ra
te
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 m

ix
e
d
 t
e
n
u
re
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 

s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
. 

B
u
il
d
in
g
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

F
u
tu
re
 P
F
I 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

(P
h
a
s
e
 2
 &
 3
) 

O
u
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
, 
s
a
fe
 

a
n
d
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l.
 

•
 

T
h
e
 O

B
C
’s
 f
o
r 
P
h
a
s
e
s
 2
 &
3
 o
f 
W
a
v
e
 O

n
e
 w
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
t 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
7
, 
w
h
ils
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

w
o
rk
 w

it
h
 E
4
L
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 N
e
w
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 O

B
C
 b
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 f
o
r 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
a
s
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
. 
T
h
e
 F
B
C
 f
o
r 
In
n
e
r 
W
e
s
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 2
3
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
c
lo
s
e
 o
n
 1
3
th
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
. 

T
h
e
 P
h
a
s
e
 2
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr
o
m
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 
 

•
 

N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
h
a
s
e
 3
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
, 
w
it
h
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
c
lo
s
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 f
o
r 
2
2
/0
5
/2
0
0
9
. 
T
h
e
 P
h
a
s
e
 3
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
fr
o
m
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
. 
 

•
 

A
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
n
 a
c
a
d
e
m
y
 a
t 
In
ta
k
e
, 
w
a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
. 
T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
In
ta
k
e
 a
re
 a
w
a
it
in
g
 

c
la
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
o
n
s
o
r 
a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
. 

 

O
B
C
 S
ta
g
e
 

£
1
2
9
m
 

Page 121



 

P
O
T
E
N
T
IA
L
 C
IT
Y
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
S
 

C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 S
IT
U
A
T
IO
N
 

C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 

S
T
A
G
E
 

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 

IN
V
E
S
T
M
E
N
T
 

£
M
 

P
R
E
-P
R
O
C
U
R
E
M
E
N
T
 

 
 

 

B
e
e
s
to
n
 H
il
l 
a
n
d
 

H
o
lb
e
c
k
 

A
ll 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
re
 

th
ri
v
in
g
 h
a
rm

o
n
io
u
s
 

p
la
c
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 

h
a
p
p
y
 t
o
 l
iv
e
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 O

B
C
 w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

m
in
is
te
ri
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
fr
o
m
 C
L
G
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
. 
P
R
G
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
. 

•
 

It
 i
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 j
o
in
 t
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
L
it
tl
e
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 a
 q
u
ic
k
e
r 
a
n
d
 

m
o
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 w
it
h
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
C
lo
s
e
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 f
o
r 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

 

O
B
C
 s
ta
g
e
 

£
6
5
m
 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 W
a
s
te
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
ll 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
re
 

s
a
fe
, 
c
le
a
n
 g
re
e
n
 a
n
d
 

w
e
ll 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
W
a
s
te
 P
ro
je
c
t 
w
a
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 P
R
G
 a
t 
a
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 r
e
le
a
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 O

J
E
U
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
in
g
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
is
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
ill
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 m

e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
. 

 

O
B
C
 s
ta
g
e
 

 £
1
3
0
m
 

                    

Page 122



   

Page 123



P
O
T
E
N
T
IA
L
 C
IT
Y
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
S
 

C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 S
IT
U
A
T
IO
N
 

C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 

S
T
A
G
E
 

C
A
P
IT
A
L
 

IN
V
E
S
T
M
E
N
T
 

£
M
 

O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
IN
G
 S
U
B
M
IS
S
IO
N
S
 

 
 

B
S
F
 W

a
v
e
 2
 

•
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
id
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D
fE
S
 f
o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 1
4
 h
ig
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

in
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
7
. 
 O

ff
ic
e
rs
 o
f 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 l
o
b
b
y
 f
o
r 

th
is
 t
o
 b
e
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
. 

B
id
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

£
3
0
0
m
 

 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

 
£
5
3
2
m
 

 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 i
n
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
u
n
d
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 
£
4
9
9
m
 

 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 
 

£
3
0
0
m
 

 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
ta
l 
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 

 
£
1
3
3
1
m
 

  

Page 124



 

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date: 16 April 2008 
 
Subject: Access to Counsel’s Opinions 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To respond to the recommendation of Scrutiny Board (Culture & Leisure) in regard to 

their inquiry into the decision by Executive Board to erect fencing at Wharfemeadows 
Park, Otley, specifically with regard to recommendation 2 of the Scrutiny Board’s report 
in relation to the availability of Counsel’s advice to the public. 

 
2. Background Information  
 
2.1 On 8 February 2008 Executive Board received a report from the Assistant Chief 

Executive (Corporate Governance) to assist Members in their consideration of the 
recommendations of Scrutiny Board (Culture & Leisure) in regard to their inquiry into 
the decision by Executive Board to erect fencing at Wharfemeadows Park, Otley. 

 
2.2 Executive Board resolved that recommendations 1, 3 & 4 of the report by the Scrutiny 

Board (Culture & Leisure) be accepted and that the Assistant Chief Executive 
(Corporate Governance) report back on recommendation 2 of the Scrutiny Board’s 
report in relation to the availability of Counsel’s advice to the public. 

 
2.3 Members were of the view that any requests for the disclosure of Counsel’s advice to 

the public should be considered within a presumption of disclosure being made 
available, although they acknowledged that in certain circumstances, including the 
timing of disclosure, a decision to disclose to the public may prejudice the Council and 
therefore the Council Tax payers’ interests. 

 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator: Nicole Jackson 
 
Tel: x74537 

 

 

 

  

Agenda Item 9

Page 125



2.4 In the light of the above, it is proposed that the Executive Board’s  response to 
recommendation 2 be as follows: 
 
” Recommendation 2 
In considering requests for external legal advice obtained by the Council to be made 
publicly available, the Council’s Monitoring Officer: 
i) will apply a presumption in favour of disclosure; 
ii) will only reject a request where she is satisfied that, in all of the circumstances 

of the case, the public interest in disclosure is outweighed by the public interest 
in maintaining the confidentiality of the advice; and 

iii) will give full reasons for the rejection of any request. 
 
3.0 Recommendations 
 
3.1 Members are asked to consider the  wording in paragraph 2.4 as the response to 

Recommendation 2 
 

 

Page 126



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\4\AI00012400\EllandRoadReport13rdApril0.doc 

  

 

The Appendix of this report is Exempt/Confidential under  

Access to Information Procedure Rules 10.4 ( 3 ) 

 

 

Report of : Chief Asset Management Officer 

To : Executive Board:  

Date:  16 APRIL 2008 

Subject:  PROPOSED ASSEMBLY OF LAND AT ELLAND ROAD  LEEDS 

 
Electoral Wards Affected:  Specific Implications For:  
 

BEESTON & HOLBECK 

 

  
Ward Members consulted     
(referred to in report) 

 

 
 

Equality and Diversity           

 

Community Cohesion           

 

Narrowing the Gap               

   

Eligible for Call In  
 Not Eligible for Call In 

(Details contained in the report)  
  

 

Executive Summary 

The purpose of this report is for the Executive Board to approve the principle of the 
acquisition of land to facilitate the regeneration of the greater site at Elland Road. 
 
The Executive Board on 11 September 2007 approved an Informal Planning Statement that 
was presented as a guide to the future development proposals for the Elland Road site.  In 
order to deliver a comprehensive redevelopment of the land around Elland Road it is 
considered appropriate that the Executive Board gives approval to the principle of the 
acquisition of land so that the site can be assembled. 
 
The open part of the report sets out the background to the ownership of land at Elland Road 
and a separate confidential report included on this agenda details discussions that have 
taken place with some of the landowners and sets out the various options to the Council for 
the acquisition of land. 
 
 
 
 
 

Originator:  C J Gomersall 
 
Tel: 2477868 

Agenda Item 10

Page 127



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\4\AI00012400\EllandRoadReport13rdApril0.doc 

 

1.0 Purpose of the Report 
  
1.1 The purpose of the report is to:- 
  
 • Advise the Executive Board in respect of the development/regeneration 

opportunities at Elland Road. 
  
 • Seek the Executive Board’s approval to entering into negotiations for the 

acquisition of land at Elland Road by agreement and, in principal, support the 
use of Compulsory Purchase Powers if the acquisition by agreement is not 
successful.  

  

2.0 Background Information 
  
2.1 Executive Board will recall that at the meeting held on 14 March 2007, Members 

considered a draft Masterplan proposal for land in the vicinity of Elland Road and 
resolved that: 

  
 • The Director of City Development be authorised to procure consultants to 

undertake a preliminary public consultation on the draft masterplan proposals 
that were attached to the March 2007 report. 

   
 • The Director of City Development be authorised to develop an Informal Planning 

Statement for the site, taking account of the outcome of the public consultation 
exercise. 

   
 • A report be brought back to this Board with a revised masterplan/planning 

statement, prior to inviting bids from the developers for their arena proposals. 
  
2.2 A further report was taken to 11 September 2007 Executive Board meeting on the 

outcome of the public consultation on the development proposals for the Elland 
Road site, presenting a proposed Informal Planning Statement as a guide to the 
future development proposals and an initial proposal for progress.  The Executive 
Board on 11 September 2007 resolved: 

  

 • That the outcome of the public consultation process on the development 
proposals for the Elland Road site be noted. 

   

 • That the Informal Planning Statement presented as a guide to future 
development proposals for the Elland Road site be approved and note that it 
may be necessary to review the content of the Informal Planning Statement 
dependent upon the outcome of the major leisure interest shown in the site. 

   

 • That the exploration of the potential and implications for the provision of a park 
and ride facility on the site be approved. 

   

 • That in principle the sale of the former Greyhound Stadium site at open market 
value to the West Yorkshire Police Authority as a site for their new Divisional 
HQ, subject to the final terms being agreed by the Director of Development be 
approved. 

   

 • That a proportion of the receipt from the Greyhound Stadium site and others 
arising from the Council disposals in the area covered by the Informal Planning 

Page 128



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\4\AI00012400\EllandRoadReport13rdApril0.doc 

Statement may be required to facilitate the reconfiguration of car parking and the 
implementation of any infrastructure proposals required to facilitate the 
comprehensive redevelopment of the Elland Road site be noted. 

  

2.3 Members will recall that as a result of the consultation process it was identified that 
there is a desire both locally and city wide for a development of Elland Road which 
improves the quality of the local environment and brings economic regenerative 
benefits to the local area.   However, any development proposals brought forward 
must address a number of issues currently faced by local residents in the area.  
Critically, the impact of car travel on football match days needs to be reduced, which 
may require measures to achieve a modal shift which improves the attractiveness of 
public transport.  In addition, the need for environmental management would also 
have to be key components of any development proposals that resulted in the site 
being integrated into every day use by local people as well as visitors. 

  
2.4 The outcome of this process produced the Informal Planning Statement that was 

approved by the Executive Board on 11 September 2007. 
  
2.5 The planning statement that was approved included the key aim of providing a 

coherent approach to facilitating the development of this site in accordance with the 
aspirations set out in the adopted Unitary Development Plan under Policy LT5A.  
From a planning perspective, it is vital that the development does not take place in 
an incremental and piecemeal manner and that the opportunity to integrate future 
development into the local community, contributing to wider regeneration objectives 
is not overlooked. 

  
2.6 Government policy is now clearly aimed at putting Urban Renaissance at the heart of 

tackling urban decline.  A more holistic approach to regeneration is called for, 
reflecting the importance of social and economic interventions as much as physical.  
This is reflected in the Council's Corporate Plan and Regeneration Plan. 

  
2.7 Beeston Hill and Holbeck is one of the most deprived areas in the country.  

Consequently, it is one of the Council's priorities in terms of Renaissance Leeds.  A 
Land Use Framework (LUF) for Beeston Hill and Holbeck was adopted as SPG in 
2005.  This established a series of regeneration principles, aspirations and 
community priorities.  Regeneration plans are currently being prepared to support the 
LUF.  These action plans provide achievable targets for the regeneration of their 
areas.  Eland Road is located at the edge of the defined area, but offers major 
benefits to the wider community in terms of jobs, social inclusion and connectivity to 
the City Centre, as well as physical and environmental improvements.  It is also a 
destination location with the prominence of the football stadium and the need to 
ensure that opportunities to enable the stadium to expand are reflected in the 
Informal Planning Statement 

  
2.8 The planning statement was guided by the adopted UDP policy for the Elland Road 

site (LT5A) which describes the types of ‘leisure and tourism’ uses which were 
anticipated when the policy was prepared.  However, it avoids being overly 
prescriptive, and deliberately incorporates the necessary flexibility to allow the site to 
come forward for a range of development proposals.  This is because any scheme 
must be deliverable and there are a number of development options, depending 
upon whether the site is eventually selected as a preferred site for an arena and/or a 
casino. 

  
 

Page 129



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\4\AI00012400\EllandRoadReport13rdApril0.doc 

2.9 As stated, the existing UDP planning policy for the site allows for large scale leisure 
or tourism proposals which would enhance the regional and national role of the city, 
together with a range of uses which are ancillary to such primary uses and which 
could, in addition, enhance the facilities available to the local community.  This limits 
the opportunities for development of the site to a select number of development 
options and uses.  As an example, the proposed police headquarters on the former 
greyhound stadium would require advertising as a departure from adopted policy 
should the Council be minded to approve a planning application.  The same would 
apply to any residential use within the LT5A boundary.  However, the planning 
statement clearly indicates the Council’s willingness to consider uses and proposals 
beyond the scope of existing planning policy to encourage redevelopment of this site 
for the wider well being of the locality and city. 

  
2.10 The approved Informal Planning Statement has regard to Planning Policy Guidance 

and the need for a sustainable transport solution for the site.  The site provides a 
potentially valuable opportunity to create a park and ride facility combined with 
potential improved bus links to the city centre.  This in turn could provide improved 
access both to the football stadium and other potential uses on the site. 

  
2.11 One of the proposals outlined in the Informal Planning Statement is to minimise the 

impact of generated traffic for existing residents and businesses in the vicinity of the 
redevelopment area in particular those fronting onto Elland Road, together with 
parking for up to 2750 car spaces.  In order to achieve this, an enhancement would 
be required to the existing public transport interchange together with a new road 
being created around the north side of the football stadium reducing the impact of 
car usage on the existing Elland Road.  Discussions have previously taken place 
with WYPTE who were involved as a contributor to the development of the Informal 
Planning Statement.  Ongoing discussions would take place with WYPTE in respect 
of facilitating a new public transport interchange as part of a comprehensive 
development on the site.  In addition further consideration would need to be given to 
the potential use of any new car park as a potential park and ride facility.   

  
2.12 The Informal Planning Statement that was approved by Executive Board on 11 

September 2007 stated:- 
 
 “Given the complexities of land ownership and the Council’s determination to bring 
about a comprehensive scheme for this important site in a reasonable timescale, the 
planning statement states that the use of compulsory purchase to assemble land will 
be considered“. 

  

3.0 Main Issues 

  

3.1 As mentioned above, land assembly is an integral part of ensuring  that a 
comprehensive development is achieved. It might be possible for the Council to 
assemble parts of the site currently not in its ownership through one to one 
negotiations as such opportunities arise, however as the Informal Planning 
Statement has identified, it may be necessary to consider the use of compulsory 
purchase powers to assemble the land.  Detailed information is contained in the 
confidential report regarding the current position in respect of discussions with 
adjoining landowners. 

  
3.2 In respect of the land ownership at Elland Road, from the plan shown at appendix 1, 

it can be seen that  the City Council is the major landowner at Elland Road. With the 
exception of the Elland Road Football Stadium there are only 3 other freehold 

Page 130



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\4\AI00012400\EllandRoadReport13rdApril0.doc 

owners, two leasehold interests that are held on leases from the Council and a 
number of sub tenants which are subject to a head lease. 

  
3.3 The freehold interests other than those owned by the Council are: 
  
 1. Site F –  A small portion of this site is owned freehold by a third party 

commercial interest although the majority of the site totalling 0.50 
hectares (1.57 acres) is owned by the Council. 

    
 2. Site I –  2.83 hectares (7.0 acres) owned by the Castle Family.  Currently 

vacant. 
    
 3. Site J –  0.92 hectares (2.29 acres) owned by West Yorkshire Passenger 

Transport Executive (WYPTE) and currently used as a bus terminus 
for match days. 

   
 The leasehold interests on Council land comprise: 
   
 1. Site F –  The site is subject to an 85 year lease from 1962 and is currently 

occupied by LUAFC and used as a conference facility. 
    
 2. Site G –  0.35 hectares (0.86 acres) subject to a 125 year ground lease to 

Eskmuir Properties Limited from 1982 and further subject to 4 sub 
tenancies.  The site is used as a terrace of 4 industrial units with 
ancillary car parking. 

  
3.4 Although discussions have taken place with some of the landowners, at this stage it 

does not look as though the Council will be able to acquire all the land by agreement 
in order to be able to deliver a comprehensive regeneration package for the area. 

  
3.5 As the process for bringing the site forward for redevelopment can be extensive and 

in light of the various ownerships (albeit the Council owns the majority of the land) 
the Executive Board is now requested to approve the basis on which the Council 
should enter into negotiations for the acquisition of land at Elland Road.  The various 
options for the acquisition of land are outlined in the confidential report that is to be 
considered as part of the agenda.   

  

4.0 Implications for Council Policy and Governance 
  
4.1 The area around Elland Road has remained undeveloped for many years and the 

land owned by the Council has mainly been used as match day car parking with the 
occasional fair.  The comprehensive redevelopment of the site would provide the 
opportunity to add to the regeneration proposals in this area of Leeds and create a 
substantial investment into this part of Leeds.  The regeneration of this area of Leeds 
would assist with the Councils objectives to go up a league, create new job 
opportunities, together with closing the gap. 

  

5.0 Legal and Resource Implications 

  
5.1 In respect of the strategies available to the Council for assembling land at Elland 

Road, these are outlined in the confidential part of the report. 
  
5.2 For the purposes of rule 10.4.3 of the Council's Access to Information procedural 

rules, the information contained in the confidential part of this report relates to the 

Page 131



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\4\AI00012400\EllandRoadReport13rdApril0.doc 

financial or business affairs of particular person, and of the Council.  This information 
is not publicly available from Statutory registers of information kept in respect of 
certain companies and charities.  

  
 To release full details of all of these matters into the public domain would almost 

certainly prejudice landowners and the Council's commercial interests as there may 
be interventions by rival parties at this stage of the land assembly process.  In 
addition, these kind of interventions would lead to serious prejudice to the Council’s 
commercial interests and could damage the process of negotiations with the owners. 

  
5.3 In relation to the public interest test the Elland Road project is a major project with 

very significant regeneration benefits for Leeds and naturally there is a strong public 
interest in the public knowing what the regeneration proposals are and how they will 
be carried out.  For these reasons it recommended that as much information about 
Elland Road proposals is put into the public domain.  To date, there have been a 
number of open reports to the Executive Board on the Elland Road area and in 
particular the Executive Board’s approval to the Informal Planning Statement as an 
open document on 11 September 2007. 

  
5.4 There is a need for the comprehensive regeneration of this area, and it is 

considered, that needs must, at this point in time outweigh the need for complete 
disclosure about the whole of these arrangements in respect of the various options 
for the acquisition of land at Elland Road.  Consequently, it is considered that in all 
the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
mentioned above outweigh the public interest in disclosing the information in the 
confidential part of the report. 

  

6.0 Recommendation 

  
6.1 In the light of the content of this report together with the information contained in the 

confidential report in this agenda it is recommended that the Executive Board 
approve the principle of the Council acquiring  land either by one to one negotiations 
or entering into partnership agreements for the land around the Elland Road Area 
and, in principle, and subject to a more detailed report back, support the use of 
Compulsory Purchase Powers if the acquisition of land by such agreements is not 
successful. 

  
 

Page 132



P
a
g
e
 1

3
3



P
a
g
e
 1

3
4

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



Page 135

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (3)

Document is Restricted



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 141

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (3)

Document is Restricted



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods 
 
Executive Board 
 
Date: 16th April 2008 
 
Subject: Safer Leeds Partnership Plan 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call in                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The report seeks Member approval on the (draft) Safer Leeds Partnership Plan.  The Plan 
sets out the priorities for 2008 – 11 and reports on the progress made towards the current 
three-year Safer Leeds Strategy running from 2005 until 2008.   
 
Safer Leeds (the Crime and Disorder Partnership for Leeds) has a statutory duty to produce 
this Plan.  The Plan outlines the strategic outcomes and activities the Partnership aims to 
deliver. 
 
The Plan will be reviewed and renewed annually to reflect any new emerging priorities. 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap  
 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator: Harvinder 
Saimbhi 
 
Tel:  3950810 

 

 

 

  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (Referred to in report) 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 143



1.0 Purpose Of This Report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Member approval for the Safer Leeds Partnership 

Plan.  The Partnership has a statutory duty to produce a partnership plan covering the 
period 1st April to 31st March 2011.  The plan sets out for the next three years strategic 
outcomes and annual improvement priorities and activities. (Appendix 1) 

2.0 Background Information 

2.1 The Police and Justice Act 2006 received Royal Assent on 8 November 2006. The Act 
amended the partnership provisions of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to make 
Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships (CDRPs) a more effective vehicle for 
tackling crime, anti-social behaviour and substance misuse in their communities  
 
The amendments to the Crime & Disorder Act abolished the duty on CDRPs to 
produce an audit and strategy every three years.  The new statutory requirement for 
CDRPs is to produce a partnership plan for tackling crime and disorder issues.    
 

3.0 Main Issues 
 
3.1 Safer Leeds Partnership Plan 
 
3.2 The five strategic outcomes that the partnership plan aims to deliver are: 

• Creating safer environments by tackling crime 

• Improving lives by reducing the harm caused by substance misuse 

• Supporting victims and reducing the risk of victimization 

• Reducing offending and managing offending behaviour 

• Improving community confidence and public satisfaction 
 

3.3 The strategic outcomes are based on the analysis of the strategic assessment, 
consultation with the public, the legal requirements and targets placed on the 
Partnership.  Each outcome will have improvement priorities and delivery activities. 

3.4 A number of the targets in the SLPP are subject to further negotiations with central 
government as they are designated targets in the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 (that 
incorporates the Leeds local area agreement) and required to be signed off by the 
Secretary of State in June 2008.  

 

4.0 Implications For Council Policy And Governance 

4.1 Safer Leeds is obliged to work within the national framework to deliver improvements 
within the public service agreements in relation to crime reduction.   

 
5.0       Legal And Resource Implications 

5.1 Safer Leeds Partnership receives grant funding from a variety of sources, all of which 
are managed through the Community Safety Commissioning process to deliver 
against the strategic outcomes.  These include: 

 

• Adult Pooled Treatment Budget (Department of Health) 

• Drugs Intervention Programme Main Grant (Home Office) 

Page 144



• Area Based Grant funding including Neighbourhood Renewal Fund, Safer Stronger 
Communities Fund, Trailblazer (Respect) and Local Public Service Agreement 
monies 

• Additional short-term grants from regional GOYH 

• Leeds City Council 

• West Yorkshire Police 
 
 
6.0       Conclusion 

6.1 Safer Leeds has a statutory duty to produce a Partnership Plan covering the period 1st 
April to 31st March 2011.  The plan in appendix 1 will be reviewed and renewed 
annually to reflect new emerging priorities.  The partnership has a duty to consult and 
inform communities on community safety plans.  The activities identified in the plan 
reflect community priorities, concerns, and link directly to both local and national 
related strategies and plans.  

 
7.0      Recommendations 

7.1    Members are requested to recommend Full Council to approve the Safer Leeds 
Partnership Plan. 
 

 

Page 145



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



S
a

fe
r 

L
e

e
d

s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 P
la

n
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

Page 147



Con
tent

s

1 
Fore

word
  

2 
Intro

duct
ion 

 
(Mis

sion
 and

 Pur
pose

) 
4 

Resu
lts 2

005-
2008

 
 

(Wh
at th

e 20
05-2

008 
Stra

tegy
 

 
Achi

eved
) 

5 
Key 

Succ
esse

s 20
05-2

008 
 

 
(Wh

at w
e de

liver
ed) 

9 
Fact

s an
d Fig

ures
  

 
(Find

ings
 from

 the 
2007

 
 

asse
ssm

ent) 
 

11 
Our 

Stra
tegic

 Out
com

es  
 

(Wh
at w

e wa
nt to

 ach
ieve

 by 
 

2011
) 

17 
Our 

Stru
cture

s an
d De

liver
y  

 
Proc

esse
s  

18 
Mea

surin
g Ou

r  Pe
rform

ance
  

Fore
word

We 
are p

leas
ed to

 repo
rt the

 sus
taine

d im
prov

eme
nts m

ade 
durin

g the
 life 

of ou
r pre

viou
s str

ateg
y an

d the
 con

side
rable

 prog
ress

mad
e in 

tack
ling 

crim
e ac

ross
 the 

city. 
In 20

07, t
here

 wer
e 87

,400
 reco

rded
 crim

es, a
lmos

t 11,
000 

fewe
r offe

nces
 than

 in 2
005,

 this
 

is a 
11%

 redu
ction

 in c
rime

 (fina
l figu

res f
or th

e Ap
ril 20

05 to
 Mar

ch 2
008 

strat
egy 

will b
e av

ailab
le la

ter in
 the 

year
).  W

e kn
ow t

here
 

is st
ill m

ore 
to d

o as
, like

 ma
ny o

ther 
cities

, Le
eds 

cont
inue

s to 
face

 the
 cha

lleng
es th

at cr
ime,

 ant
i-soc

ial b
ehav

iour 
and 

drug
addi

ction
 brin

g.  C
rime

 and
 diso

rder 
rema

ins a
 prim

ary c
once

rn fo
r the

 citiz
ens 

of Le
eds.

   
Safe

r Lee
ds h

as a
 stat

utory
 duty

 to p
rodu

ce a
 part

ners
hip p

lan c
over

ing t
he p

eriod
 1st  Ap

ril 20
08 to

 31st  Ma
rch 2

011.
  Thi

s allo
ws u

s 
to pl

an fo
r sho

rt, m
ediu

m an
d lon

g ter
m pr

ioriti
es a

nd to
 alig

n wi
th ot

her p
lann

ing c
ycles

, not
ably

 the 
Leed

s Lo
cal A

rea A
gree

men
t.  

The 
partn

ersh
ip pl

an p
rese

nted
 here

 will 
be re

view
ed a

nd re
new

ed a
nnua

lly to
 refle

ct an
y ne

w em
ergin

g pri
oritie

s.   
This

 part
ners

hip p
lan o

utlin
es o

ur st
rateg

ic ou
tcom

es fo
r the

 nex
t thre

e ye
ars (

2008
-201

1) an
d sp

ecific
ally o

ur im
prov

eme
nt pr

ioriti
es 

for th
e co

ming
 yea

r (20
08-2

009)
. 

We 
inten

d to 
build

 on o
ur pr

evio
us s

ucce
ss b

y tac
kling

 thos
e pro

blem
s of 

grea
test 

conc
ern a

nd b
eliev

e tha
t this

 part
ners

hip p
lan i

s 
flexib

le en
ough

 to re
spon

d to 
the c

hang
ing d

ema
nds 

that 
migh

t be 
plac

ed o
n us

.   
It is 

impo
rtant

 to S
afer 

Leed
s tha

t, no
 mat

ter w
here

 peo
ple l

ive i
n Le

eds,
 they

 sho
uld n

ot on
ly be

 safe
, but

 also
 feel

 safe
.  Yo

ur 
assis

tanc
e is 

very
 imp

ortan
t to u

s be
caus

e yo
u ca

n he
lp us

 deli
ver t

his p
artne

rship
 plan

.  By
 wor

king
 toge

ther 
in pa

rtner
ship

 with
 you

, 
we c

an a
chie

ve s
usta

ined
 crim

e red
uctio

ns a
nd m

ake 
Leed

s a s
afer 

plac
e to 

live, 
work

 and
 visit

.   
Duri

ng th
e ye

ar ah
ead,

 we 
will s

treng
then

 our 
com

mun
ity sa

fety 
com

mitm
ent t

o pa
rtner

ship
 app

roac
hes 

and 
ende

avou
r to t

ackle
 the

mos
t sig

nifica
nt is

sues
 of c

once
rn to

 the 
citize

ns o
f Lee

ds in
 a re

spon
sible

 and
 effe

ctive
 man

ner. 

Cou
ncillo

r Les
 Car

ter, 
Cha

ir of 
Safe

r Lee
ds 

Boar
d

Neil 
Evan

s,  
Cha

ir of 
Safe

r Lee
ds 

Exec
utive

 & D
irect

or of
 

Envi
ronm

ents
 and

 
Neig

hbou
rhoo

ds  
(Lee

ds C
ity C

ounc
il)

1

Page 148



Intro
duct

ion

O
u

r 
M

is
s
io

n
 

‘T
o

 
s
e

c
u

re
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 

c
ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 

d
is

o
rd

e
r 

a
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 

fe
a

r 
o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
’

Who
 are 

Safe
r Le

eds 
Safe

r Lee
ds is

 a st
atuto

ry pa
rtner

ship
 form

ed a
s a r

esul
t of t

he C
rime

 and
 Diso

rder 
Act 1

998.
      

The 
Safe

r Lee
ds E

xecu
tive 

sets
 stra

tegic
 dire

ction
 and

 is a
ccou

ntab
le fo

r del
iveri

ng th
e pa

rtner
ship

 plan
 by m

akin
g de

cisio
ns 

abou
t act

ivity,
 reso

urce
 allo

catio
n an

d pro
blem

 solv
ing. 

 It is
 mad

e up
 of s

enio
r offi

cers
 from

 the 
‘resp

onsi
ble a

utho
rities

’ and
‘co-o

pera
ting 

bodi
es’ t

hese
 are:

 
Leed

s Cit
y Co

unci
l 

Leed
s Pri

mary
 Car

e Tru
st 

Wes
t Yor

kshir
e Fir

e an
d Re

scue
 Ser

vice 
Wes

t Yor
kshir

e Po
lice  

Wes
t Yor

kshir
e Po

lice A
utho

rity 
Leed

s Ini
tiativ

e
Child

ren a
nd Y

oung
 Peo

ple’s
 Soc

ial C
are  

Natio
nal O

ffend
er M

anag
eme

nt Se
rvice

 / Pr
obat

ion  
Elec

ted m
emb

er w
ith le

ad fo
r com

mun
ity sa

fety 
Safe

r Lee
ds B

oard
 is m

ade 
up o

f rep
rese

ntati
ves 

from
 the 

publ
ic, p

rivat
e an

d vo
lunta

ry se
ctors

.  Th
is is 

a co
nsul

tativ
e gro

up 
that 

revie
ws t

he p
artne

rship
 plan

s an
d en

sure
s tha

t co
mmu

nity 
cons

ultat
ion i

s co
-ordi

nate
d ef

fecti
vely 

and 
repo

rts t
o th

e 
citize

ns o
f Lee

ds. 
Our 

Purp
ose 

- wh
at ar

e we
 her

e to 
do  

In pa
rtner

ship
 with

 the 
citize

ns o
f Lee

ds, w
e ar

e he
re to

 deli
ver t

he S
afer 

Leed
s pa

rtner
ship

 plan
 and

 ther
eby 

cont
ribut

e to 
crea

ting 
safe

r and
 stro

nger
 com

mun
ities.

   
By u

nder
takin

g the
 200

7 as
sess

men
t and

 prod
ucin

g thi
s pla

n Sa
fer L

eeds
 has

 had
 an o

ppor
tunit

y to:
 

Revi
ew p

rogre
ss in

 term
s of 

activ
ity, im

pact
, per

form
ance

, risk
 and

 valu
e for

 mon
ey 

Rea
sses

s the
 exte

nt of
 crim

e, di
sord

er an
d su

bsta
nce 

misu
se 

Enga
ge w

ith s
take

hold
ers a

nd lo
cal c

omm
uniti

es to
 set 

impr
ovem

ent p
riorit

ies 
Deve

lop s
hort,

 med
ium 

and 
long

 term
 perf

orma
nce 

mea
sure

s 
Con

side
r how

 reso
urce

s ca
n be

 effe
ctive

ly us
ed to

 imp
rove

 serv
ice d

elive
ry  

Ensu
re th

at ou
r imp

rove
men

t prio
rities

 are 
inclu

ded 
in wi

der c
omm

unity
 plan

s 
This

 plan
 has

 not 
been

 dev
elop

ed in
 isola

tion 
and 

links
 dire

ctly t
o bo

th lo
cal a

nd n
ation

al re
lated

 stra
tegie

s an
d pla

ns. W
e ha

ve
ensu

red 
that 

this 
plan

 com
plem

ents
 and

 max
imise

s op
portu

nities
 thro

ugh 
the L

eeds
 Stra

tegic
 Pla

n an
d via

 the 
Loca

l Are
a 

Agre
eme

nt ta
rgets

.  
2

Page 149



Intro
duct

ion
O

u
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 

(2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

)

O
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

th
re

e
 y

e
a

rs
 o

u
r 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

ill
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
: 

C
re

a
ti
n

g
 s

a
fe

r 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ts
 

b
y
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 c

ri
m

e
 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 l
iv

e
s
 b

y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 

th
e

 h
a

rm
 c

a
u

s
e

d
 b

y
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 

m
is

u
s
e

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 v
ic

ti
m

s
 a

n
d

 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 

v
ic

ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lic
 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

Visio
n - w

here
 we 

wan
t to 

be 
‘The

 Visi
on fo

r Le
eds 

2004
-202

0’ is
 the 

sust
aina

ble c
omm

unity
 stra

tegy
 for 

the c
ity a

nd d
escr

ibes
 the 

long
-term

 amb
ition

 of 
‘mak

ing s
ure 

ever
yone

 has
 a b

etter
 qua

lity o
f life

 now
 and

 for 
gene

ratio
ns to

 com
e’.  

Leed
s Ini

tiativ
e (th

e loc
al st

rateg
ic 

partn
ersh

ip) g
uide

s the
 wor

k of 
all p

artne
rship

s’ to
ward

s ac
hiev

ing t
hree

 aim
s: 

Goin
g up

 a le
ague

 as a
 city

 - m
akin

g Le
eds 

an in
terna

tiona
lly co

mpe
titive

 city
, the

 bes
t pla

ce to
 live

, wo
rk an

d lea
rn, 

with 
a hig

h qu
ality 

of lif
e for

 eve
ryon

e 
Narr

owin
g the

 gap
 - be

twee
n the

 mos
t dis

adva
ntag

ed p
eopl

e an
d co

mmu
nitie

s an
d the

 rest
 of th

e cit
y 

Deve
lopin

g Le
eds’

 role
 as t

he re
gion

al ca
pital

 - su
ppor

ting 
and 

supp
orted

 by a
 reg

ion t
hat i

s be
com

ing i
ncre

asin
gly 

pros
pero

us 
The 

Visio
n inc

lude
s eig

ht th
eme

s:  
Cultu

re 
Ente

rpris
e an

d Ec
onom

y 
Lear

ning
 

Tran
spor

t 
Envi

ronm
ent 

Hea
lth a

nd W
ellbe

ing 
Thriv

ing N
eigh

bour
hood

s  
Harm

onio
us C

omm
uniti

es 
The 

Leed
s Str

ateg
ic Pl

an is
 the 

deliv
ery p

lan o
f The

 Visi
on a

nd s
ets o

ut w
here

 the 
city 

wan
ts to

 be b
y 20

11, l
ocal

 issu
es a

nd 
prior

ities 
relev

ant t
o the

 them
es a

re re
flect

ed in
 the 

Area
 Deli

very
 Plan

s.  
Leed

s Ini
tiativ

e is 
the m

ain p
artne

rship
 foru

m fo
r col

lectiv
ely r

evie
wing

 and
 stee

ring 
reso

urce
s to 

supp
ort t

he d
elive

ry of
 the

Leed
s Str

ateg
ic Pl

an. 
Safe

r Le
eds 

shar
es th

is vi
sion

 and
 reco

gnis
es w

e ha
ve a

n im
porta

nt ro
le to

 play
 in r

ealis
ing t

he p
ublic

’s as
pirat

ions
.  Th

e 
Visio

n co
mmi

ts Le
eds 

Initia
tive 

and 
its p

artne
rship

s’ to
 mak

e su
re th

at th
ey: ‘

tack
le cr

ime 
and 

com
mun

ity sa
fety 

in ev
ery o

ne o
f 

the V
ision

’s pr
ogra

mme
s of 

work
’.  3

Page 150



-2
0

%
-3

0
%

-2
5
%

-1
5
%

-3
5

%

Publ
ic Se

rvice
 Agr

eem
ent P

SA1
 Perf

orma
nce

Dece
mbe

r 200
7

Perfo
rman

ce =
 -30.

5%

-2
0

%
-3

0
%

-2
5
%

-1
5
%

-3
5

%

-2
0

%
-3

0
%

-2
5
%

-1
5
%

-3
5

%

Publ
ic Se

rvice
 Agr

eem
ent P

SA1
 Perf

orma
nce

Dece
mbe

r 200
7

Perfo
rman

ce =
 -30.

5%

Res
ults 

(200
5-20

08) –
 wha

t the
 200

5-20
08 s

trate
gy a

chie
ved 

P
S

A
1
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

P
S

A
1
 
is

 
a

 
P

u
b
lic

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

ri
m

e
 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 
th

a
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

m
u
s
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 

b
y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
.

T
h
e
 

P
S

A
1
 

c
ri
m

e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

ta
rg

e
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 

C
ri
m

e
 

S
u
rv

e
y
 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r 

c
ri
m

e
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 

b
a

s
e

lin
e

 
s
e

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 H
o

m
e

 O
ff

ic
e
. 

S
a
fe

r 
L
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 W

e
s
t 

Y
o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 P

o
lic

e
 

jo
in

tl
y
 s

e
t 

a
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 P

S
A

1
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
5

%
.

B
y
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
, 

L
e
e
d

s
 

h
a
d

 
a

c
h

ie
v

e
d

 a
 3

0
.5

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 B
C

S
 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r 

c
ri

m
e

. 

Figu
res 

for t
he A

pril 2
005 

to M
arch

 200
8 str

ateg
y 

will b
e av

ailab
le la

ter in
 the 

year
 

Betw
een 

2005
 and

 200
7 Sa

fer L
eeds

 mad
e co

nsid
erab

le pr
ogre

ss in
 tack

ling 
crim

e ac
ross

 the 
city. 

In 20
07, t

here
 wer

e 87
,400

 
reco

rded
 crim

es, a
lmos

t 11,
000 

fewe
r offe

nces
 than

 in 2
005,

 this
 is a

 11%
 redu

ction
 in c

rime
 (fina

l figu
res f

or th
e Ap

ril 20
05 to

Marc
h 20

08 s
trate

gy w
ill be

 ava
ilable

 late
r in t

he y
ear).

  

9
8

,3
0

9
9

6
,0

6
1

8
7

,4
0

0

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

Tren
ds in

 Rec
orde

d Cr
ime 

in Le
eds 

2005
 to 2

007
Betw

een 
2005

 and
 200

7:
Reco

rded
 crim

e fel
l by 1

1% 
Viole

nt cr
ime 

fell b
y 12

.5% 
Vehi

cle c
rime

 fell b
y 20

.4%
Dom

estic
 Bur

glary
 incr

ease
d by

 7.0%
Rob

bery
 incr

ease
d by

 19.1
%

9
8

,3
0

9
9

6
,0

6
1

8
7

,4
0

0

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

Tren
ds in

 Rec
orde

d Cr
ime 

in Le
eds 

2005
 to 2

007
Betw

een 
2005

 and
 200

7:
Reco

rded
 crim

e fel
l by 1

1% 
Viole

nt cr
ime 

fell b
y 12

.5% 
Vehi

cle c
rime

 fell b
y 20

.4%
Dom

estic
 Bur

glary
 incr

ease
d by

 7.0%
Rob

bery
 incr

ease
d by

 19.1
%

Red
uctio

ns in
 offe

nce 
num

bers
 do n

ot te
ll the

 who
le st

ory; 
the f

ollow
ing p

ages
 give

 exa
mple

s of 
the w

ork t
hat S

afer 
Leed

s lea
d 

and 
supp

orted
 to a

chie
ve s

ucce
ss. F

urthe
r info

rmat
ion a

bout
 our 

perfo
rman

ce d
uring

 200
5-20

08 w
ill be

 ava
ilable

 late
r in 

the 
year

.

4

Page 151



Key
 Suc

cess
es (2

005-
2008

) - ex
amp

les o
f wh

at w
e de

liver
ed

T
a

c
k

li
n

g
 B

u
rg

la
ry

 -
 A

ll
e

y
g

a
ti

n
g

W
h

a
t 

w
a

s
 t

h
e

 i
s

s
u

e
?

High
er th

an a
vera

ge b
urgla

ry ra
tes w

ere r
epor

ted i
n so

me a
reas

 of th
e cit

y. 
W

h
a

t 
d

id
 w

e
 d

o
?

 
The 

Clea
n Ne

ighb
ourh

oods
 and

 Env
ironm

ent A
ct 20

05 g
ave 

loca
l aut

horit
ies m

ore 
pow

ers t
o tem

pora
rily r

estri
ct ac

cess
 to p

ublic
 

high
ways

 for 
the p

urpo
se o

f crim
e pr

even
tion.

  Sa
fer L

eeds
 follo

wed
 bes

t pra
ctice

 and
 intro

duce
d all

eyga
ting,

 rest
rictin

g ac
cess

 to 
back

 stre
ets a

nd c
arria

gew
ays 

to de
ter p

oten
tial c

rimin
als. 

Alley
gatin

g is 
a pro

ven 
meth

od o
f sup

porti
ng c

rime
 prev

entio
n me

asur
es

and 
prov

ides
 reas

sura
nce 

to lo
cal r

esid
ents

.  All
eyga

ting 
is on

e of 
seve

ral to
ols u

sed 
by S

afer 
Leed

s to 
addr

ess 
dom

estic
 burg

lary.
By D

ecem
ber 2

007,
 Lee

ds h
ad 1

15 A
lleyg

ates
 cov

ering
 69 c

arria
gew

ays 
and 

pass
agew

ays. 
Alley

gate
s we

re in
stalle

d in 
area

s wh
ere 

resid
ents

 had
 suf

fered
 from

 ant
i-soc

ial b
ehav

iour 
and 

othe
r cri

mina
l act

ivitie
s. T

hese
 are

as in
clud

e pa
rts o

f Ha
rehil

ls, B
eest

on,
Woo

dhou
se, B

urley
, Ch

apel
town

, Bur
man

tofts
 and

 Cha
pel A

llerto
n. 

W
h

a
t 

d
if

fe
re

n
c

e
 d

id
 w

e
 

m
a

k
e

?

Feed
back

 abo
ut Al

leyg
ates

 was
 very

 pos
itive 

and 
they

 help
ed p

reve
nt cr

ime,
 redu

ce a
nti-s

ocia
l beh

avio
ur an

d fly
-tipp

ing. 
 One

 loca
l 

resid
ent s

aid: 
“I us

ed to
 be 

scar
ed to

 wal
k pa

st th
e all

ey a
nd h

eard
 stor

ies o
f girl

s be
ing d

ragg
ed in

 ther
e.  It

 is a
 lot q

uiete
r on 

the 
stree

ts no
w an

d the
re is

 not 
as m

uch 
dam

age.
  The

re is
 less

 anti
-soc

ial b
ehav

iour,
 less

 van
dalis

m, a
nd c

hildr
en c

an p
lay s

afely
”.

T
a

c
k

li
n

g
 A

n
ti

-S
o

c
ia

l 
B

e
h

a
v

io
u

r

W
h

a
t 

w
a

s
 t

h
e

 i
s

s
u

e
?

 
Anti-

Soci
al B

ehav
iour 

affec
ts pe

ople
s’ ev

eryd
ay li

fe an
d ca

n de
vast

ate a
 neig

hbou
rhoo

d.  I
t is r

ecog
nise

d tha
t AS

B iss
ues 

can 
be

com
plex

 and
 cha

lleng
ing a

nd c
anno

t be 
deal

t with
 in is

olati
on.

W
h

a
t 

d
id

 w
e

 d
o

?
 

Impl
eme

nted
 the 

ASB
 stra

tegy
, dea

ling 
with:

 
Prev

entio
n - u

sing
 low

 leve
l inte

rven
tions

 suc
h as

 acc
epta

ble b
ehav

iour 
cont

racts
, me

diati
on, i

nform
al w

arnin
gs a

nd re
ferra

l 
to di

vers
iona

ry sc
hem

es  
Enfo

rcem
ent -

 usin
g the

 full 
rang

e of 
tools

 and
 pow

ers a
vaila

ble t
o all

 part
ners

 to ta
ckle 

pers
isten

t AS
B inc

ludin
g An

ti-So
cial

Beha
viou

r Ord
ers  

 
Rese

ttlem
ent -

 to e
nsur

e wh
ere l

egal
 rem

edie
s we

re pu
rsue

d, pe
rpetr

ators
 of A

SB c
ontin

ued 
to be

 mon
itore

d an
d dir

ecte
d 

towa
rds s

uppo
rtive

 serv
ices 

to su
stain

 redu
ction

s in 
ASB

 
W

h
a

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 d
id

 w
e

 
m

a
k

e
?

In 20
06, L

eeds
 was

 awa
rded

 ‘Res
pect

 Are
a’ st

atus
 by t

he H
ome

 Offi
ce, s

ince
 then

 we 
have

: 
Esta

blish
ed a

 Fam
ily In

terve
ntion

 Pro
ject 

and 
Pare

nting
 Pro

gram
me 

Dem
onst

rated
 ope

nnes
s an

d ac
coun

tabil
ity th

roug
h Fa

ce th
e Pe

ople
 ses

sion
s 

Used
 the 

full r
ange

 of to
ols a

nd p
owe

rs an
d ad

opte
d the

 Res
pect

 Hou
sing

 Stan
dard

 
5

Page 152



Key
 Suc

cess
es (2

005-
2008

) - ex
amp

les o
f wh

at w
e de

liver
ed

T
a

c
k

li
n

g
 V

io
le

n
t 

C
ri

m
e

 -
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
 c

e
n

tr
e

W
h

a
t 

w
a

s
 t

h
e

 i
s

s
u

e
?

 
In Ap

ril 20
06, t

he c
ity ce

ntre 
was 

iden
tified

 as a
rea w

here
 alco

hol f
uelle

d cri
me a

nd d
isord

er, in
 part

icula
r ass

aults
 and

 hara
ssm

ent 
incid

ents
, we

re ca
usin

g gro
wing

 con
cern

. 
W

h
a

t 
d

id
 w

e
 d

o
?

 
As p

art o
f the

 ‘Tac
kling

 Viol
ent C

rime
 Pro

gram
me’ 

a mu
lti-ag

ency
 stee

ring 
grou

p wa
s for

med
 with

 sev
eral 

serv
ices 

bein
g en

gage
d for

the 
first 

time
 coll

ectiv
ely i

nclu
ding

 Pla
nnin

g, L
icen

sing
 Enf

orce
men

t, Hi
ghw

ays 
and 

Stre
et S

ervic
es.  

All s
ervic

es p
artic

ipate
d in

 
initia

tives
 to m

ake 
the s

treet
s a s

afer 
and 

clea
ner p

lace
 for v

isitor
s an

d res
iden

ts to
 enjo

y.  
Fund

ing w
as s

ecur
ed fo

r a c
ity c

entre
 triag

e pil
ot (a

 syst
em w

here
 pati

ents
 wer

e as
sess

ed b
y am

bula
nce 

serv
ice b

efore
 atte

ndin
g to 

accid
ent a

nd e
merg

ency
)in p

artne
rship

 with
 Wes

t Yor
kshir

e Am
bula

nce 
Serv

ice. 
Taxi

 ma
rsha

ls w
ere 

intro
duce

d th
roug

hout
 Nov

emb
er a

nd D
ecem

ber 
and 

nigh
t bu

ses 
ran 

on F
riday

 and
 Sat

urda
y nig

hts 
from

 
00:3

0hrs
 unti

l 03:
45 h

rs up
 to a

nd in
clud

ing N
ew Y

ears
 Eve

.   
Safe

r Le
eds 

work
ed w

ith th
e lic

ensi
ng tr

ade 
and 

deve
lope

d the
 ‘Be

st B
ar N

one 
Sche

me’ 
to pr

omo
te so

cially
 resp

onsi
ble l

icen
sed 

prem
ises.

  By 
the e

nd o
f the

 yea
r, 60

 new
 licen

sed 
prem

ises 
had 

joine
d the

 sch
eme

. Sim
ilarly

, the
 Pub

watc
h sc

hem
e wa

s ch
ange

d to
mak

e it m
ore r

eflec
tive 

of th
e typ

e of 
licen

sed 
prem

ises 
in th

e cit
y.

W
h

a
t 

d
if

fe
re

n
c

e
 d

id
 w

e
 

m
a

k
e

?

The 
city c

entre
 targ

et ar
ea e

xper
ienc

ed a
 19%

 redu
ction

 in v
iolen

t crim
e, an

d the
 Hom

e Of
fice 

reco
gnis

ed L
eeds

 as a
 suc

cess
 stor

y.  
Leed

s city
 cen

tre is
 now

 a sa
fer p

lace
 at n

ight,
 whic

h is 
critic

al if 
we a

re to
 mai

ntain
 a th

rivin
g nig

ht-tim
e ec

onom
y for

 all.
R

e
d

u
c

in
g

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 C

ri
m

e
 -

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

W
h

a
t 

w
a

s
 t

h
e

 i
s

s
u

e
?

 
In Ja

nuar
y 20

07, f
ollow

ing a
 perf

orma
nce 

revie
w, it

 was
 felt 

more
 cou

ld be
 don

e in 
thos

e co
mmu

nitie
s su

fferin
g hig

h lev
els o

f crim
e 

and 
anti-

socia
l beh

avio
ur.

W
h

a
t 

d
id

 w
e

 d
o

?
 

Safe
r Lee

ds re
vitali

sed 
and 

rena
med

 exis
ting 

oper
ation

s un
der t

he n
ame

 Ope
ratio

n Ch
amp

ion. 
 This

 is a
 mul

ti-ag
ency

 resp
onse

 to 
crim

e an
d gr

ime 
prob

lems
 at a

 loca
l lev

el.  
Ope

ratio
n Ch

amp
ion a

ctivit
ies t

ake 
plac

e thr
ee ti

mes
 a m

onth
 in t

arge
ted ‘

hots
pots

’ to 
impr

ove 
neig

hbou
rhoo

ds a
nd p

rovid
e loc

al pe
ople

 reas
sura

nce 
that 

agen
cies 

are w
orkin

g tog
ethe

r to t
ry an

d res
olve

 loca
l pro

blem
s.

W
h

a
t 

d
if

fe
re

n
c

e
 d

id
 w

e
 

m
a

k
e

?

Betw
een 

Febr
uary

 200
7 an

d the
 end

 of S
epte

mbe
r 200

7, se
vent

een 
Ope

ratio
n Ch

amp
ion e

vent
s ha

d tak
en p

lace
 acro

ss th
e cit

y. 

6

Page 153



Key
 Suc

cess
es (2

005-
2008

) - ex
amp

les o
f wh

at w
e de

liver
ed

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 P

o
li

c
in

g
 -

 P
o

li
c

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

W
h

a
t 

w
a

s
 t

h
e

 i
s

s
u

e
?

Safe
r Lee

ds k
now

s fro
m its

 con
sulta

tion 
with 

resid
ents

 that
 hav

ing a
 high

ly vis
ible 

polic
e pre

senc
e in 

our n
eigh

bour
hood

s pro
vide

s 
reas

sura
nce 

to th
e cit

izen
s of 

Leed
s.

W
h

a
t 

d
id

 w
e

 d
o

?
 

Fund
ing f

or P
olice

 Com
mun

ity S
uppo

rt Of
ficer

s wa
s inc

reas
ed w

hich
 resu

lted 
in th

e co
unci

l pro
vidin

g a f
urthe

r 170
 PCS

Os t
o en

sure
a mi

nimu
m of

 five
 in e

ach 
of th

e 33
 war

ds a
cros

s Le
eds;

 ther
e are

 now
 392

 PCS
Os in

 Lee
ds.  

 
W

h
a

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 d
id

 w
e

 
m

a
k

e
?

PCS
Os h

ave 
spen

t on 
aver

age 
85%

 of th
eir ti

me w
orkin

g wi
thin 

the c
omm

unity
, alo

ngsi
de N

eigh
bour

hood
 Poli

cing
 Tea

ms a
nd h

ave 
beco

me a
n im

porta
nt pa

rt of 
tack

ling 
crim

e in 
our n

eigh
bour

hood
s.

T
a

c
k

li
n

g
 D

ru
g

 M
is

u
s

e
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 L

iv
e

s

W
h

a
t 

w
a

s
 t

h
e

 i
s

s
u

e
?

 
Rese

arch
 und

ertak
en in

 Dec
emb

er 20
05, o

n be
half 

of th
e Ho

me O
ffice

, est
imat

ed th
at Le

eds 
had 

betw
een 

6050
 and

 715
4 pro

blem
 

drug
 use

rs, o
f the

se, a
n es

tima
ted 3

,352
 inje

cted
 Clas

s A d
rugs

.
W

h
a

t 
d

id
 w

e
 d

o
?

 
The 

city’s
 Dru

g Int
erve

ntion
 Pro

gram
me (

DIP)
 aim

s to 
get a

dult 
offen

ders
 who

 mis
use 

drug
s ou

t of 
crim

e an
d int

o tre
atme

nt, w
ith

supp
ort fr

om o
ther 

key 
serv

ices 
such

 as h
ousi

ng, e
mplo

yme
nt an

d tra
ining

. The
re ar

e ov
er 90

 staf
f from

 diffe
rent 

agen
cies 

invo
lved

 in 
deliv

ering
 DIP

, inc
ludin

g the
 Lee

ds C
ity C

ounc
il, Le

eds 
PCT

, We
st Yo

rksh
ire P

roba
tion,

 We
st Yo

rksh
ire P

olice
, Sa

fer L
eeds

, So
cial 

Serv
ices 

and 
seve

ral v
olun

tary 
secto

r ser
vices

. 
In 20

07, a
 sing

le po
int o

f con
tact 

was 
esta

blish
ed, i

n the
 Mab

gate
 Mill

s ce
ntre,

 whe
re d

rug 
user

s co
uld a

cces
s rap

id pr
escr

ibing
, 

atten
d ap

poin
tmen

ts wi
th ca

se m
anag

ers, 
and 

parti
cipa

te in
 vari

ous 
grou

p wo
rk an

d ac
tivitie

s.  
W

h
a

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 d
id

 w
e

 
m

a
k

e
?

Partn
ersh

ip w
orkin

g led
 to a

n ov
erall

 imp
rove

men
t in t

he c
ase 

man
agem

ent o
f clie

nts t
hrou

gh th
eir tr

eatm
ent j

ourn
ey.  

As a
 dire

ct
resu

lt, re
al pr

ogre
ss w

as m
ade 

in de
aling

 with
 the 

caus
es o

f offe
ndin

g be
havi

our a
s we

ll as 
treat

ing t
he s

ymp
toms

.
Ove

r the
 last

 4 ye
ars, 

almo
st 4,

000 
drug

 use
rs ha

ve e
ntere

d the
 prog

ramm
e as

 part
 of th

eir tr
eatm

ent j
ourn

ey. 
This

 join
t wo

rking
 high

light
s ho

w al
l asp

ects
 of d

rug 
user

s live
s', fr

om t
heir 

drug
 taki

ng to
 thei

r offe
ndin

g be
havi

our, 
can 

chan
ge to

 
enab

le in
divid

uals
 to m

ove 
on w

ith th
eir li

ves.
 

7

Page 154



Key
 Suc

cess
es (2

005-
2008

) - ex
amp

les o
f wh

at w
e de

liver
ed

W
e

a
p

o
n

s
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s

s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 -
 W

A
P

W
h

a
t 

w
a

s
 t

h
e

 i
s

s
u

e
?

 
In Le

eds,
 ther

e ha
ve b

een 
a nu

mbe
r of c

ases
 whe

re fa
tal in

jurie
s ha

ve b
een 

caus
ed b

y yo
ung 

peop
le us

ing k
nive

s an
d gu

ns. 
W

h
a

t 
d

id
 w

e
 d

o
?

 
To p

reve
nt an

 incr
ease

 in th
e us

e of 
wea

pons
 an i

ntera
ctive

 edu
catio

nal c
rime

 prev
entio

n pro
gram

me w
as d

evel
oped

.  Th
e We

apon
s 

Awa
rene

ss P
rogra

mme
 inclu

des 
a pre

sent
ation

 to y
oung

 peo
ple e

xpla
ining

 the 
risks

 and
 con

sequ
ence

s link
ed w

ith c
arryi

ng o
r usi

ng
wea

pons
. It w

as d
esig

ned 
to b

e inf
orma

tive,
 gra

phic
 and

 com
pellin

g, a
llowi

ng d
iscus

sion
 on 

real 
case

 stud
ies, 

inclu
ding

 exp
licit

phot
ogra

phs 
of in

jurie
s en

ablin
g yo

ung 
peop

le to
 mak

e po
sitive

 info
rmed

 cho
ices.

  
Them

es o
f the

 WA
P inc

lude
:  

the l
aw r

elati
ng to

 pos
sess

ion o
f offe

nsive
 wea

pons
 

the m
edic

al ef
fects

 of w
eapo

ns, e
spec

ially 
knife

 crim
e 

the p
rinci

ple o
f not

 arm
ing y

our a
ttack

er 
that 

it is ‘
cool

’ to r
un a

way 
from

 wea
pons

 if po
ssibl

e 
that 

infor
mati

on s
houl

d be
 pas

sed 
on if

 you
ng p

eopl
e are

 awa
re th

eir p
eers

 are 
in po

sses
sion

 of a
 wea

pon 
W

h
a

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 d
id

 w
e

 
m

a
k

e
?

150 
volu

ntee
rs in

 Lee
ds w

ere t
raine

d to 
deliv

er th
e WA

P wi
th th

e Yo
uth O

ffend
ing S

ervic
e, lo

cal s
choo

ls an
d yo

uth o
rgan

isatio
ns.  

In 
2006

/07, 
the W

AP w
as d

elive
red t

o ov
er 5,

000 
child

ren i
n Le

eds.
  

PC B
ob B

owm
an, c

omm
ents

, “At
 the 

start
 of e

very
 ses

sion
 I as

k the
 clas

s wh
o wo

uld i
nform

 on 
anyo

ne c
arryi

ng w
eapo

ns. T
he 

resp
onse

 is u
sual

ly on
e or

 in m
ost c

ases
 non

e.  A
t the

 end
 I as

k the
 sam

e qu
estio

n an
d the

 resp
onse

 is t
he c

omp
lete 

oppo
site,

 
usua

lly m
ost o

f the
 clas

s ind
icate

 they
 wou

ld in
form

 on 
som

eone
 carr

ying
 a w

eapo
n”.  

A he
ad te

ache
r com

men
ted, 

“At f
irst I

 was
 

scep
tical 

abou
t the

 prog
ramm

e bu
t now

 that
 I ha

ve s
een 

it firs
t han

d an
d list

ened
 to th

e co
mme

nts f
rom 

my p
upils

, the
re is

 no d
oubt

 
that 

it is a
n ex

celle
nt id

ea a
nd o

ne th
at ac

tuall
y ma

kes 
an im

pact
 on t

he m
inds

 of th
ose 

that 
have

 liste
ned 

to it’
’.

8

Page 155



Fact
s an

d Fig
ures

- fin
ding

s fro
m th

e 20
07 J

oint
 Stra

tegic
 Ass

essm
ent 

W
h

a
t 

is
 t

h
e

 J
o

in
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t?

A
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

is
 

th
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

m
u
s
t 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

o
n

c
e
 a

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h
e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

ri
n

g
s
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 
a
n
d
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 

th
a
t 

a
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
n
e
e
d
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 
th

e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

y
e
a
r 

a
h
e
a
d
 

a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 p
la

n
. 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

h
a

v
e

 

re
p
la

c
e
d
 

th
e
 

th
re

e
 

y
e
a
rl
y
 

c
ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 

d
is

o
rd

e
r 

a
u
d
it
s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 b
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

T
h
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

is
 

n
o
t 

th
e
 o

n
ly

 a
n
a
ly

ti
c
a
l 

p
ro

d
u
c
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 u
s
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
, 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 

th
a

t 
w

ill
 

in
fo

rm
 

th
e

 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

.

This
 sec

tion 
cons

iders
 the

 mai
n fin

ding
s fro

m th
e Jo

int S
trate

gic A
sses

sme
nt un

derta
ken 

by S
afer 

Leed
s in 

Dece
mbe

r 20
07 to

 
ensu

re th
at th

e pri
oritie

s in 
the 2

008-
2011

 Par
tners

hip P
lan r

eflec
t the

 mos
t up-

to-da
te cr

ime 
trend

s.  
The 

Join
t Str

ateg
ic As

sess
men

t sho
wed

 that
: 

More
 than

 half
  the

 crim
e rec

orde
d by

 the 
polic

e is 
acqu

isitiv
e cri

me  
 

More
 than

 one
 in fi

ve o
ffenc

es re
cord

ed b
y the

 poli
ce a

re en
viron

men
tal c

rime
s (cr

imin
al da

mag
e) 

Few
er  th

an 3
 in 1

00 v
iolen

t offe
nces

 in L
eeds

 are 
of se

rious
 viole

nce 
(as c

lassi
fied 

by th
e Ho

me O
ffice

)
In 20

07, t
here

 wer
e 8,6

61 fe
wer 

offen
ces 

than
 in 2

006 
(200

7 is 
the m

ost r
ecen

t yea
r for

 whi
ch th

ere i
s co

mple
te da

ta). T
he c

hart
belo

w sh
ows 

the o
ffenc

es th
at re

cord
ed th

e mo
st su

bsta
ntial

 redu
ction

s in 
2007

 wer
e cri

mina
l dam

age 
(2,89

2 few
er of

fenc
es), 

othe
r 

viole
nce 

(1,91
3 few

er of
fenc

es) a
nd th

eft fr
om m

otor 
vehi

cle (
1,06

9 few
er of

fenc
es). 

The 
offen

ces 
that 

reco
rded

 the 
mos

t sub
stan

tial 
incre

ases
 in 2

007 
were

 Dom
estic

 Bur
glary

 (165
 mor

e off
ence

s) an
d Ro

bber
y (76

 mor
e off

ence
s). 

1
0
%

5
%

2
%

-4
%

-6
%

-6
%

-1
0
%

-1
2
%

-1
3
%

-1
3
%

-1
3
%

-1
8
%

-2
4
%

Hand
ling

Robb
ery

Dom
estic

 Bur
glary

Othe
r The

ft
Drug

s Of
fenc

es
Othe

r Bu
rglar

y
Sexu

al O
ffenc

es
Thef

t from
 Veh

icle
Othe

r Vio
lenc

e
Crim

inal 
Dam

age
Thef

t of V
ehic

le
Frau

d & F
orge

ry
Othe

r Cri
me

Cha
nge 

in re
cord

ed c
rime

 mea
sure

d fro
m ye

ar en
ded 

31/1
2/06

 to 3
1/12

/07

Thes
e ch

ange
s ha

ve h
elpe

d inf
orm 

the s
elec

tion 
of pr

ioritie
s for

the 2
008-

2011
 Par

tners
hip P

lan
1
0
%

5
%

2
%

-4
%

-6
%

-6
%

-1
0
%

-1
2
%

-1
3
%

-1
3
%

-1
3
%

-1
8
%

-2
4
%

Hand
ling

Robb
ery

Dom
estic

 Bur
glary

Othe
r The

ft
Drug

s Of
fenc

es
Othe

r Bu
rglar

y
Sexu

al O
ffenc

es
Thef

t from
 Veh

icle
Othe

r Vio
lenc

e
Crim

inal 
Dam

age
Thef

t of V
ehic

le
Frau

d & F
orge

ry
Othe

r Cri
me

1
0
%

5
%

2
%

-4
%

-6
%

-6
%

-1
0
%

-1
2
%

-1
3
%

-1
3
%

-1
3
%

-1
8
%

-2
4
%

Hand
ling

Robb
ery

Dom
estic

 Bur
glary

Othe
r The

ft
Drug

s Of
fenc

es
Othe

r Bu
rglar

y
Sexu

al O
ffenc

es
Thef

t from
 Veh

icle
Othe

r Vio
lenc

e
Crim

inal 
Dam

age
Thef

t of V
ehic

le
Frau

d & F
orge

ry
Othe

r Cri
me

Cha
nge 

in re
cord

ed c
rime

 mea
sure

d fro
m ye

ar en
ded 

31/1
2/06

 to 3
1/12

/07

Thes
e ch

ange
s ha

ve h
elpe

d inf
orm 

the s
elec

tion 
of pr

ioritie
s for

the 2
008-

2011
 Par

tners
hip P

lan

9

Page 156



Fact
s an

d Fig
ures

- fin
ding

s fro
m th

e 20
07 J

oint
 Stra

tegic
 Ass

essm
ent

A
c

q
u

is
it

iv
e

 C
ri

m
e

 
In 20

06/0
7, m

ore t
han 

half 
the o

ffenc
es re

cord
ed b

y the
 poli

ce w
ere a

cqui
sitive

 crim
e (of

fenc
es in

clud
e bu

rglar
y, th

eft o
f and

 from
 

vehi
cles 

and 
stea

ling 
othe

r pro
perty

). 
Dom

estic
 bur

glary
 has

 falle
n by

 a h
alf in

 the 
last 

five 
year

s bu
t the

 sca
le of

 the 
dom

estic
 bur

glary
 pro

blem
 con

tinue
s to 

caus
e

conc
ern. 

Com
paris

on w
ith o

ther 
core

 citie
s sh

ows 
that 

Leed
s pe

rform
s be

tter 
than

 Not
tingh

am, 
Man

ches
ter a

nd L
iverp

ool, 
but 

offen
ce ra

tes a
re lo

wer 
in Br

istol,
 She

ffield
, Birm

ingh
am a

nd N
ewca

stle.
 

D
ru

g
s

 a
n

d
 A

lc
o

h
o

l
In 20

06/0
7, 52

02 c
lient

s rec
eive

d tre
atme

nt in
 Tier

 3 an
d Tie

r 4 a
genc

ies in
 Lee

ds. T
ier 3

 trea
tmen

t is d
efine

d as
 ‘com

mun
ity b

ased
 

spec
ialise

d dru
g as

sess
men

t and
 co-o

rdina
ted c

are-p
lann

ed tr
eatm

ent’;
 Tier

 4 tr
eatm

ent i
s de

fined
 as ‘

resid
entia

l spe
cialis

ed d
rug

treat
men

t tha
t is c

are-p
lann

ed a
nd c

o-ord
inate

d to 
ensu

re co
ntinu

ity o
f afte

rcare
’. 

Acci
dent

 and
 Em

erge
ncy 

data
 from

 Lee
ds s

how
s tha

t aro
und 

1 in 
4 pa

tient
s wh

o pr
esen

ted a
t A&

E co
mpla

ining
 of a

ssau
lt ha

d 
eithe

r con
sum

ed a
lcoh

ol or
 beli

eved
 that

 thei
r ass

ailan
t wa

s dru
nk.  

Wes
t Yo

rksh
ire P

olice
 reco

rds c
ite a

lcoh
ol as

 a c
ontri

buto
ry 

facto
r in m

ore t
han 

70%
 of d

ome
stic v

iolen
ce in

cide
nts. 

D
o

m
e

s
ti

c
 V

io
le

n
c

e
In 20

06/0
7 W

est Y
orks

hire 
Polic

e re
cord

ed m
ore 

than
 11,0

00 in
cide

nts o
f dom

estic
 viol

ence
, in 

over
 half

 of t
hese

 inci
dent

s the
 

victim
 had

 rep
orted

 at l
east

 one
 oth

er in
cide

nt to
 We

st Y
orks

hire 
Polic

e in 
the 

prec
edin

g ye
ar. M

ore 
than

 4,0
00 c

hildr
en w

ere 
pres

ent d
uring

 thes
e inc

iden
ts. 

H
a

te
 C

ri
m

e
In 2

006/
07, 

Wes
t Yo

rksh
ire P

olice
 rec

orde
d 1,

340 
race

-hate
 crim

e inc
iden

ts, in
 alm

ost 1
 in 5

 of t
hese

 inci
dent

s the
 vict

im h
ad 

repo
rted 

at le
ast o

ne o
ther 

incid
ent t

o We
st Yo

rksh
ire P

olice
 in th

e pre
cedi

ng y
ear. 

 Rep
orts 

to Le
eds 

City 
Cou

ncil a
lso s

how
ed th

at 
in 40

% of
 incid

ents
, the

 victi
m st

ated
 they

 had
 bee

n the
 victi

m of
 at le

ast o
ne o

ther 
incid

ent. 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
  

The 
Yout

h Su
rvey

 sho
ws t

hat y
oung

 peo
ple a

re si
x tim

es m
ore l

ikely
 than

 adu
lts to

 hav
e pro

perty
 stol

en, t
hree

 time
s mo

re lik
ely t

o 
have

 thei
r pro

perty
 van

dalis
ed a

nd o
ne a

nd a
 half

 time
s as

 likel
y to 

be th
e vic

tims 
of vi

olen
ce. 

A
n

ti
-S

o
c

ia
l 

B
e

h
a

v
io

u
r

40%
 of t

he A
nti-S

ocia
l Be

havi
our 

Unit’
s op

en c
ases

 are
 rela

ted t
o ‘Y

outh
 Nui

sanc
e’ an

d 22
% ar

e rel
ated

 to ‘
Crim

inal 
Beha

viou
r’,

while
 58%

 of W
est Y

orks
hire 

Polic
e an

ti-so
cial 

beha
viou

r inc
iden

ts ar
e co

ded 
as ‘L

outis
h Be

havi
our’ 

and 
20%

 are 
code

d as
 ‘You

th
Invo

lved
’.

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

In th
e 20

07 L
eeds

 City
 Cou

ncil 
Resi

dent
s’ Su

rvey
, 45

% o
f res

pond
ents

 iden
tified

 low
 leve

ls of
 crim

e as
 an 

impo
rtant

 asp
ect i

n 
mak

ing s
ome

whe
re a 

good
 plac

e to 
live. 

Simi
larly

, 34%
 of re

spon
dent

s ide
ntifie

d low
 leve

ls of
 anti

-soc
ial b

ehav
iour 

as a
n im

porta
nt 

aspe
ct in

 mak
ing s

ome
whe

re a 
good

 plac
e to 

live. 
67%

 of re
spon

dent
s sa

id th
ey a

gree
d tha

t peo
ple f

rom 
diffe

rent 
back

grou
nds 

get
on w

ell in
 thei

r loc
al ar

ea a
nd 6

0% s
aid t

hey 
feel 

that 
their

 loca
l are

a is 
a pla

ce w
here

 peo
ple r

espe
ct et

hnic
 diffe

renc
es. 

1
0

Page 157



Our 
Stra

tegic
 Out

com
es (2

008-
2011

) 
In de

term
ining

 our 
strat

egic
 outc

ome
s, Sa

fer L
eeds

 has
 iden

tified
 the 

majo
r crim

e, di
sord

er an
d su

bsta
nce 

misu
se is

sues
 that

 requ
ire 

partn
ersh

ip at
tenti

on a
cros

s the
 city.

  The
se p

riorit
y iss

ues 
have

 bee
n inf

orme
d by

 the 
findi

ngs 
of th

e joi
nt st

rateg
ic as

sess
men

t and
 

publ
ic-pa

rtner
ship

 con
sulta

tion 
cond

ucte
d in 

2007
.  Th

e pri
oritie

s ha
ve b

een 
inco

rpora
ted i

nto o
ur st

rateg
ic ou

tcom
es, w

hat w
e wa

nt 
to ac

hiev
e by

 201
1.

Ove
r the

 nex
t thre

e ye
ars, 

Safe
r Lee

ds w
ill de

liver
 on f

ive s
trate

gic o
utco

mes
: 

 
   

I 
Crea

ting
 safe

r en
viro

nme
nts b

y tac
kling

 crim
e 

II 
Impr

ovin
g liv

es b
y red

ucin
g th

e ha
rm c

ause
d by

 sub
stan

ce m
isus

e
III 

Sup
port

ing v
ictim

s an
d re

duci
ng t

he r
isk o

f vic
timis

ation
 

IV 
Red

ucin
g an

d ma
nagi

ng o
ffen

ding
 beh

avio
ur 

V 
Impr

ovin
g co

mmu
nity 

conf
iden

ce a
nd p

ublic
 sati

sfac
tion

 
An o

verv
iew 

of o
ur im

prov
eme

nt p
riorit

ies 
and 

deliv
ery 

activ
ities 

for 2
008/

09 a
re o

utlin
ed f

or e
ach 

strat
egic

 out
com

e in
 this

 
partn

ersh
ip pl

an.  
Behi

nd e
ach 

of th
e str

ateg
ic ou

tcom
es th

ere 
will b

e de
liver

y gro
ups 

to im
plem

ent d
etail

ed a
ction

 plan
s.  T

hese
plan

s wil
l be 

mon
itore

d as
 part

 of o
ur pe

rform
ance

 man
agem

ent a
rrang

eme
nts. 

 

1
1

Page 158



I 
Crea

ting
 safe

r en
viro

nme
nts b

y tac
kling

 crim
e

Wha
t do

es th
is m

ean?
 

The 
publ

ic ha
ve th

e rig
ht to

 be s
afe a

nd fe
el sa

fe in
 thei

r ow
n ho

me, 
on th

e str
eets

 and
 the 

plac
es th

ey g
o.  T

ackli
ng s

eriou
s cri

me a
nd d

iffus
ing t

ensi
ons 

in ou
r com

mun
ities 

is vit
al to

 
peop

les’ q
ualit

y of 
life.

Our 
Impr

ovem
ent P

riori
ties 

(08/0
9)   

Our 
Deli

very
 Act

ivitie
s  (0

8/09
) 

Red
ucin

g se
riou

s ac
quis

itive
 crim

e
(Bur

glary
, rob

bery
, the

ft of 
and 

theft
 from

 
moto

r veh
icle)

Deliv
er a

 ran
ge o

f tar
gete

d ca
mpa

igns
 to i

ncre
ase 

pote
ntial

 vict
ims’ 

awa
rene

ss, p
romp

t act
ion a

nd p
reve

nt op
portu

nitie
s for

 
acqu

isitiv
e cri

me t
o tak

e pla
ce. 

Iden
tify a

nd d
eplo

y su
itabl

e sit
uatio

nal c
rime

 prev
entio

n me
asur

es in
 key

 loca
tions

 usin
g a t

arge
ted a

ppro
ach.

 
Iden

tify a
nd ta

rget 
offen

ders
 com

mitti
ng a

cqui
sitive

 crim
e. 

Red
ucin

g vio
lent 

crim
e 

(Ass
aults

 & w
ound

ing a
nd a

lcoh
ol fu

elled
 

viole
nce)

Inter
pret 

the N
ation

al Ta
cklin

g Vio
lenc

e Ac
tion 

Plan
 (Sp

ring 
2008

) and
 con

side
r loc

ally w
hat d

elive
ry ch

ange
s are

 requ
ired.

 
Roll 

out t
he g

ood 
prac

tice 
from

 the 
‘Tac

kling
 Vio

lent 
Crim

e Pr
ogra

mme
’ acr

oss 
the c

ity to
 co-o

rdina
te ac

tivity
 to d

iffus
e an

d 
prev

ent a
lcoh

ol re
lated

 viole
nce 

and 
nuis

ance
. 

Deliv
er ac

tivitie
s tha

t foc
us o

n alc
ohol

 rela
ted c

rime
 in lin

e wit
h the

 Lee
ds A

lcoh
ol St

rateg
y. 

Deliv
er ac

tivitie
s tha

t foc
us o

n red
ucin

g the
 incid

ence
 of w

eapo
n en

able
d cri

me, 
inclu

ding
 the 

poss
essio

n of 
knive

s an
d fire

arms
.

Prev
ent, 

iden
tify a

nd r
espo

nd t
o 

com
mun

ity te
nsio

ns
Con

tinue
 to d

evel
op a

nd im
plem

ent t
he in

tellig
ence

 ass
essm

ent a
nd re

spon
se to

 com
mun

ity te
nsio

ns, e
nsur

ing p
artne

rs w
ork 

close
r wit

h an
d wit

hin t
he c

omm
uniti

es w
here

 the 
grea

test 
risks

 hav
e be

en id
entif

ied. 
Supp

ort L
eeds

 City
 Cou

ncil 
in de

velo
ping

 a lo
cal ‘

tack
ling 

extre
mism

’ del
ivery

 acti
on p

lan, 
inclu

ding
 loca

l arr
ange

men
ts fo

r 
iden

tifyin
g an

d su
ppor

ting 
vuln

erab
le in

divid
uals

 and
 com

mun
ities.

  
Prev

ent, 
dete

r an
d re

spon
d to

 Stre
et 

Use
rs

Con
tinue

d im
plem

enta
tion 

of th
e Le

eds 
Pros

tituti
on S

trate
gy. 

Disru
pting

 beh
avio

ur as
socia

ted w
ith ro

ugh 
slee

ping
 and

 beg
ging

. 
Con

tinue
d en

force
men

t act
ivity 

arou
nd k

erb c
rawl

ing. 
  

Supp
ortin

g str
eet u

sers
 to c

hang
e the

ir ch
aotic

 lifes
tyles

. 

1
2

Page 159



II 
Impr

ovin
g liv

es b
y red

ucin
g th

e ha
rm c

ause
d by

 sub
stan

ce m
isus

e
Wha

t do
es th

is m
ean?

 
Subs

tanc
e mi

suse
 affe

cts t
he w

ell b
eing

 of in
divid

uals
, fam

ilies 
and 

neig
hbou

rhoo
ds; i

t dam
ages

 the 
heal

th of
 indi

vidu
als a

nd u
nder

mine
s fam

ily lif
e as

 well
 as h

avin
g hu

ge s
ocia

l and
 

econ
omic

 cos
ts to

 the 
city. 

 Red
ucin

g dru
g an

d alc
ohol

 rela
ted c

rime
 is vi

tal to
 mak

ing p
eopl

e sa
fer a

nd im
prov

ing l
ives.

  
Our 

Impr
ovem

ent P
riori

ties 
(08/0

9) 
Our 

Deli
very

 Act
ivitie

s (08
/09) 

Chil
dren

 and
 You

ng P
eopl

e
Addr

essin
g su

bsta
nce 

misu
se th

roug
h a 

com
bina

tion 
of pr

even
tion,

 con
trol a

nd 
treat

men
t 

Deve
lop a

nd im
plem

ent a
 You

ng P
eopl

es’ d
rugs

 and
 alco

hol p
reve

ntion
 and

 trea
tmen

t pla
n.  

Deve
lopin

g a n
ew t

reatm
ent s

ervic
e lev

el ag
reem

ent i
n an

d inc
reas

e the
 leve

l of r
eferr

als f
or yo

ung 
peop

le in
 nee

d of 
treat

men
t.

Esta
blish

ing r
eferr

al pr
otoc

ols a
nd p

athw
ays 

with 
serv

ices 
with 

low 
rates

 of r
eferr

al fo
r exa

mple
 edu

catio
n, yo

uth s
ervic

e an
d 

hous
ing 

Impl
eme

nt th
e pla

nned
 reco

nfigu
ratio

n of 
serv

ices.
 

Audi
t cas

es w
here

 a pe
rson

 leav
es tr

eatm
ent e

xits t
o en

sure
 serv

ices 
are m

eetin
g yo

ung 
peop

le’s n
eeds

. 
Esta

blish
ing w

orke
rs w

ith a
 geo

grap
hica

lly b
ased

 rem
it wit

h a s
trong

 link
 with

 gen
eric 

serv
ices 

in or
der t

o mi
nimi

se th
e los

s of
prev

entio
n se

rvice
s.

Adu
lts

Addr
essin

g su
bsta

nce 
misu

se th
roug

h a 
com

bina
tion 

of pr
even

tion,
 con

trol a
nd 

treat
men

t
Deve

lop a
n ad

ult p
reve

ntion
 and

 earl
y int

erve
ntion

 plan
 

Impl
eme

nt th
e Ad

ult D
rugs

 Trea
tmen

t Pla
n - k

ey d
elive

ry ac
tivitie

s to 
inclu

de: 
Deve

lopm
ent o

f cor
e Co

mmu
nity D

rug T
reatm

ent S
ervic

es fo
llowi

ng a
 re-c

omm
issio

ning
 proc

ess.
 

Impl
eme

ntati
on a

nd d
elive

ry of
 com

mun
ity tr

eatm
ent s

ervic
e for

 thos
e wh

o ha
ve c

once
rns r

egar
ding

 Bloo
d Bo

rne V
iruse

s. 
Impl

eme
ntati

on o
f a C

are C
oord

inati
on s

yste
m ac

ross
 all t

reatm
ent s

ervic
es. 

Deve
lopm

ent o
f out

com
e foc

used
 trea

tmen
t tha

t cen
tres 

on th
e ho

listic
 nee

ds o
f clie

nts. 
Deve

lopm
ent a

nd c
omm

issio
ning

 of a
 city-

wide
 Afte

r-Ca
re S

ervic
e for

 all u
sers

 in tr
eatm

ent. 
Impl

eme
ntati

on o
f join

t wo
rking

 proc
ess 

with 
hous

ing s
ervic

es, b
enef

its a
genc

ies a
nd e

mplo
yme

nt/tra
ining

 prov
iders

. 
Add

ress
ing a

lcoh
ol m

isus
e thr

oug
h a 

com
bina

tion
 of p

reve
ntio

n, co
ntro

l and
 

trea
tmen

t
Impl

eme
nt th

e Le
eds 

Alco
hol S

trate
gy - 

key 
deliv

ery a
ctivit

ies t
o inc

lude
: 

Deve
lop w

ith p
artne

rs, e
ffect

ive c
omm

unic
ation

 and
 pub

lic in
form

ation
 mec

hani
sms

 to c
arry 

key 
prev

entio
n me

ssag
es to

 
prom

ote a
 cult

ure o
f Re

spon
sible

 Drin
king

. 
Work

 with
 licen

sed 
prem

ises 
to en

sure
 that

 the 
sale

 of a
lcoh

ol an
d its

 con
sum

ption
 are 

man
aged

 in a
 resp

onsi
ble m

anne
r. 

Deve
lop a

 co-o
rdina

ted t
reatm

ent s
ervic

e for
 peo

ple w
ith a

lcoh
ol pr

oble
ms t

hat i
s eff

ectiv
e, ap

prop
riate

 and
 acc

essib
le, w

ith 
adeq

uate
 cap

acity
 to m

eet d
ema

nd. 
Prom

ote a
 mod

el th
at fu

lly ad
dres

ses 
alco

hol i
ssue

s thr
ough

out t
he e

duca
tion 

syste
m. 

Deve
lop e

fficie
nt ea

rly in
terve

ntion
 and

 prev
entio

n pro
gram

mes
 for t

hose
 at g

reate
st ris

k.    
  

1
3

Page 160



III 
Sup

port
ing v

ictim
s an

d re
duci

ng t
he r

isk o
f vic

timis
ation

Wha
t do

es th
is m

ean?
 

Victi
ms h

ave 
the r

ight 
to ex

pect
 that

 crim
es th

ey h
ave 

repo
rted 

are i
nves

tigat
ed a

nd to
 rece

ive i
nform

ation
 abo

ut w
hat h

appe
ns, t

he c
hanc

e to 
expl

ain h
ow t

he c
rime

 or in
cide

nt ha
s 

affec
ted t

hem
 and

 for t
heir 

inter
est t

o be
 take

n int
o ac

coun
t.  Al

l vict
ims 

shou
ld be

 trea
ted w

ith re
spec

t and
 sen

sitivi
ty an

d be
 offe

red e
moti

onal
 and

 prac
tical 

supp
ort. 

Our 
Impr

ovem
ent P

riori
ties 

(08/0
9) 

Our 
Deli

very
 Act

ivitie
s (08

/09) 
Sup

port
ing v

ictim
s an

d red
ucin

g th
e 

risk 
of vi

ctim
isati

on
Con

tinue
 to w

ork w
ith L

eeds
 Vict

im S
uppo

rt en
surin

g se
rvice

s pro
vide

 app
ropri

ate s
uppo

rt pa
ckag

es fo
r ind

ividu
als a

nd th
eir 

fami
lies.

Work
 in p

artne
rship

 with
 the 

univ
ersit

ies a
nd s

tude
nt un

ions
 to re

duce
 the 

vuln
erab

ility a
nd v

ictim
isatio

n of 
stud

ents
 and

 stud
ent 

acco
mmo

datio
n.  

Dom
estic

 viol
ence

Deve
lop a

nd d
elive

r act
ivitie

s to 
supp

ort th
e ref

resh
ed c

ity w
ide D

ome
stic V

iolen
ce S

trate
gy in

clud
ing: 

Rais
ing p

ublic
 awa

rene
ss 

Impr
ovin

g se
rvice

s to 
victim

s 
Impr

ovin
g se

rvice
s to 

child
ren 

Con
tinue

d de
velo

pme
nt of

 com
mun

ity su
ppor

t 
Supp

ortin
g eff

ectiv
e civ

il an
d cri

mina
l just

ice r
espo

nses
 

Deve
lopin

g pre
vent

ative
 and

 edu
catio

nal w
ork w

ith c
hildr

en a
nd y

oung
 peo

ple 
Supp

ortin
g the

 sus
taina

bility
 of d

ome
stic v

iolen
ce s

ervic
es 

Deve
lopin

g eff
ectiv

e off
ende

r ma
nage

men
t inte

rven
tions

 
Iden

tifica
tion 

of an
d ea

rly in
terve

ntion
 with

 victi
ms a

nd p
erpe

trato
rs of

 dom
estic

 viole
nce 

to pr
even

t esc
alati

on a
nd th

e co
ntinu

ed 
impl

eme
ntati

on a
nd ro

ll ou
t of t

he M
ARA

Cs (
mult

i-age
ncy 

risk 
asse

ssm
ent c

onfe
renc

e) ac
ross

 the 
city. 

Hate
 crim

e 
Deve

lop a
nd d

elive
r act

ivitie
s to 

supp
ort th

e ref
resh

ed c
ity w

ide H
ate C

rime
 Stra

tegy
 inclu

ding
, inc

reas
ing v

ictim
s’ co

nfide
nce 

in 
the r

epor
ting 

of ha
te cr

ime 
incid

ents
, imp

rovin
g se

rvice
 resp

onse
s to 

victim
s of 

hate
 inci

dent
s, im

prov
ing s

ervic
e res

pons
es to

deal
 with

 per
petra

tors 
of ha

te cr
ime,

 con
tinue

 to d
evel

op p
reve

ntati
ve a

nd e
duca

tiona
l act

ivity 
to ad

dres
s ha

te in
cide

nts a
nd 

impl
eme

ntati
on o

f act
ions

 to ta
ckle 

hate
 crim

e in 
resp

onse
 to lo

cal a
sses

sme
nt of

 nee
d. 

Chil
dren

 and
 you

ng p
eopl

e 
Supp

ortin
g the

 Chi
ldren

 Lee
ds P

artne
rship

 in d
elive

ring 
the s

tay s
afe t

hem
e for

 ‘Eve
ry C

hild 
Matt

ers’,
 taki

ng in
to ac

coun
t the

 
view

s an
d co

ncer
ns o

f you
ng p

eopl
e wh

en d
evel

opin
g co

mmu
nity 

safe
ty re

spon
ses.

  Util
ising

 safe
r sch

ools
 part

ners
hips

 to b
uild 

relat
ions

hips
 betw

een 
youn

g pe
ople

 and
 serv

ices 
as w

ell a
s an

 ave
nue 

to su
ppor

t lea
rning

 abo
ut sa

fety 
in th

e ho
me, 

stree
ts an

d 
neig

hbou
rhoo

ds, a
nd d

elive
ring 

targe
ted e

arly 
year

’s pr
even

tative
 sch

eme
s an

d tar
gete

d div
ersio

nary
 prog

ramm
es.  

1
4

Page 161



IV 
Red

ucin
g an

d ma
nagi

ng o
ffen

ding
 beh

avio
ur 

Wha
t do

es th
is m

ean?
 

The 
com

mun
ity h

as a
 spe

cific 
right

 to e
xpec

t pub
lic a

genc
ies t

o wo
rk w

ith k
now

n off
ende

rs.  
By m

anag
ing o

r mo
difyin

g the
 beh

avio
urs o

f offe
nder

s wh
o cre

ate m
ost h

arm 
in ou

r 
com

mun
ities 

then
 this

 will 
redu

ce th
e ris

k of 
them

 offe
ndin

g ag
ain a

nd in
 turn

 redu
ce c

rime
. 

Our 
Impr

ovem
ent P

riori
ties 

(08/0
9) 

Our 
Deli

very
 Act

ivitie
s (08

/09) 
Red

ucin
g of

fend
ing b

ehav
iour

 by 
addr

essi
ng r

isks
 and

 har
ms 

Inter
pret 

the 
Natio

nal R
educ

ing 
Re-o

ffend
ing S

trate
gic P

lan (
Sprin

g 20
08) 

and 
cons

ider 
loca

lly w
hat 

deliv
ery 

chan
ges 

are 
requ

ired.
 

Deve
lop a

 Lee
ds h

ealth
 stra

tegy
 for o

ffend
ers a

nd a
ction

 plan
 in lin

e wit
h na

tiona
l req

uirem
ents

. 
Con

tinue
 with

 prog
ramm

es fo
r tac

kling
 prol

ific a
nd d

rug m
isusi

ng o
ffend

ers, 
in pa

rticu
lar th

e Dr
ug In

terve
ntion

 Pro
gram

mes
 and

 
the P

rolifi
c an

d oth
er P

riorit
y Of

fend
ers (

PPO
) Pro

gram
me. 

Deve
lop a

n int
egra

ted o
ffend

er m
anag

eme
nt sy

stem
 for 

Leed
s en

surin
g tha

t pro
lific 

and 
othe

r pri
ority

 offe
nder

s are
 acti

vely 
targe

ted, 
in a 

mult
i-age

ncy 
appr

oach
 in t

he c
omm

unity
, in 

cust
ody 

and 
on r

elea
se o

n lic
ence

 thro
ugh 

appr
opria

te su
ppor

t 
serv

ices.
  Th

is w
ill in

volve
 esta

blish
ing a

 Lee
ds In

tegra
ted 

Offe
nder

 Ma
nage

men
t Bo

ard 
to ov

erse
e the

 dev
elop

men
t of 

the 
syste

m an
d wo

rking
 clos

ely w
ith: 

Loca
l Crim

inal 
Justi

ce B
oard

 to e
nsur

e se
rvice

 resp
onse

s to 
tackl

ing p
rolifi

c off
ende

rs is
 effe

ctive
 

Prob
ation

 Ser
vice 

to en
sure

 ther
e is 

a loc
al jo

int a
ppro

ach 
to re

duci
ng c

rime
 and

 offe
ndin

g be
havi

our 
Leed

s Yo
uth O

ffend
ing S

ervic
e to 

supp
ort d

elive
ry pr

ogra
mme

s an
d su

ppor
t ser

vices
 

Jobc
entre

 Plu
s to 

ensu
re o

ffend
ers 

or th
ose 

at ri
sk o

f off
endi

ng a
re id

entif
ied a

nd h
elpe

d int
o se

ttled
 acc

omm
odat

ion, 
emp

loym
ent, 

educ
ation

 or tr
ainin

g 
PCT

 and
 hea

lth s
ervic

e pr
ovid

ers 
parti

cula
rly d

rug 
and 

alco
hol 

misu
se a

genc
ies t

o ad
dres

s he
alth 

asso
ciate

d fa
ctors

 
relat

ed to
 offe

ndin
g 

Child
ren 

Leed
s Pa

rtner
ship

 to m
axim

ise o
ppor

tunit
ies t

o re
ach 

the m
ost s

ocia
lly e

xclud
ed y

oung
 peo

ple a
nd p

artic
ularl

y 
thos

e at 
risk 

of en
terin

g the
 crim

inal 
justic

e sy
stem

 

1
5

Page 162



V 
Impr

ovin
g co

mmu
nity 

conf
iden

ce a
nd p

ublic
 sati

sfac
tion

 
Wha

t do
es th

is m
ean?

 
Com

mun
ities 

expe
ct pu

blic 
agen

cies 
to ta

ckle 
anti-

socia
l beh

avio
ur in

 thei
r loc

alitie
s in 

a res
pons

ive a
nd e

ffect
ive m

anne
r.  C

omm
unic

ating
, eng

agin
g an

d inv
olvin

g loc
al pe

ople
 in 

thos
e iss

ues 
of m

ost i
mpo

rtanc
e to 

them
 is a

 vita
l com

pone
nt to

 prov
iding

 pub
lic re

assu
ranc

e an
d red

ucin
g the

 fear
 of c

rime
. 

Our 
Impr

ovem
ent P

riori
ties 

(08/0
9)   

Our 
Deli

very
 Act

ivitie
s (08

/09) 
Tack

ling 
anti-

soci
al be

havi
our 

and 
dam

age 
thro

ugh
 a co

mbin
ation

 of 
prev

entio
n, di

vers
ion a

nd e
nfor

cem
ent 

activ
ities

Con
tinue

 to u
tilise

 effe
ctive

ly a 
rang

e of 
tools

 for 
tack

ling 
ASB

 and
 dam

age 
(e.g.

 ASB
Os, 

ABC
, dis

pers
al po

wers
, par

entin
g 

class
es o

r ord
ers, 

crac
k ho

use 
closu

res a
s we

ll as 
pow

ers i
n the

 Clea
n Ne

ighb
ourh

oods
 and

 Env
ironm

ent A
ct 20

05) a
s pa

rt of 
a 

pack
age 

of re
spon

ses 
to lo

cal is
sues

. 
Con

tinue
 to s

uppo
rt th

e im
plem

enta
tion 

of th
e Fa

mily 
Supp

ort a
nd P

aren
ting 

Stra
tegy

 and
 pro

gram
mes

 to s
uppo

rt pa
rents

 
who

se c
hildr

en a
re in

volve
d in 

or at
 risk

 of b
eing

 invo
lved

 in A
SB a

ctivit
y, in

 part
icula

r targ
eted

 dive
rsion

ary p
rogra

mme
s.

Work
 clos

ely w
ith E

duca
tion 

Leed
s an

d ind
ividu

al sc
hool

s to 
crea

te an
d de

velo
p loc

al Sa
fer S

choo
ls Pa

rtner
ship

s. 
Work

 clos
ely w

ith th
e Cit

y Co
unci

l on 
their

 acti
on to

 imp
rove

 the 
secu

rity o
f hom

es, p
ublic

 buil
ding

s an
d pu

blic s
pace

s.  
Con

tinue
 with

 the 
targe

ted r
olling

 prog
ramm

e of 
neig

hbou
rhoo

d cri
me a

nd g
rime

 initia
tives

 suc
h as

 Ope
ratio

n Ch
amp

ion. 
Impr

ove 
pub

lic re
assu

ranc
e an

d th
e 

fear
 of c

rime
 by a

ctive
ly 

com
mun

icati
ng, e

ngag
ing a

nd 
invo

lving
 loca

l peo
ple 

Deve
lop p

artne
rship

 mec
hani

sms
 for 

mea
surin

g ho
w sa

tisfie
d vic

tims
 of A

SB a
re w

ith th
e se

rvice
 the 

polic
e an

d cit
y co

unci
l 

prov
ide. 

 
Ensu

re th
at lo

cal c
omm

unity
 safe

ty ch
allen

ges 
are 

clea
rly id

entif
ied a

nd h
ave 

repre
sent

ation
 at a

 loca
l lev

el al
ongs

ide o
ther 

broa
der c

omm
unity

 prio
rities

. 
Wor

k wit
h Le

eds 
Initia

tive 
and 

its p
artne

rship
s to 

ensu
re th

at lo
cal c

omm
unity

 eng
agem

ent f
rame

work
s en

com
pass

 com
mun

ity 
safe

ty iss
ues.

  
Con

tinue
 to a

ctive
ly pr

omo
te co

mmu
nity 

safe
ty m

essa
ges 

and 
incre

ase 
awa

rene
ss o

f crim
e pre

vent
ion a

nd c
omm

unity
 safe

ty 
serv

ices.
Ensu

re ag
enci

es re
spon

d eff
ectiv

ely t
o loc

al ne
ed b

y int
egra

ting 
neig

hbou
rhoo

d po
licing

 prac
tice 

with 
area

 man
agem

ent d
elive

ry 
prog

ramm
es.  

All o
f the

 resp
onsi

ble a
utho

rities
 will 

atten
d an

d co
mmu

nica
te w

ith lo
cal p

eopl
e thr

ough
 ‘Fac

e the
 Peo

ple’ 
even

ts. 
Wes

t Yo
rksh

ire P
olice

 Aut
horit

y’s p
ublic

 perc
eptio

n su
rvey

 will 
prov

ide r
obus

t dat
a to 

Neig
hbou

rhoo
d Po

licing
 Tea

m le
vel, 

and 
track

 perc
eptio

n of 
crim

e, an
ti-so

cial b
ehav

iour 
and 

conf
iden

ce in
 poli

cing
. 

Wes
t Yo

rksh
ire P

olice
 Aut

horit
y wi

ll ho
ld an

 ann
ual d

istric
t-wid

e pu
blic 

even
t to 

enab
le pe

ople
 to h

ave 
their

 say
 on 

impo
rtant

 
polic

ing i
ssue

s su
ch a

s Ne
ighb

ourh
ood 

Polic
ing, 

the F
orce

 bud
get a

nd lo
cal p

olicin
g pri

oritie
s. 

1
6

Page 163



Our 
Stru

ctur
es a

nd D
elive

ry  P
roce

sses
Deli

very
 stru

ctur
e su

ppo
rting

 Saf
er L

eeds
:

Leed
s Ini

tiativ
e i

s the
 loca

l stra
tegic

 part
ners

hip f
or th

e cit
y, it 

guid
es th

e wo
rk of

 all p
artne

rship
s’ an

d pro
vide

s the
 foru

m fo
r col

lectiv
ely r

evie
wing

 
and 

stee
ring 

reso
urce

s to 
supp

ort th
e de

liver
y of 

the p
riorit

ies in
 the 

Leed
s Str

ateg
ic Pl

an. 
Safe

r Le
eds 

Exec
utive

 is
 mad

e up
 of s

enio
r offi

cers
 from

 the 
‘resp

onsi
ble a

utho
rities

’ (Le
eds 

City 
Cou

ncil, 
Leed

s Pr
imar

y Ca
re T

rust,
 We

st Yo
rksh

ire F
ire

and 
Resc

ue S
ervic

e, W
est Y

orks
hire 

Polic
e an

d We
st Yo

rksh
ire P

olice
 Auth

ority
) and

 ‘co-
oper

ating
 bod

ies’ (
Leed

s Ini
tiativ

e, C
hildr

en 
and 

Youn
g Pe

ople
’s P

artne
rship

, NO
MS/P

roba
tion 

and 
Elec

ted 
mem

ber 
with 

lead
 for 

com
mun

ity s
afety

).  T
he E

xecu
tive 

sets
 

strat
egic

 dire
ction

 and
 is a

ccou
ntab

le fo
r del

iveri
ng th

e pa
rtner

ship
 plan

 by m
akin

g de
cisio

ns a
bout

 acti
vity, 

reso
urce

 allo
catio

n an
d 

prob
lem 

solvi
ng.  

Safe
r Le

eds 
Boa

rd 
is m

ade 
up o

f rep
rese

ntati
ves 

from
 the 

publ
ic, p

rivat
e an

d vo
lunta

ry se
ctors

.  Th
is is 

a co
nsul

tativ
e gro

up th
at re

view
s the

 part
ners

hip 
plan

s an
d en

sure
s tha

t com
mun

ity co
nsul

tatio
n is 

co-o
rdina

ted e
ffect

ively
 and

 repo
rts to

 the 
citize

ns o
f Lee

ds.
Part

ners
hip R

esou
rces

 Gro
up 

is a 
mult

i-age
ncy 

grou
p ac

coun
table

 to S
afer 

Leed
s Ex

ecut
ive f

or m
anag

ing r
esou

rce a
lloca

tion 
and 

com
miss

ionin
g of 

serv
ices.

Lead
ersh

ip Te
am 

inclu
des 

seni
or o

fficer
s fro

m a
cros

s the
 par

tners
hip t

hat 
prov

ides
 time

ly pe
rform

ance
, inte

lligen
ce, a

naly
sis a

nd c
omm

unic
ation

func
tions

.
Stra

tegic
 Lea

ds 
are s

enio
r peo

ple f
rom 

acro
ss th

e pa
rtner

ship
 age

ncie
s ac

coun
table

 to S
afer 

Leed
s Ex

ecut
ive f

or le
adin

g an
d gu

iding
 the 

deliv
ery

grou
ps.

Outc
ome

 Gro
ups 

are m
ulti-a

genc
y ac

tion 
grou

ps s
uppo

rting
 the 

deliv
ery o

f the
 stra

tegic
 outc

ome
s thr

ough
 the 

co-o
rdina

tion 
of ac

tion 
plan

s.
Divi

sion
al C

omm
unit

y Sa
fety 

Part
ners

hips
 t

hese
 are 

the g
eogr

aphi
cal b

ased
 part

ners
hips

’ sup
porti

ng th
e de

liver
y an

d co
-ordi

natio
n of 

activ
ity a

t a lo
cal le

vel.
Cros

s cu
tting

 issu
es 

thes
e are

 issu
es th

at re
quire

 atte
ntion

 at a
ll lev

els o
f the

 stru
cture

 for e
xam

ple c
hildr

en a
nd y

oung
 peo

ple. 
1
7

Page 164



Mea
suri

ng O
ur P

erfo
rma

nce 
As p

art o
f this

 plan
 we 

have
 outl

ined
: 

The 
thing

s tha
t are

 criti
cal t

o us
 

Wha
t we

 will 
be w

orkin
g on

  
Whe

re o
ther 

partn
ersh

ips c
an a

ssist
 and

 
help

 us 
Safe

r Le
eds 

is c
omm

itted
 to 

perfo
rman

ce 
man

agin
g thi

s pa
rtner

ship
 plan

 and
 deli

verin
g 

the r
ight 

outc
ome

s. 
Our 

impr
ovem

ent 
prior

ities 
will 

be r
evie

wed
 

and 
refre

shed
 on 

an a
nnua

l bas
is an

d du
ring 

2008
/09 w

e wil
l: 

Prod
uce 

deta
iled 

actio
n pl

ans 
for e

ach 
strat

egic
 outc

ome
 

Alloc
ate a

nd ta
rget 

fund
ing r

esou
rces

 and
 

com
miss

ion s
ervic

es 
Whe

re ne
cess

ary t
ake 

corre
ctive

 acti
on in

 
area

s tha
t are

 und
erpe

rform
ing a

nd s
eek 

to 
sust

ain 
activ

ity 
in 

area
s w

here
 

perfo
rman

ce h
as im

prov
ed 

Com
mun

icate
 wit

h th
e p

ublic
 thr

ough
 

‘Fac
e th

e Pe
ople

’ se
ssion

s an
d vi

a th
e 

med
ia

Work
 to

ward
s 

achi
evin

g 
the 

new
 

Hallm
arks

 of E
ffect

ive P
artne

rship
s 

Reg
ularl

y mo
nitor

 and
 revi

ew o
ur a

ctivit
y 

in 
term

s o
f p

rogre
ss 

agai
nst 

set 
perfo

rman
ce 

indic
ators

 an
d s

trate
gic 

outc
ome

s 

Safe
r Le

eds 
firml

y be
lieve

s tha
t, if 

we a
re to

 effe
ctive

ly im
prov

e co
mmu

nity 
safe

ty an
d ad

dres
s the

se 
com

plica
ted i

ssue
s, th

en s
trong

 part
ners

hip w
orkin

g wit
h a c

lear 
socia

l pur
pose

 is re
quire

d.  
Only

 by f
ocus

sing
 on s

peci
fic o

ffend
ers, 

victim
s an

d loc
ation

sin 
a co

llabo
rativ

e ma
nner

 can
 we 

have
 a 

sign
ifican

t imp
act o

n red
ucin

g ov
erall

 crim
e. 

1
8

Page 165



Mea
suri

ng O
ur P

erfo
rma

nce 
Safe

r Le
eds 

is o
blige

d to
 wo

rk w
ithin

 the
 

natio
nal 

fram
ewo

rk to
 del

iver 
impr

ovem
ents

 
and 

chan
ge a

t a lo
cal l

evel
.  Ou

r act
ivitie

s wil
l 

influ
ence

 and
 sup

port 
the 

deliv
ery 

of P
ublic

 
Serv

ice A
gree

men
ts (P

SAs
) rel

ating
 to c

rime
 

redu
ction

, co
mmu

nity 
safe

ty a
nd s

ubst
ance

 
misu

se.
We 

will r
epor

t to t
he H

ome
 Offi

ce o
n pro

gres
s 

agai
nst 

the 
natio

nal 
indic

ators
 via

 the
 new

 
Asse

ssm
ent 

of 
Polic

ing 
and 

Com
mun

ity 
Safe

ty p
erfor

man
ce m

anag
eme

nt fr
ame

work
 

and 
loca

lly w
e wi

ll be
 acc

ount
able

 to 
Leed

s 
Initia

tive 
via t

he L
eeds

 Loc
al Ar

ea A
gree

men
t. 

Belo
w th

e de
sign

ated
 per

form
ance

 indi
cato

rs 
are 

a su
ite o

f me
asur

es fo
r ea

ch o
f ou

r five
 

strat
egic

 out
com

es. 
  Sa

fer L
eeds

 will
 trac

k 
thes

e pe
rform

ance
 mea

sure
s ag

ains
t tar

gets
, 

activ
ity a

nd o
utco

mes
, tak

ing 
actio

n w
here

 
perfo

rman
ce re

quire
s im

prov
ing. 

  

Wha
t we

 will
 be j

udg
ed o

n? 
Hea

dline
 Des

igna
ted P

erfo
rma

nce 
Indic

ator
s 

2007
/08 

out-
turn

Year
 1 

2008
/09 

Year
 2 

2009
/10 

Year
 3 

2010
/11 

Red
uce 

serio
us a

cqui
sitive

 crim
e rat

e  
 

 
 

Red
uce 

assa
ults 

with 
injur

y cri
me r

ate 
 

 
 

Impr
ove 

satis
facti

on w
ith th

e wa
y the

 poli
ce a

nd 
loca

l cou
ncil d

ealt 
with 

anti-
socia

l beh
avio

ur 
 

 
 

 
Red

uced
 re-o

ffend
ing r

ate o
f pro

lific a
nd p

riorit
y 

offen
ders

 
 

 
 

Incre
ase 

drug
 use

rs in
 effe

ctive
 trea

tmen
t  

 
 

 

T
a

rg
e

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
s

 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 L
A

A
 

1
9

Page 166



H
o

w
 t

o
 C

o
n

ta
c

t 
U

s
 

L
e

e
d

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

P
O

 B
o

x
 6

1
2
 

L
e
e
d

s
L

S
2
 7

W
H

 

E
m

a
il

: 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
.s

a
fe

ty
@

le
e

d
s

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

w
w

w
.s

a
fe

rl
e

e
d

s
.o

rg
.u

k
 

w
w

w
.l

e
e

d
s

.i
n

it
ia

ti
v

e
.o

rg
.u

k

Page 167



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date: 16th April 2008 
 
Subject: Council House Building 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report outlines the progress made to date to develop sites for council housing. It sets 
out a proposed option for the development of three sites, comprising of  the former Waterloo 
Primary School, Evelyn Place and Silver Royd Hill. 
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator: John Statham 
 
Tel:  x43233  

 

 

 

  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

X 

Agenda Item 12

Page 169



1.0 Purpose Of This Report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to report on the progress made in developing an 

approach for building council houses in line with the recommendations made by the 
December 2007 Executive Board.  

 
2.0   Background Information 
 
2.1 There has been a substantial decline in the numbers of council homes over the past 

two decades, with the numbers falling from over 90,000 to the present figure of 
58,000.  Although the pace of decline has slowed in the last two years, the pressure 
on council lettings has continued to increase, expressed in the high number of bids 
for properties and the waiting times for those in need. 

 
2.2 As a result of this the Council has  expressed a commitment to build new council 

homes alongside the development of other affordable housing solutions. The 
December 2007 Executive Board received a paper outlining options that should be 
explored to meet this commitment. 

 
2.3 The paper outlined some of the considerations that needed to be explored in order 

to achieve a coherent strategy for the development of new council homes in the long 
term. These considerations were: 

 

• Explore Housing Corporation grant to two star ALMOs from 2008/9 
 

• Review the availability of land for housing development 
 

• Review Council contributions via the capital programme and capital receipts 
from Council owned land  

 

• Explore other public sector land in government ownership made available to 
the Council to support development initiatives 

 

• Lobby government to retain income streams to fund borrowing from rents on 
existing and new build 

 
2.4 Over this last three months, officers have been working to identify sites, delivery 

options and financing options to enable an exemplar development to take place.  
 
3.0 Sites for Development 
 
3.1 Officers within the Directorates of Environment and Neighbourhoods and City 

Development have been assessing sites that could be made available for the 
development of housing which would include provision for some new council 
housing. 

 
3.2 A number of sites are being assessed for their development potential and 

discussions have taken place between officers from Planning, Housing, Highways 
and the Council’s Asset Management Team. The sites identified are: 
 

• Evelyn Place, Leeds 12, which offers a development of about 12 units, of 
which 6 would be council houses. The site is cleared from an earlier 
demolition and clearance programme. 

Page 170



• Silver Royd Hill garage site, Leeds 12, which offers a development of about 
15 units, of which 6 would be council homes. There would be some need for 
demolition on this site and negotiations to terminate existing garage leases. 

 

• The former Waterloo Primary School site in Pudsey, The site is already 
cleared and would offer a development of around 50 units of which 15 would 
be council houses. 

 
3.3 In all three areas it is considered desirable to ensure that there is a mix of tenure on 

site.  
 
4.0 Financing the Potential Developments 
 
4.1 The proposal will deliver 27 council houses. Discussions have taken place to 

establish an appropriate mix of funding to finance the developments. The following 
sources of finance are proposed. 

 

• s.106 monies - At present there is £614,963 available to spend that is not subject 
to geographic area restriction. In addition there is £581k that is geographically tied 
to the Pudsey area. Therefore, if s.106 monies were to be used to finance the 
development, £1,195,963 would be utilised if the development were to include the 
Waterloo site. Legal services are seeking a deed of variation to remove a 
geographical restriction on a further £482k of s.106 money. This will be earmarked 
for this scheme.   

 

• Capital Receipts – Capital receipts can be generated from all three sites which 
subject to agreement would be used to supplement s.106 monies. The former 
Waterloo Primary School site has been valued at around £1.98m. However, it is 
proposed to forego this receipt in order to maximize the amount of affordable 
housing, as set out in the proposals below. Evelyn Place is valued in the range of 
£220k and £240k and Silver Royd Hill is valued between £200k and £215k. These 
valuations have been conducted on a desk top basis and need to be reappraised 
when the detailed scheme proposals are in place. It is proposed to take these 
capital receipts as set out in the proposals below. 

 

• Prudential Borrowing – It is possible to borrow money for the scheme and finance 
it  through the Housing Revenue Account (HRA).  Whilst the current and projected 
position of the HRA does not allow enough headroom to facilitate significant 
repayments to make this a replicable option, in the event that the s.106 money and 
the capital receipts prove to be insufficient, this method will be pursued.  It is 
proposed that up to £1m borrowing is agreed in principle, at a current cost of £56k 
per annum over forty years. 

 
4.2  In conclusion, it is proposed that in order to finance the provision of council housing 

on all three sites,  a combination of section 106 monies and capital receipts are 
employed, utilising prudential borrowing, if necessary, as a source of additional 
funding. The option outlined below can maximize the amount of affordable housing 
and deliver around 27 new council houses.  

 
5.0  Scheme Delivery 
6.0  
5.1 The 27 new council houses would be delivered by two different mechanisms  
 
 

Page 171



 
 1. Former Waterloo Primary School site 
 

• The suggested option would entail a joint Registered Social Landlord (RSL) 
and Council development on the Waterloo site.  

 

• In order to fund this development, an RSL partner will put a bid forward to the 
Housing Corporation for funding to build a scheme on the site for 50 new 
affordable houses. The 50 properties would be a mix of properties for shared 
ownership and properties for rent. The RSL will then build the scheme, and 
the Council will purchase a proportion of the units, using the £1.19m 
commuted sums available. This would mean that the final scheme would 
comprise of 15 new council homes and 35 RSL properties, split 50/50 for 
shared ownership and for rent. 

 

• The disposal of the site to a RSL will generate a payment of £5k per plot, in 
line with Housing Corporation rules. This equates to approximately £250,000 
which can go towards the provision new  council houses on the sites.  
Additional advantages of this method of disposal are that in line with the 
broader affordable homes strategy, the site will deliver fifty homes rather than 
smaller figure which could be achieved through planning gain.  The RSL will 
attract grant from the Housing Corporation and draw in private sector 
investment.  Typically the investment generated will be in excess of twice that 
available through an open market land disposal. Additionally, we can ensure 
that elderly person’s accommodation is delivered on the site, and built to 
Housing Corporation standards.  

 

• It must be noted that the Housing Corporation Grant will only be eligible for 
the RSL units. The grant cannot subsidise the Council units. The Council will 
therefore have to pay the full build costs for the units.  

 
2. Evelyn Place and Silver Royd Hill 

    

• The suggested option is that the Evelyn Place and Silver Royd Hill sites  
would be disposed of on the open market, as one package, to a developer. 
The capital receipt from the sale of these two sites will then be used, 
alongside the £250,000 receipt from the Waterloo site and the additional 
£482k commuted sum to purchase council house units.  

 

• In this option it is proposed that the Council’s affordable housing 
requirements are met through the purchase of the council houses. With the 
combined development likely to realise around 27 houses, this approach will 
provide a larger amount of affordable housing, in this instance 12 council 
homes.  

   
7.0 Design Quality 
 
7.1 A high quality design brief for the Waterloo site will be based upon the Housing 

Corporation’s latest design and quality standards. This will ensure that the 
properties will be designed and constructed in a sustainable manner using products 
and processes that reduce environmental impact and provide the highest thermal 
efficiency and lower running costs. In addition this will enable the homes to be built 
in such a manner that they are homes for life. This design may be more expensive 

Page 172



in the build phase but should offer less expensive maintenance options in the long 
term. 

 
7.2 A similar type of high quality design brief will be sought from the private developer 

on the Evelyn Place and Silver Royd Hill sites. 
 
7.0 Implications for Council Policy and Governance 
 
7.1 At this stage in the development of the scheme the main implication will be on the 

use of Council funds. In order to finance the developments the primary source will 
be s.106 money and capital receipts generated from the sale of the land. If this 
proves to be insufficient then the option of some small scale prudential borrowing 
will be pursued.  

 
 8.0  Legal and Resource Implications 
 
8.1 The development will require the release of £1.195m from s.106 money.  Legal 

services are seeking  a deed of variation to remove the geographical restrictions on 
a further £482k of s.106 money. 

 
8.2 The proposal means that the Council would forego the potential open market capital 

receipt of £1.98m for the former Waterloo Primary School site, in return for £250k 
from the RSL developer. In so doing Housing Corporation grant would be maximized 
which would lever in significant private investment, to maximize affordable housing, 
as has been achieved with other successful schemes subject to bids to the Housing 
Corporation. 
 

9.0 Conclusions 
 
9.1 Having assessed the available sites and the financing options for this development, 

it is concluded that the best way forward is to develop the three sites as described at 
5.0 in this report. Further work is needed to develop the option in more detail.  

 
9.2 A development of this nature could provide a mix of council housing targeted at the 

over 55s. Targetting over 55s development could have the added benefit of  
enabling the Council to free up family sized council housing. Consideration could be 
given to offering current tenants who are under occupying their home the 
opportunity to move into this new development. 

 
10.0 Recommendations 
 
10.1 The Executive Board is recommended to instruct officers to proceed with the 

scheme as set out in this report. 
 
10.2 In order to deliver this scheme the Executive Board is recommended to agree: 

• To dispose of the former Waterloo Primary School site at less than best as 
set out in this report 

 

• To dispose of the Evelyn Place and Silver Royd Hill sites on the open market 
and that first call on the capital receipts, and the payment from the RSL, 
should be to meet the needs of this scheme 

 

• To give permission to borrow up to £1m through the HRA to meet any 
shortfall in financing this scheme.  

Page 173



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF EDUCATION LEEDS 

EXECUTIVE BOARD: 16 April 2008

SUBJECT: Strategies to address comparative underachievement in Leeds Schools

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1. This report summarises the strategies employed to target underachieving young 
people and schools in Leeds, so that the gap in achievement between the most the 
and least successful groups is narrowed 

 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2. At the Executive Board meeting on 8 February 2008 Members considered the 
Annual Standards Report for Secondary and requested that a further report be 
brought back on the strategies being used to address identified areas of comparative 
under achievement. The report identifies the range of strategies being employed and 
highlights those features which have been found to be most effective. The report 
identifies three interrelated strands to the strategy for narrowing the gap in 
achievement:

(a) Securing greater inclusion 
So that young people and their parents feel positively engaged with education 
through a more personalised experience which maximises attendance and  
reducing the risk of exclusion 

(b) School Improvement 
So that we sustain and accelerate the progress our schools are making in raising 
attainment and narrowing the gap. This strategy includes the exploration of new 
models of leadership and governance 

(c) 14-19  
So that we provide an appropriate range of pathways and learning environments  
to inspire young people and meet their learning needs 

Agenda Item:

Originator: Brian Tuffin

Telephone: 0113 214 4068

Agenda Item 13

Page 175



3 Recommendations

The Board is asked to: 

 Note the strategies being employed to address comparative 
underachievement in Leeds 

 Continue to give support to the programmes and projects in Leeds which 
focus on underachievement. 

Page 176



1

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF EDUCATION LEEDS 

EXECUTIVE BOARD: 16 April 2008

SUBJECT: Strategies to Address Comparative Underachievement in Leeds 
Schools

Electoral Wards Affected: 

ALL

Ward Members consulted 
  (referred to in report) 

Specific Implications For: 

Equality & Diversity 

Community Cohesion 

Narrowing the Gap 

 Eligible for Call-in                       Not Eligible for Call-in   
        (Details contained in the Report)      

1. PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 

1.1 This report summarises the strategies employed to target underachieving young 
people and schools in Leeds, so that the gap in achievement between the most 
the and least successful groups is narrowed 

1.2 At the Executive Board meeting on 8 February 2008 Members considered the 
Annual Standards Report for Secondary and requested that a further report be 
brought back on the strategies being used to address identified areas of 
comparative under achievement. 

2 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2.1 One of the greatest challenges facing the education system nationally is 
narrowing the gap in progress being made by the highest and the lowest 
attaining children and young people. As children grow older, the gap increases. 

2.2  In Leeds, the challenge is striking.  At the end of primary education the gap in 
achievement at level 4 between those children eligible for free school meals and 
those who are not is similar to national figures.  By the end of Key Stage 4 the 
gap in Leeds is larger than that seen nationally.  In 2007 only 27% of young 

Agenda Item:

Originator: Dirk 
Gilleard/Brian Tuffin 

Telephone: 3950235

Page 177



2

people eligible for free school meals achieved 5A*-C at Key Stage 4, whereas 
62% of those not eligible achieved the same benchmark.    This disparity of 
achievement is also shown by the lower than average achievement of certain 
ethnic minorities and looked-after children.  Indicators impact cumulatively so 
that, for example, summer-born boys from particular geographical and ethnic 
groups have extremely low levels of achievement 

2.3 The big challenge for Leeds is to raise overall levels of achievement while at the 
same time reducing the gap between the more and the less successful.
Responding to this challenge requires a collaborative response from schools and 
agencies that support children and families and which builds on the practice we 
know is effective. 

2.4 In recent years some of the largest gains in achievement have been made by 
schools serving the most disadvantaged areas of Leeds.  The improvement seen 
at schools such as Wortley, John Smeaton, Cockburn, West Leeds, Carr Manor 
and others is making an impact on young people entitled to a free school meal, 
on those with learning difficulties and on minority ethnic groups. The commitment 
and effort of these schools, individually and in partnership with Children’s 
Services, Education Leeds and other council services provides us with a 
powerful insight into what works for young people at risk of underachieving. Our 
strategy is built on this insight. 

2.5 There are three interrelated strands to the strategy for narrowing the gap in 
achievement:

(a) Securing greater inclusion 
So that young people and their parents feel positively engaged with education 
through a more personalised experience which maximises attendance and  
reduces the risk of exclusion 

(b) School Improvement 
So that we sustain and accelerate the progress our schools are making in 
raising attainment and narrowing the gap. This strand includes targeted 
interventions across groups of schools 

(c) 14-19  
So that we provide an appropriate range of pathways and learning 
environments  to inspire young people and meet their learning needs 

2.6 Each strategic strand is explored in more detail in the next section 

3 MAIN ISSUES 

3.1 Securing Greater Inclusion 

3.2 This is undoubtedly the most complex challenge in narrowing the gap. It 
necessitates Children’s Services, Education Leeds, other council services and 
wider agencies working in a more integrated way to support underachieving 
children and their families at the level of schools and in localities. Development 
of multi disciplinary support at school and area level is helping to raise 
aspirations and ensure that support is given to children and families at greatest 
risk of underachieving.

Page 178



3

3.3 The following list summarises the key components of this strand. 

 (a) Powerful models of multi-agency working are developing across the city 
driven by the principles of Every Child Matters and the need to secure more 
effective support and personalisation of services for young people and their 
families. For example, at South Leeds High School an internal school panel 
can alert a multi-agency group when issues emerge which may require a 
more coordinated multidisciplinary response to the needs of particular 
families. This is resulting in much closer collaboration between agencies 
including, for example, social care, youth services, primary care, community 
policing and inclusion services. Such arrangements operate on a two way 
basis so that agencies can alert the school to wider issues that need to be 
considered when working with individual young people to personalise their 
learning experience.

(b) Across the city, the Extended Services agenda is assisting schools to work 
more closely and effectively with a range of services relevant to the needs 
and aspirations of families in localities. Thirty eight clusters of schools are 
working collectively to address issues around the most vulnerable and under 
achieving groups of young people.  The building of self esteem and personal 
development, including safe and healthy lifestyles, is supported by a variety 
of programmes, including those using art, music and drama organised 
through Artforms. The development of extended services clusters and larger 
area-wide collaborations are providing a mechanism for localising the support 
of Children’s Services, other local authority services and wider agencies.  

(c) Enterprise Programmes are connecting employers, schools and young 
people through the provision of experiences which explicitly nurture the skills 
and qualities young people need to be effective employers and employees. 
There is good evidence of the particularly positive impact of these 
programmes on young people for whom the prospect of future employment, 
education and training was challenging. Similarly, Aim Higher programmes 
are helping raise the aspiration of young people for higher education and 
employment.

(d) The No Child Left Behind initiative and the development of Area Management 
Boards has successfully assisted schools in avoiding exclusions by 
developing a much stronger collective commitment to keeping young people 
in learning. This has a small impact on overall outcomes but, a dramatic 
impact on the lives of a significant number of young people. 

(e) The development of the virtual school for children in public care has meant 
the appointment of a headteacher for looked after children. This has raised 
the profile of their achievement with headteachers, governors and School 
Improvement partners (SIPs, see 3.6a below). The headteacher is also 
improving the flow of information needed to coordinate support across 
Education Leeds, schools and social services

(f) On behalf of Children’s Services, Education Leeds has developed much more 
targeted work for Children Missing Education. This strategy involves much 
stronger identification of children missing education through effective 
information management across services and local authorities and is 
supporting more targeted interventions

Page 179



4

(g) Attendance is a major factor in underachievement.  Schools need support for 
making learning more relevant and attractive to young people, as well as for 
monitoring and ensuring that parents and young people fulfil their 
responsibilities. The attendance team and strategies consultants are working 
with eighteen schools with high levels of persistent absence. Schools have 
greatly improved their knowledge of individual pupil attendance through the 
week and through the day, and developed systems for responding to 
absence quickly by contacting parents and carers. 

3.4 School Improvement 

3.5 Potential underachievers are now more easily identified, creating the opportunity 
for effective targeted intervention.  Schools and Education Leeds have the data 
to identify challenging but realistic expectations for the achievement of individual 
young people.  Schools have the systems to track and record progress through a 
key stage. The challenge for schools is to make effective use of this information 
to design a curriculum that allows young people to achieve and to intervene and 
support learners when they do not make the progress expected.

3.6 The following list summarises key components of this strand 

 (a) School Improvement Partners (SIPs) and advisers have challenged all 
schools in the last year about the achievement of groups within the school 
and helped to broker support to address underachievement.  A particular 
focus has been given to improve achievement at A*-G at Key Stage 4, to 
enable all young people to achieve qualifications and to increase the number
progressing to further education and training. Schools are developing 
curriculum strategies to ensure that all young people have the opportunity to 
gain at least eight qualifications and to maximise the point scores they 
achieve. There were small increases in A*-G and average points measures in 
2007, and further increases should be seen in 2008. Secondary SIPs are also 
challenging schools this year to improve attendance and arrangements for 
the welfare and development of young people

(b) Schools are provided with support through the National Strategies teams 
employed by Education Leeds. In 2007-8 the national strategies consultants 
focused their time on underachieving departments in lower achieving schools.  
A new programme of support was trialled with selected schools. This placed 
a number of consultants in the school at the same time, leading a programme 
on a common theme such as literacy. Evaluation showed that this raised the 
profile of the support and made it more effective. Customised programmes 
are being negotiated with each schools so that SIPs/advisers and lead 
consultants for 2008-9 are focused on agreed priorities, including 
underachieving groups, and are connecting their work more effectively 
through each school’s senior team  

(c) Middle leaders in schools need the skills to monitor the progress of young 
people and plan interventions when young people do not make the progress 
expected from their prior attainment.  Advisers and consultants have worked 
with middle leaders to develop models for identifying and supporting pupils 
making inadequate progress.  Schools and staff are now more confident 
about how to use individual pupil data. The introduction of targets for the 
progress of individual pupils during a key stage is helping to focus the 
attention of teachers on the potential of all pupils. This includes pupils with 

Page 180



5

special needs and those aiming for a D-G grade at GCSE, as well as those 
aiming for higher grades. Advisers are developing the links between middle 
and senior leaders and modelling systems of review and accountability to 
make sure that progress is closely monitored and evaluated by the senior

(d) Education Leeds has set enhanced targets for the achievement of Black and 
minority ethnic young people. These targets aim to ensure that these groups 
will make greater progress than predicted by national trends. This has led to 
the implementation of specific programmes and projects supporting minority 
ethnic achievement and disadvantaged groups: 

 2006 and 2007 the MEAP project (Multi Ethnic Achievement Programme) 
has worked with Pakistani, Turkish and other students focusing on 
leadership, monitoring, learning and involving parents. Eighty percent of 
targeted pupils met or exceed their targets. 

 BPAP (Black Pupils Achievement Programme) has worked directly with 
pupils of African Caribbean heritage with a similar methodology.  Again, 
this programme is clearly impacting on the achievement of young people. 
Black Caribbean achievement at Key Stage 4 was 8 points below national 
expectations in 2005; in 2007 this gap had been halved. 

 For 2008-9 Education Leeds will build on this practice by developing a 
bespoke programme with the headteachers of the eleven high schools 
with nearly two-thirds of the BME population. This programme will build 
the ‘booster’ programmes needed to ensure that the specified number of 
each ethnic group meet the targets the local authority has agreed with the 
DCSF.

3.5 14-19

3.6 Leeds is currently embarking on a major transformation of 14-19 learning in the 
city. Although a full account of the strategy is beyond the scope of this paper, 
there are key components of this strategy which are highly pertinent here. 

3.8 The following list summarises these components 

 (a) Providers in Leeds have committed to developing an entitlement for all 
learners which embraces ‘what we know works’ in raising young people’s 
aspirations and securing their progress. Central to this entitlement will be the 
provision of coaching and guidance to all young people and extending the 
opportunities for young people to take advantage of new courses and styles 
of learning. The entitlement will be specific about how schools and colleges 
will work with learners and their families when they do not make the progress 
expected given their prior attainment. 

(b) Improved systems for guiding and recording individual progress are being 
introduced using new technologies that engage young people. This will be in 
the form of an electronic individual learning plan (e-ILP) that they can take 
with them from one key stage to the next. The e-ILP will include: 

 a portfolio of a learner’s success and achievements,  

 tools to help them reflect on and self-assess their development as a 
learner,

 space to express their personal goals and learning targets; and  

 their plan of how their learning experiences will help them achieve their 

Page 181



6

goals

(c) Education Leeds is developing a ‘model trajectory’ for each high school which 
projects their performance through to 2015. This trajectory builds on current 
progress and will act as a guide for target setting meetings with each school. 
In turn this will support discussion of the provision and pathways needed to 
achieve these ambitious targets. This will also inform the process by which 
Education Leeds works with wider providers to broaden the range of quality 
assured and accredited learning pathways available to learners and inform 
them of this provision through the on line prospectus.

(d) City Learning Centres will continue to make a significant contribution to 
achievement in a number of targeted schools by providing access to the 
vocational qualifications these schools are not yet equipped to deliver. 

(e) The opportunity for young people to take part in intensive achievement 
camps is boosting achievement for the lowest achievers and raising point 
scores in the lowest-achieving schools. 

4 IMPLICATIONS FOR EDUCATION LEEDS POLICY AND GOVERNANCE 

4.1 Raising the achievement of all young people and of particular priority groups is a 
main feature of strategic plans for Children Leeds and Education Leeds.  Team 
plans for 2008 and beyond will need to show how multi-agency support can be 
coordinated to target support for identified schools, communities, children and 
families.

5 LEGAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The bulk of the standards fund grant at secondary level is aimed at support for 
targeted schools.  In the short term resources will need to be devoted to specific 
projects with identified groups to offset their previously weak progress; in the 
longer term resources should develop new learning places, guidance and 
courses that lead to improved attendance and achievement. 

6 CONCLUSIONS 

6.1 As the standards achieved by schools have risen in the past few years, more 
attention is now being focused on young people and groups who have not 
shared sufficiently in this overall improvement.  Experience to date shows that 
narrowing the gap in achievement between the more and less successful 
requires:

 co-ordinated support from all services in Education and Children Leeds 
working in partnership with schools 

 prioritisation of action by middle and senior leaders in schools 

 tracking of the progress of young people and effective interventions at school, 
area and city level 

 continued development of relevant and inspiring curriculum 

  effective personalisation of learning for young people; and 

  parental engagement 

7 RECOMMENDATIONS

Page 182



7

7.1 The Board is asked to: 

1. Note the strategies being employed to address comparative 
underachievement in Leeds 

2. Continue to give support to the programmes and projects in Leeds which 
focus on underachievement. 

Page 183



Page 184

This page is intentionally left blank



G:\SECRETAR\Exec Board Reports\2008\Academy Protocols April Exec Board (V4).doc 

1

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF EDUCATION LEEDS 

EXECUTIVE BOARD: 16 April 2008 

SUBJECT: Academy Protocols

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members on the outcome of consultation on 
the Academy Protocols and to secure agreement on protocols that will inform the City 
Council’s response to requests to establish academies in Leeds and to developing a 
corresponding memorandum of understanding to be signed by prospective sponsors, 
the DCSF and the local authority. 

2.0 BACKGROUND  

2.1

2.2

At its meeting on 23rd January, the Executive Board asked Education Leeds to 
consult upon and develop a protocol that would inform its response to establish 
academies in Leeds.  The consultation document is attached at annex two and 
responses are recorded in annex three. 

The Executive Board also asked Education Leeds to develop the protocol, informed 
by responses to the consultation, into a legally binding agreement that would ensure 
that future academies would be required to work in partnership with the local authority 
and other local schools to improve children’s outcomes.  This will be developed by 
Legal Services in the light of feedback from the Executive Board on this report. 

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Members are asked to: 

i. note the outcomes of the consultation 

ii. invite Education Leeds and Legal Services to develop a memorandum of 
understanding that reflect the contents of annex 4 and ensure that these are 
accepted and signed by representatives of the DCSF, any prospective 
academy sponsor in Leeds and the local authority. 

Agenda Item:

Originator: Pat Toner 

Telephone:  0113-247 5613

Agenda Item 14

Page 185



G:\SECRETAR\Exec Board Reports\2008\Academy Protocols April Exec Board (V4).doc 

2

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF EDUCATION LEEDS 

EXECUTIVE BOARD: 16 April  2008

SUBJECT: Academy Protocols

Electoral Wards Affected: 

Ward Members consulted 
  (referred to in report) 

Specific Implications For: 

Equality & Diversity 

Community Cohesion 

Narrowing the Gap 

ALL

 Eligible for Call-in                       Not Eligible for Call-in   
        (Details contained in the Report)      

1.0 PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members on the outcome of consultation on the 
Academy Protocols and to secure agreement on protocols that will inform the City 
Council’s response to requests to establish academies in Leeds and to develop a 
corresponding memorandum of understanding to be signed by prospective sponsors, 
the DCSF and the local authority. 

2.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2.1

2.2

At its meeting on 23rd January, the Executive Board asked Education Leeds to consult 
upon and develop a protocol that would inform its response to establish academies in 
Leeds.  The list of consultees is attached at annex one, the consultation document at 
annex two, and responses to the consultation are recorded in annex three.   

Increasingly the role of the Local Authority is changing from ‘provider’ of services and 
schools to the ‘commissioner’ of provision to serve local communities.  Academies are 
schools accountable directly to the DCSF and therefore independent of the local 
authority.  The success of an academy critically depends on the absolute responsibility 
given to their sponsors, their governing bodies and their principals.  However, most 

Agenda Item:

Originator: Pat Toner 

Telephone: 0113-247-5613

Page 186



G:\SECRETAR\Exec Board Reports\2008\Academy Protocols April Exec Board (V4).doc 

3

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Academies are jointly commissioned by the DCFS and the Local Authority on a 
partnership basis.  They are established through an agreement between the DCFS, the 
Local Authority and the sponsor. 

Our vision for learning in Leeds places schools at the heart of universal provision.  
Schools that develop, nurture and maintain strong, innovative and creative relationships 
with each other and with their stakeholders and partners to drive good attendance, 
positive behaviour, high standards and significantly improved Every Child Matters 
outcomes for all our learners. 

We are exploring a cluster model for the development of further Academies here in 
Leeds.  We aim to develop, with partners and stakeholders and our children and young 
people, the potential for establishing Academies in South Leeds, West Leeds and the 
Centre of Leeds to complement the existing David Young Community Academy in East 
Leeds.  These Academies would work within area clusters and establish strong, 
dynamic partnerships with other local schools.  

We have been working with colleagues at the DCSF to develop and agree a framework 
within which any Academies could be developed.  This includes collaborative 
approaches to: 

– social responsibility and partnership; 

– delivery of a Leeds learner entitlement 

– admissions and exclusions; 

– curriculum planning and provision; 

– accountability arrangements. 

We have agreed with the DCSF that any further Academy in Leeds will sign up to an 
agreed set of policies and protocols for these aspects of provision whilst ensuring their 
‘independent state school status’ is not compromised. These protocols will be included 
within a Memorandum of Understanding for any Academies which are to be established 
in Leeds. The David Young Academy was consulted in the development of the protocol 
and will be invited to join these agreements.  

3.0

3.1

3.2.

3.2.1

3.2.2

MAIN ISSUES 

The consultation ran for 6 weeks and ended on 20th March 2008.  The list of consultees 
is attached at annex one and the consultation document at annex two.  In the following 
sub-sections the key issues that emerged during the consultation on each of the areas 
outlines in 2.5 above are analysed.  The sub-section goes on to propose amendments to 
the draft protocol.  These are captured separately in section annex 4. 

Social responsibility and partnership 

As a result of comments made during the consultation, the protocol will now make 
explicit an expectation that a sponsor commits to ensuring that parents of young people 
attending the academy will be represented upon the academy governing body.  It will 
also require proposals to establish an academy in Leeds to identify how the views of 
young people will regularly be captured to inform the development of the academy.  The 
protocol will now also require sponsors to ensure that they recognise for collective 
bargaining purposes those trades unions recognised by Leeds City Council. 

Education Leeds and Legal Services will, subject to the agreement of Executive Board, 
now develop memorandum of understanding to be agreed by the prospective sponsor of 
a new academy in Leeds that will ensure that: 

 parents of young people attending the academy will be represented upon the 
academy governing body; 

 every proposal to establish an academy in Leeds will identify how the views of 
young people attending the academy will inform the development of the 
academy;

Page 187



G:\SECRETAR\Exec Board Reports\2008\Academy Protocols April Exec Board (V4).doc 

4

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.5

3.5.1

 sponsors agree to recognise for collective bargaining purposes those trades 
unions recognised by Leeds City Council; 

 the new academy will become an active contributor to school improvement, 
curriculum delivery partnerships and the network of providers and agencies 
coordinating with Children’s Services in Leeds. 

Delivery of the Leeds Learner Entitlement 

As a result of comments made during the consultation it is recognised as difficult to 
require prospective sponsors to agree to adopt and implement a Leeds learning 
entitlement that is yet to be finalised and agreed by other schools in Leeds.  Indeed 
there will be no requirement of other schools in Leeds to adopt and implement any new 
learning entitlement.  Rather, schools will be asked to commit to the Leeds Learner 
Entitlement.

Education Leeds and Legal Services, will subject to the agreement of Executive Board, 
now develop memorandum of understanding to be agreed by the prospective sponsor of 
a new academy in Leeds that will ensure that: 

 consideration is given to reflecting within proposals to establish an academy in 
Leeds any agreed Leeds Learning Entitlement.  And, in common with community 
schools, will be invited to commit to the entitlement. 

Admissions and exclusions 

This element of the draft protocol received the greatest number of comments reflecting 
the significance consultees placed on ensuring that academies operated inclusively to 
ensure that none of its young people were left behind.  Consultees were also keen to 
ensure that academies actively collaborated with other schools in Leeds so that the 
needs of every child attending the academy mattered and were successfully being met 
by the academy.  It was suggested that an explicit statement that safeguarded the 
circumstances of young people with SEN should be included.   

Education Leeds and Legal Services will, subject to the agreement of Executive Board, 
now develop memorandum of understanding to be agreed by the prospective sponsor of 
a new academy in Leeds that will ensure that: 

 admissions arrangements will be developed in consultation with both the local 
authority and with other schools; 

 the Leeds admissions policy of “Local Schools for Local Children” informs the 
development of the admissions policy and that therefore “nearest school” will be 
the key factor in determining admission to the academy; 

 young people with identified SEN will be admitted as a clearly identified priority 
group;

 from its opening the academy will work actively with other local providers in the 
city to avoid any exclusions and to make suitable and appropriate provision for 
all children reflecting their individual needs; 

 from its opening the academy will take its share of excluded pupils from other 
Leeds schools and accept in year transfers according to the Leeds fair access 
policy.

Curriculum planning and provision 

There was broad agreement from consultees on this element of the protocol.  The only 
significant suggestion was that there should be an explicit statement about developing 
post 14 curriculum pathways in partnership with other schools and other providers.  
However, there is an increasing understanding that the 17 specialised diplomas will 
require all providers, including academies, to collaborate in order to ensure 
comprehensive access to high quality personalised curriculum pathways. 

Page 188



G:\SECRETAR\Exec Board Reports\2008\Academy Protocols April Exec Board (V4).doc 

5

3.5.2

3.6

3.6.1

3.6.2

3.7

3.7.1

3.7.2

3.8

Education Leeds and Legal Services will, subject to the agreement of Executive Board, 
now develop memorandum of understanding to be agreed by the prospective sponsor of 
a new academy in Leeds that will ensure that: 

 the academy will contribute to the implementation and development of a Leeds 
post 14 curriculum framework working in partnership with other providers in the 
locality including the FE presence 

 the academy develops its post 14 curriculum offer using 
o the Leeds on-line Area Prospectus that is now available; 
o a Common Application System for Post 16; 
o appropriately quality assured 14-16 vocational learning providers; 
o the cross sector city-wide e-learning strategy; 

 it  must be an active contributor to the planning and quality assurance of post 14 
provision.

Accountability

It was suggested during the consultation that there should be a requirement to provide 
governance opportunities (not Parent Council additional tiers) for local community 
representatives depending on the local community’s needs and wants.  However, given 
the reference to appointing parents to the governing body in 3.2.2 above, and the role of 
governors nominated by the local authority addressed here, there is no need to make 
further reference to the make-up of the governing body. 

Education Leeds and Legal Services will, subject to the agreement of Executive Board, 
now develop memorandum of understanding to be agreed by the prospective sponsor of 
a new academy in Leeds that will ensure that: 

 City Council will nominate two governors to the governing body, one 
representing the locality and one representing the administration. 

Other  issues  emerging  from the  consultation 

There were a number of responses that suggested that memoranda of understanding 
were not enforceable agreements.  It is the view of Education Leeds that a sponsor’s 
decision to sign such an understanding, taken alongside the accountability role of the 
DCSF and the legal status of such an agreement, provides sufficient reassurance to the 
City Council on the enforceability of this agreement.  There were a number of responses 
that suggested that given the importance of the issues addressed by this consultation 
more time should have been given to enable a wider range of consultees to respond.  
However, Education Leeds received 22 written responses to this consultation and it is 
not clear that extending the consultation would have significantly increased the number 
of responses.  It was suggested that the protocol should address attendance issues 
alongside admissions and exclusions issues.  Another suggestion was that academies 
should be encouraged to synchronise their holiday arrangements with other Leeds 
schools.

Education Leeds and Legal Services will, subject to the agreement of Executive Board, 
now develop memorandum of understanding to be agreed by the prospective sponsor of 
a new academy in Leeds that will ensure that: 

 Both attendance support from the LA and information/data sharing protocols will 
need to be included in any future Academy agreements to enable early 
intervention and support for Persistent Absence pupils and vulnerable pupils, 
including Safeguarding. 

 very careful consideration is given to the impact of the academy establishing 
school holiday arrangements that were significantly out of step with neighbouring 
schools and specifically with the academy’s partner primary schools.  

The proposed contents of the memorandum of understanding to be agreed by the 
prospective sponsor of a new academy in Leeds are brought together for the Executive 
Board to consider in annex four. 

Page 189



G:\SECRETAR\Exec Board Reports\2008\Academy Protocols April Exec Board (V4).doc 

6

4.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR COUNCIL POLICY AND GOVERNANCE 

4.1

4.2

4.3

Key stakeholders including young people, ward councillors, school governors and 
headteachers, recognised trades unions, the LSC, diocesan authorities serving Leeds, 
and neighbouring local authorities, were consulted on these protocols.   

The issues addressed in this report will impact on the ‘Narrowing the Gap’ and ‘Going up 
a League’ agendas.  Academies in Leeds have the potential to contribute to the 
ambitious targets to meet key priorities within the Children and Young People’s Plan and 
the work on the Local Area Agreement. 

The development of new models of provision, such as Academies, will have significant 
implications for Council policy and governance which will be addressed in any proposals 
that are developed for further consideration by Executive Board. 

5.0 LEGAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The funding of secondary and post-16 provision in Leeds is a significant part of the 
Children’s Services overall budget and part of the Learning and Skills Council budget.  
The establishment of Academies in Leeds has the potential to have major financial 
implications for Leeds City Council as it increasingly takes total responsibility for all 14 – 
19 provision here in Leeds.  A detailed financial plan will be developed alongside any 
specific proposal that is developed for further consideration by Executive Board. 

6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

6.1 Members are asked to: 

i. note the outcomes of the consultation 

ii. invite Education Leeds and Legal Services to develop a memorandum of 
understanding that reflect the contents of annex 4 and ensure that these are 
accepted and signed by representatives of both the DCSF, any prospective 
academy sponsor in Leeds and the local authority. 

Page 190



Annex  one 

Academy  Protocol  -  List  of  consultees 

G:\SECRETAR\Exec Board Reports\2008\Academy Protocols April Exec Board (V4).doc 

Governors’ Forum Via Katy Hockridge, EL Governors Support Team for 
inclusion on governor’s forum agenda 

All Chairs of 
Governors 

Hard copies sent by post to all C of Govs on 26/2/08 

Catholic Diocese FAO Deirdre Rowe, Principal Education Officer for 
Education and Schools

C of E Diocese FAO Clive Sedgewick, Diocesan Director of Education, 
Ripon and Leeds Diocese

DYCA Ros McMullen – Headteacher
Chair of Governors via Jane Viney, Clerk to Governors 

LSC Via Gary Milner, EL 

FE Colleges Via Gary Milner, EL 

Head Teachers, 
Parents and Pupils 
at potential 
academies

Annette Hall, Headteacher of Intake  
Colin Bell, Headteacher of South Leeds High 

Unions, including 
Association of 
School and College 
Leaders (formerly 
Secondary Heads 
Association)

Michael Pyle –ASCL formerly SHA  
John Beckett – NAHT  
Keith Rogers – NAHT 
Malcolm Learoyd – ASPECT 
John Duggan – T & G W U 
Derek Mclennan – AEP 
Richard Martin – ATL 
Jack Jackson and Steve White – NASUWT 
Patrick Murphy and Tim Hales – NUT
Lynn Brook, Sue Osbaldeston & Mandy Roach - GMB) 
Dick Banks – AMICUS 
Brian Mulvie, Brenda Russell & Sheila Hemingway – 
UNISON 

All Councillors Via e-mail 

Neighbouring
Authorities 

Nina Mewse – Education Bradford 
Cynthia Welbourn – North Yorkshire County Council 
Claire Allman – Kirklees Metropolitan Council 
Cheryl Hobson – Wakefield Metropolitan District Council 

All Education Leeds 
Officers

Via Infobase 

Chamber of 
Commerce 

Alan Gill (Non Executive Director) via email 5/3/08 with 
apologies for late consultation 

Page 191



Annex  two 

Academy  Protocol  -  Consultation  Document 

G:\SECRETAR\Exec Board Reports\2008\Academy Protocols April Exec Board (V4).doc 

We have been working with the government to agree a framework within which an Academy could 
be developed in Leeds.  This includes agreements on: 

– social responsibility and partnership; 

– delivery of a Leeds learner entitlement 

– admissions and exclusions; 

– curriculum planning and provision; 

– accountability. 

The government has agreed that any new Academy in Leeds will legally abide by agreements in 
each of these areas in return for receiving the support of Leeds City Council.   

You are asked to comment on the outline of each part of the agreement that is 
provided below.  In particular it is useful to know if you believe that an element is 
unnecessary and should be omitted or alternatively that an important element has 
been overlooked and should be included in any final agreement. 

1 Social responsibility and partnership 

1.1 Academies in Leeds will serve particular local communities and support the implementation 
of the Leeds Inclusive Learning Strategy.  Any new academy in Leeds must have clear 
policies and procedures in place to ensure that it effectively engages with its local 
community and parents and that it provides effectively for all the young people it serves. 

1.2 Any new academy in Leeds must have clear arrangements for communicating, and where 
appropriate consulting and negotiating, with its staff. 

1.3 Partnerships and collaborations across schools that add value are essential if Leeds is to 
create a viable and sustainable learning infrastructure with learning pathways for all our 
young people.  Any new academy in Leeds is expected to build on existing successful local 
partnerships across schools and between schools, colleges and universities utilising the 
good practice that has developed over recent years.  The Education Leeds School 
Improvement Policy works to ensure that all Leeds schools have a strong partnership with 
Education Leeds and actively builds partnerships between schools where there will be a 
mutual benefit.  Any new academy in Leeds must become an active contributor to such 
partnerships and ensure these partnership arrangements continue to develop. 

2 Delivery of the Leeds Learner Entitlement 

2.1 Headteacher Forum in Leeds has agreed to develop a new vision for learners in Leeds that 
would take the form of a learner entitlement.  There is an existing 14-19 entitlement to which 
schools, colleges and other partners have agreed.  The new entitlement will be developed 
over the spring and summer terms 2008.  It is suggested that an agreed entitlement would 
be an appropriate element of any academy proposal. 

3 Admissions and exclusions 

3.1 In addition to the statutory requirements of the government’s Admissions Code of Practice, 
any new academy in Leeds must work with other local schools to develop common 
approaches that ensure the establishment of high quality viable local provision for local 
young people.  Any new academy in Leeds must apply the recently adopted “In year fair 
access protocol” for all Leeds Schools.  Finally, any new academy in Leeds must work  

Page 192



Annex  two 

Academy  Protocol  -  Consultation  Document 

G:\SECRETAR\Exec Board Reports\2008\Academy Protocols April Exec Board (V4).doc 

actively with other local providers in the city to avoid any exclusions and to make suitable 
and appropriate provision for all children responding to their individual needs. 

4 Curriculum planning and provision 

4.1 Work is currently underway on the development of a Leeds Curriculum Framework that will 
ensure that Leeds can meet the statutory requirement for all young people to access all 14 
specialised Diploma lines by 2013.  This framework will ensure an agreed 14-19 curriculum 
offer for the city where all programmes have clear progression routes.  Any new academy in 
Leeds must contribute to the implementation and development of this framework.  This will 
include ensuring that the academy develops its post 14 curriculum offer using; 

 the Leeds on-line Area Prospectus that is now available  

 a Common Application System for Post 16  

 appropriately quality assured 14-16 vocational learning providers 

 the cross sector city-wide e-learning strategy  

4.2 Any new academy in Leeds must be an active contributor to the planning and quality 
assurance of post 14 provision in its locality. 

5 Accountability 

5.1 Academies will form an increasingly important part of the learning landscape here in Leeds 
and we need to develop models of governance and accountability that connect any new 
academy with its stakeholders, partners and its community as well as being part of the 
provision in the City of Leeds.  In order to actively demonstrate their commitment to working 
in partnership as part of the wider community of Leeds any new academy in Leeds would be 
expected to allow the City Council to nominate two governors to it governing body, one 
representing the locality and one representing the administration. 

Page 193



A
n

n
e
x
  

th
re

e
 

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
  

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
 -

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 

G
:\

S
E

C
R

E
T

A
R

\E
x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
\2

0
0

8
\A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 P

ro
to

c
o

ls
 A

p
ri

l 
E

x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 (

V
4

).
d

o
c
 

A
c

a
d

e
m

ie
s

 P
ro

to
c

o
l 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e
s

 @
 2

7
th

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
8

2
3

 R
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
 8

1
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

, 
s

u
m

m
a

ri
s

e
d

 b
y
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
: 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 1
 (

7
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

) 

 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
s
 e

x
p

lic
it
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

a
b

o
u

t 
p

la
c
in

g
 S

E
N

 p
u

p
ils

 i
f 

th
e

 a
c
a

d
e

m
y
 o

b
je

c
ts

 (
1

) 

 
W

o
rd

in
g

 t
o

o
 v

a
g

u
e

 –
 L

o
c
a

lit
y
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

fi
n

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 p

o
lic

y
 (

1
) 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

.3
 R

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 f
o

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
. 

A
re

 a
ll 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 g

o
o

d
, 

h
o
w

 w
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
y
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

, 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

o
u

ld
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 j
o

in
 t

h
e

m
?

 (
1

) 

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 f

e
lt
 t

o
 b

e
 k

e
y
 –

 g
o

o
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

fo
r 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 (

1
) 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

.1
/1

.2
 I

t 
is

 s
e
lf
 e

v
id

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

a
n

y
 n

e
w

 a
c
a

d
e

m
y
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 c
le

a
r 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
 (

1
) 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

.3
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 f
u

lly
 r

e
a

lis
e

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

in
g

 t
h

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 t
o

 p
u

rs
u

e
 n

e
w

 m
o

d
e

ls
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 k
e

y
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
s
 (

1
) 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

.3
 S

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
 t

h
e

 w
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 “
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

, 
w

it
h

 c
o

lle
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
re

 e
s
s
e

n
ti
a
l!
” 

(1
)

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 2
 (

3
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

)

 
W

h
ic

h
 e

n
ti
tl
e

m
e

n
t?

 –
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s
 c

la
ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 (

1
) 

 
2

.1
 T

h
e

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

a
c
a

d
e
m

y
 o

ff
e

rs
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 1

4
-1

9
 c

u
rr

ic
u

lu
m

 a
n

d
 i
s
 d

o
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 b

y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 n

o
t 

b
o

u
n

d
 b

y
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 (

1
) 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 2

. 
W

h
y
 w

o
u

ld
 a

n
 a

c
a

d
e

m
y
 n

o
t 

a
d

o
p

t 
th

e
 L

e
e

d
s
 L

e
a
n

e
r 

E
n

ti
tl
e

m
e

n
t,

 s
in

c
e

 i
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
a

ll 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 a
re

 m
e

t.
 (

1
) 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 3
 (

1
3

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
) 

 
M

u
s
t 

a
c
c
e

p
t 
e

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 p

u
p

ils
 (

1
) 

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
S

E
N

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 u

n
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 a

n
d

 e
s
c
a

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 S

O
S

 D
C

S
F

 t
o

 d
ir

e
c
t 

a
 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t.

  
(1

) 

 
A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 p

o
lic

y
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 n

o
t 
ju

s
t 

E
L

 (
1

) 

 
N

e
e

d
 t

o
 h

o
n

o
u

r 
th

e
 ‘
n

e
a
re

s
t’
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 w
it
h

in
 w

h
ic

h
e

v
e

r 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 p

o
lic

y
 t

h
e

y
 a

d
o

p
t 

(1
) 

 

 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
s
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
‘lo

c
a

lit
y
’ 
a

n
d

 m
o

re
 e

x
p

lic
it
 a

b
o

u
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 L
E

A
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 (

1
) 

 
D

o
n

’t
 k

n
o

w
 w

h
a

t 
in

 y
e

a
r 

fa
ir

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
is

 (
1

) 

 
W

h
o

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 t
h

e
 I

n
 y

e
a

r 
F

a
ir

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 P

ro
to

c
o

l?
 G

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
 F

o
ru

m
 /

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
G

B
’s

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 t

h
is

 (
1

) 

 
W

h
a

t 
is

 t
h

e
 L

E
A

’s
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u

ty
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
rs

 o
v
e

r 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
, 
a

n
d

 d
o

e
s
 i
t 
o

v
e

rr
id

e
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
a
n

 A
c
a
d
e
m

y
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 B

o
d

y
?

 (
1

)

Page 194



A
n

n
e
x
  

th
re

e
 

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
  

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
 -

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 

G
:\

S
E

C
R

E
T

A
R

\E
x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
\2

0
0

8
\A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 P

ro
to

c
o

ls
 A

p
ri

l 
E

x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 (

V
4

).
d

o
c
 

 
3

.1
 s

e
e

k
s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
h
ig

h
e

r 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 r

a
te

s
 a

t 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 
p

la
c
in

g
 e

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 p

u
p

ils
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

e
n

fo
rc

e
a

b
le

 (
1

) 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

 W
h

o
 a

re
 t

h
e

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
p

a
rt

 f
ro

m
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 c
o

lle
g

e
s
?

 (
1

) 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

 W
h

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 b

e
 a

v
o

id
e

d
 i
f 

th
e

re
 a

re
 p

u
p

ils
 w

h
o

s
e

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

p
u

ts
 o

th
e

r 
p

u
p

ils
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 a

t 
ri

s
k
?

 (
1

) 
 

 
3

.1
 F

o
rm

a
l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 r

is
k
 t
h

e
 e

th
o

s
 a

c
a

d
e
m

ie
s
 a

re
 t

ry
in

g
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 u
p

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 l
o
c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

P
e

rh
a

p
s
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
e

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 p

u
p

ils
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 m

o
re

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

ly
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 p

a
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 f

ro
m

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
to

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
(1

) 

 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 /

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

re
 k

e
y
, 

a
s
 e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

’s
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

(1
) 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 4
 (

3
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

) 

 
T

h
is

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 r
e

fe
r 

to
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
n

y
 f

u
tu

re
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
o

lic
y
 o

n
 p

o
s
t 

1
6

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 (
1

) 

 
D

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
lo

c
a

lit
y
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 (

1
) 

 
4

.1
 C

u
rr

ic
u

lu
m

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 m
u

s
t 

b
e

 l
e

ft
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 a
c
a

d
e

m
y
 b

u
t 

it
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

s
e

fu
l 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

 f
a

ir
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 1

4
-1

9
 v

o
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

ip
lo

m
a

s
 (

1
) 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 5
 (

5
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

) 

 
C

la
ri

fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

h
ra

s
e

s
 “

le
a

rn
in

g
 l
a

n
d
s
c
a

p
e

” 
a

n
d

 “
c
o

n
n

e
c
t 

a
n

y
 n

e
w

 a
c
a

d
e

m
y
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
” 

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

(1
)

 
N

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
n

te
n

c
e

 w
h

ic
h

 s
ta

te
s
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 (

n
o

t 
P

a
re

n
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
ti
e

rs
) 

fo
r 

lo
c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 r

e
p

s
  

- 
a

g
a

in
 d

e
p

e
n
d

in
g

 o
n

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
s
 a

n
d

 w
a

n
ts

 (
1

) 

 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
p

p
o

in
ti
n

g
 2

 g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 a

s
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 L

E
A

 g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 o

n
 a

 g
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

y
 (

1
) 

 
5

.1
 H

o
w

 w
o

u
ld

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 b

e
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

y
 w

it
h

 a
 b

a
la

n
c
e

d
 s

k
ill

 s
e
t?

 (
1

) 

 
5

.1
 T

h
e

 t
w

o
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 a

 r
ig

h
t,

 b
u

t 
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 a

s
 a

 m
a

tt
e

r 
o

f 
d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 n
e

w
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

y
 (

1
)

L
e

g
a

l 
&

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 i

s
s

u
e

s
 (

2
1

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
) 

 
E

n
fo

rc
e

a
b

le
 s

ta
tu

s
 /

 c
la

u
s
e

s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p

a
ti
b

le
 w

it
h

 A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 s

ta
tu

s
 (

5
) 

 
R

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 c

o
n

fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
le

g
a

l 
s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
p

ro
to

c
o

l 
(1

) 

 
S

p
e

c
if
ic

 t
e

rm
s
 /

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
to

n
e

 t
o

o
 v

a
g

u
e

 (
4

) 
(s

p
e
c
if
ic

 m
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
 ‘
le

g
a
lly

 a
b

id
e

’,
 ‘
c
le

a
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t’
, 

‘it
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
’,
 ‘
it
 i
s
 s

u
g

g
e

s
te

d
 t
h

a
t’
) 

 
It

 i
s
 m

y
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t
h

a
t 

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o

m
p

u
ls

o
ry

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 t

o
 s

ig
n

 u
p

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
a

s
 s

ta
te

d
, 

th
a

t 
th

is
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 
s
p

o
n

s
o

ri
n

g
 b

o
d

ie
s
. 

(1
) 

 
T

h
e

 w
o

rd
in

g
 s

u
g

g
e

s
te

d
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
m

fo
rt

a
b

ly
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
Y

C
A

 a
n

d
 t

h
u

s
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 m

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

is
s
u

e
s
 (

1
) 

 
T

e
rm

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

re
 t

h
e

 m
in

im
u

m
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

w
h

a
te

v
e

r 
th

e
ir

 s
ta

tu
s
 (

1
) 

 
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 -

 T
ru

s
ts

 a
n

d
 m

e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
m

o
d

e
l 
to

 q
u

o
te

 t
h

a
n

 ‘
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 r
e

tu
rn

 f
o

r 
re

c
e

iv
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

L
C

C
’ 
(1

) 

 
N

o
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 (

1
) 

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

o
u

n
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
to

c
o

l,
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 p
re

fe
ra

b
le

 t
o

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 (

2
) 

 
M

a
k
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

y
 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 L

A
 c

a
n

 e
n

fo
rc

e
 s

u
c
h

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 (

3
) 

 
S

h
o

u
ld

 a
 c

e
rt

a
in

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

L
A

 r
e

p
s
 b

e
 i
n

s
is

te
d

 u
p

o
n

?
 (

1
) 

R
ig

h
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 (
6

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
) 

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
te

rm
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

o
r 

re
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
T

ra
d

e
 U

n
io

n
s
 (

4
) 

 

Page 195



A
n

n
e
x
  

th
re

e
 

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
  

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
 -

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 

G
:\

S
E

C
R

E
T

A
R

\E
x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
\2

0
0

8
\A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 P

ro
to

c
o

ls
 A

p
ri

l 
E

x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 (

V
4

).
d

o
c
 

 
N

o
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
’s

 i
n

p
u

t 
in

to
 s

h
a

p
in

g
 a

 n
e

w
 a

c
a

d
e

m
y
  

(1
) 

 
R

ig
h

ts
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 a
ff
e

c
te

d
 a

re
 n

o
t 

m
e

n
ti
o

n
e

d
 (

1
) 

O
th

e
r 

is
s

u
e

s
 (

1
7

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
) 

 
H

o
lid

a
y
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
y
n

c
h

ro
n

is
e

d
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

L
e

e
d

s
 s

c
h

o
o
ls

 (
1

) 
 

 
S

e
p

a
ra

te
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

tt
e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 (
1

) 

 
Is

 D
Y

C
A

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 s

ig
n

 u
p

?
 (

1
) 

 

 
O

p
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 i
n

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
 (

4
) 

 
C

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
to

c
o

l 
d

o
e

s
n

’t
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

te
a

c
h

in
g
 o

f 
s
u

b
je

c
ts

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
  
c
re

a
ti
o

n
is

m
 (

1
) 

 
N

o
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
e

tt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s
p
o

n
s
o

rs
 (

1
) 

 
R

e
q

u
e

s
t 

c
o
p

ie
s
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 I

n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

L
e

e
d

s
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
o

lic
y
, 

In
 Y

e
a

r 
F

a
ir

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 P

ro
to

c
o

l 
to

 m
a

k
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 (

1
) 

In
c
lu

d
e

 a
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 t
o

 h
o
w

 t
h

e
 L

A
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 A

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 

a
b
s
e

n
c
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
e

g
a

l 
ro

le
s
 /

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 r
o

le
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
/m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
) 

(1
)

In
c
lu

d
e

 s
o

m
e

th
in

g
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 L

A
 o

v
e

rs
e

e
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
(e

.g
 L

A
C

, 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 e
tc

),
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

a
ta

 
s
h

a
ri

n
g

 p
ro

to
c
o

ls
 (

1
)

It
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 c
le

a
r 

th
a

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

c
a
d

e
m

y
 s

ta
tu

s
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

im
p

ly
 f

a
ilu

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 s

c
h

o
o

l,
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 s

te
p

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l’s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 (

1
)

T
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 s
p

o
n

s
o

r 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

le
a

rl
y
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

e
d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
te

x
t.

 (
1

)

 
S

p
o

n
s
o

rs
 c

a
n

 o
n

ly
 s

ig
n

 u
p

 t
o

 a
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

le
a

rn
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
it
y
 i
f 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

e
n

 i
t.

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
e

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
le

a
rn

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
, 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 i
t 

w
id

e
ly

. 
T

h
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 c
o

lle
g
e

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
. 

(1
) 

A
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
m

a
jo

r 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

L
e

e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 f
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
p

o
s
t 

1
6

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 i
s
 n

e
e

d
e
d

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 ‘
to

p
 s

lic
e

’ 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
p

o
s
t 

1
6

 l
e
a

rn
in

g
 a

t 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
. 

C
a

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 w

h
e

n
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 p

o
s
t 

1
6

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 f
o

r
a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 a
s
 w

e
 m

o
v
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 W
h

it
e

 P
a

p
e

r 
“R

a
is

in
g

E
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
”.

 (
1

)
T

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 n

e
e

d
s
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
, 

a
n

d
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 f
o
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

g
re

e
d

. 
(1

)
F

a
c

tu
a

l 
C

o
rr

e
c

ti
o

n
s

 (
1

 c
o

m
m

e
n

t)
 

 
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e

 1
7

 d
ip

lo
m

a
s
 n

o
t 

1
4

 (
1

) 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
c

e
s

s
 (

5
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

) 

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 t
o

o
 s

h
o

rt
 (

1
) 

 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
is

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

, 
it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

c
e

d
e

d
 b

y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

o
u

tl
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 w

id
e

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
 

in
 L

e
e

d
s
, 

a
n
d

 w
e

 a
re

 u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
th

is
 (

1
) 

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 i
n

 u
tt

e
rl

y
 s

h
a

m
b

o
lic

 w
a

y
, 

a
n

d
 t

im
in

g
 n

o
th

in
g

 s
h

o
rt

 o
f 

b
iz

a
rr

e
 (

1
) 

 
D

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 s
e

c
re

ti
v
e

 m
a

n
n

e
r,

 a
n

d
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
a

 c
it
y
 w

id
e

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
s
e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
, 

s
h

o
u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 f

ir
s
t.

 T
h

is
 u

n
d

e
rm

in
e

s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
e

d
 u

p
o

n
. 

(1
) 

 
C

a
n

n
o

t 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 d

e
la

y
 i
n

 s
e

n
d

in
g
 o

u
t 

th
e

 p
a

p
e

r 
(1

) 

Page 196



A
n

n
e
x
  

th
re

e
 

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
  

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
 -

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 

G
:\

S
E

C
R

E
T

A
R

\E
x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
\2

0
0

8
\A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 P

ro
to

c
o

ls
 A

p
ri

l 
E

x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 (

V
4

).
d

o
c
 

D
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 

D
a

te
 

M
e

th
o

d
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
t 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

1
7

/0
3

/0
8

 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
 

L
a

b
o

u
r 

G
ro

u
p

 
(C

llr
 M

u
lh

e
ri

n
) 

 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
is

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

, 
it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

c
e

d
e

d
 b

y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

o
u

tl
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 w

id
e

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
e

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 L
e
e

d
s
, 

a
n

d
 w

e
 a

re
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
th

is
. 

 

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 i
n

 a
n

 u
tt

e
rl

y
 s

h
a

m
b

o
lic

 w
a

y
, 

a
n

d
 t

im
in

g
 n

o
th

in
g

 s
h

o
rt

 o
f 

b
iz

a
rr

e
 

 
D

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 s
e

c
re

ti
v
e

 m
a

n
n

e
r,

 a
n

d
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
c
it
y
 w

id
e

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
, 
s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 f

ir
s
t.

 T
h

is
 u

n
d
e

rm
in

e
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e
d

 u
p

o
n

. 

 
C

a
n

n
o

t 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 d

e
la

y
 i
n

 s
e

n
d

in
g
 o

u
t 

th
e

 p
a

p
e

r 

2
9

/0
2

/0
8

 
L

e
tt

e
r 

A
lle

rt
o

n
 H

ig
h

 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
o

rs

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 1

,2
,4

,5
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
. 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

. 
A

ll 
s
c
h

o
o
ls

 m
u

s
t 

a
c
c
e

p
t 

p
u

p
ils

 e
x
c
lu

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

 
O

th
e

r 
- 

T
e

rm
 a

n
d

 h
a

lf
 t

e
rm

 d
a

te
s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e

 i
n

 k
e
e

p
in

g
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

L
e

e
d

s
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 p
re

s
s
u
re

 
o

n
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 o
n

 o
th

e
r 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

. 

?
 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
 

In
ta

k
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
C

o
u

n
c
il

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
1

, 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
, 

fe
lt
 t

o
 b

e
 k

e
y
 –

 g
o

o
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

fo
r 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
  

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

–
 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 /
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

re
 k

e
y
, 

a
s
 e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

’s
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n

t 

 
T

h
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

 r
u
n

n
in

g
 o

f 
a

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
s
c
h

o
o

l,
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
n

 A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 a

t 
In

ta
k
e

: 
  

  
  

G
e

tt
in

g
 m

o
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

to
 s

c
h

o
o
l 

  
  

  
C

h
ild

re
n
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
  

  
  

T
h

in
k
in

g
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

v
e

ry
 l
e

a
rn

e
r 

  
  

  
L

e
s
s
o

n
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 a
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

le
s
s
o

n
s
 

  
  

  
N

o
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

t 
a

 w
e
e

k
e

n
d

 f
o

r 
e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 
  

  
  

A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

th
e

 o
th

e
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

  
  

  
N

o
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 b

y
 a

p
ti
tu

d
e

 i
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 A

rt
s
 

  
  

  
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
io

n
 f

o
r 

1
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
tr

y
 

  
  

  
O

th
e

r 
lo

c
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

  
  

  
T

h
e

re
fo

re
 s

e
le

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 a

p
ti
tu

d
e

 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t,

 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
m

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o
l 

1
8

/0
3

/0
8

 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
 

T
ra

d
e

 U
n

io
n

s
 

L
ia

is
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
  

 
T

h
e

 u
n

io
n

s
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 r

e
m

a
in

 p
h

ilo
s
o

p
h

ic
a

lly
 o

p
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 a

n
y
 A

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
. 

A
n

y
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 m
a

d
e

 d
o

 
n

o
t 

im
p

ly
 a

n
y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

is
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
te

rm
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

o
r 

re
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
T

ra
d

e
 U

n
io

n
s
 

 
M

a
k
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

y
 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 L

A
 c

a
n

 e
n

fo
rc

e
 s

u
c
h

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 

 
M

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
rm

s
 a

re
 t

o
o

 v
a

g
u

e
 e

.g
. 

‘c
le

a
r 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

t’
, 

‘it
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
’,
 ‘
it
 i
s
 s

u
g

g
e

s
te

d
 t

h
a

t’
 

 
T

h
e

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
e

n
fo

rc
e
a

b
le

 c
la

u
s
e

s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p
a

ti
b

le
 w

it
h

 A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 s

ta
tu

s
 

2
5

/0
2

/0
8

 
e

-m
a

il 
S

te
p

h
e

n
 

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 t
o

o
 s

h
o

rt
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
h

 a
n

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

m
a

tt
e

r,
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e

 a
llo

w
e

d
 f

o
r 

fu
ll 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 c

y
c
le

 

Page 197



A
n

n
e
x
  

th
re

e
 

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
  

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
 -

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 

G
:\

S
E

C
R

E
T

A
R

\E
x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
\2

0
0

8
\A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 P

ro
to

c
o

ls
 A

p
ri

l 
E

x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 (

V
4

).
d

o
c
 

R
e

n
n

ie
,

G
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
F

o
ru

m

1
1

/0
3

/0
8

 
e

-m
a

il 
A

n
d

re
a

 
C

o
w

a
n

s
, 

 E
L

 
1

4
-1

9
 P

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r

 
F

a
c
tu

a
l 
e

rr
o
r/

u
p

d
a

te
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o

w
 1

7
 d

ip
lo

m
a

s
 m

a
k
in

g
 u

p
 t

h
e

 e
n

ti
tl
e

m
e

n
t 

b
y
 2

0
1

3
, 

n
o

t 
1

4
 

1
2

/0
3

/0
8

 
e

-m
a

il 
G

a
ry

 N
ix

o
n

, 
E

L
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

 -
 S

E
N

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
v
e

rl
o

o
k
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 L

A
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 h

a
s
 n

o
 p

o
w

e
rs

 t
o

 d
ir

e
c
t 

th
e
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
S

E
N

 c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

to
 a

n
 a

c
a

d
e

m
y
 i
f 

it
 s

a
y
s
 n

o
. 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 i
m

p
lic

it
 i
n

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

.1
, 

b
u

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

le
a

re
r.

 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

, 
a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 –

 A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
S

E
N

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 
a

v
o

id
 u

n
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 a

n
d

 e
s
c
a

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 S

O
S

 D
C

S
F

 t
o

 d
ir

e
c
t 

a
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t.

".
 

0
3

/0
3

/0
8

 
e

-m
a

il 
D

a
v
e

 
M

a
s
te

rm
a

n
,

C
h

a
ir

 o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
,

S
L
H

S

 
A

tt
a

c
h

m
e

n
t 

n
o

t 
re

a
d

a
b

le
, 

b
u

t 
s
u

m
m

a
ry

 p
a

ra
p

h
ra

s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 m
e

m
o

ry
 b

y
 H

T
: 

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

to
c
o

ls
 a

re
  

g
o

o
d

, 
b

u
t 

c
o

u
ld

 g
o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r.
 

 
It

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 c

le
a

r 
th

a
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

c
a
d

e
m

y
 s

ta
tu

s
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

im
p

ly
 f

a
ilu

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 

s
c
h

o
o

l,
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 s

te
p

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l’s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
. 

 
T

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
o

n
s
o

r 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

le
a

rl
y
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
te

x
t.

 

0
6

/0
3

/0
8

 
e

-m
a

il 
S

a
ra

h
 S

te
e

l,
 

C
h

a
ir

 o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
,

R
o

b
in

 H
o

o
d

 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

.1
 –

 i
t 

is
 v

it
a

l 
th

a
t 

“t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 A

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 m

u
s
t 

in
v
o

lv
e

 
lo

c
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 j
u

s
t 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
” 

0
6

/0
3

/0
8

 
e

-m
a

il 
V

iv
 B

u
c
k
la

n
d

, 
E

L
 A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

T
e

a
m

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

 –
 T

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

t 
a

ro
u

n
d

 a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 h
o

n
o

u
r 

th
e

 ‘
n

e
a

re
s
t’
 

c
ri

te
ri

a
 w

it
h

in
 w

h
ic

h
e

v
e

r 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 p

o
lic

y
 t

h
e

y
 a

d
o

p
t 

0
3

/0
3

/0
8

 
e

-m
a

il 
J
a

n
e

 H
a

ll,
 E

L
 

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

S
e

p
a

ra
te

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

tt
e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 n
e

e
d

e
d

. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 P

ri
n

c
ip

a
l's

 H
a

n
d

b
o

o
k
 o

n
 t
h

e
 D

C
S

F
 

w
e

b
s
it
e

 (
J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
0

7
) 

w
w

w
.s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
.d

fe
s
.g

o
v
.u

k
/a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
. 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

tw
o

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

a
re

:

In
c
lu

d
e

 a
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 t
o

 h
o
w

 t
h

e
 L

A
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 A

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

p
e

rs
is

te
n

t 
a
b

s
e

n
c
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
e

g
a

l 
ro

le
s
 /

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 r
o

le
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
/m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
)

In
c
lu

d
e

 a
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 t
o

 h
o
w

 t
h

e
 L

A
 o

v
e

rs
e

e
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
(e

.g
 

L
A

C
, 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 e

tc
),

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

a
ta

 s
h

a
ri

n
g

 p
ro

to
c
o

ls
.

Page 198



A
n

n
e
x
  

th
re

e
 

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
  

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
 -

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 

G
:\

S
E

C
R

E
T

A
R

\E
x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
\2

0
0

8
\A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 P

ro
to

c
o

ls
 A

p
ri

l 
E

x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 (

V
4

).
d

o
c
 

2
8

/0
2

/0
8

 
e

-m
a

il 
C

llr
 M

a
tt

h
e

w
 

L
o

b
le

y
 

In
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

 
N

o
t 

c
le

a
r 

a
b
o

u
t 

in
 y

e
a

r 
fa

ir
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
s
o

 u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t.

 

2
8

/0
2

/0
8

 
e

-m
a

il 
M

a
lc

o
lm

 
L

e
a

ro
y
d

, 
E

L
 

S
c
h

o
o

l
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

 
H

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 A

c
a

d
e
m

y
 b

e
e

n
 a

s
k
e

d
 t

o
 s

ig
n

 u
p

, 
o

r 
a

re
 t

h
e

re
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 a

s
k
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 d

o
 s

o
?

 

2
6

/0
2

/0
8

 
e

-m
a

il 
C

llr
 R

ic
h

a
rd

 
B

re
tt

 
S

h
o

u
ld

 a
 c

e
rt

a
in

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

L
A

 r
e

p
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

y
 b

e
 i
n

s
is

te
d

 o
n

?
 

1
1

/0
3

/0
8

 
e

-m
a

il 
Ia

n
 G

a
rf

o
rt

h
, 

G
o

v
e

rn
o

r 
a

n
d

 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
F

o
ru

m

 
T

h
e

 p
h

ra
s
e

 l
e

g
a

lly
 a

b
id

e
 i
s
 t

o
o

 v
a

g
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s
 c

la
ri

fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 

 
T

ru
s
ts

 a
n

d
 m

e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
m

o
d

e
l 
to

 q
u

o
te

 t
h

a
n

 ‘
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 r
e

tu
rn

 f
o

r 
re

c
e

iv
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 
L

C
C

’ 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

.1
 –

 w
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
o

 v
a

g
u

e
 –

 L
o

c
a

lit
y
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
fi
n
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

p
o

lic
y

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 2

 –
 w

h
ic

h
 e

n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n

t 
–

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 o
n

e
?

 
 

 
 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

.1
 –

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
p
e

o
p

le
 –

 l
o

c
a
lit

y
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

. 
A

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 s

e
t 

a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 c

o
m

p
a

ti
b

le
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 L

A
 .

 
 

 
 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

.1
 –

 W
h

o
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 t

h
e

 I
n

 y
e

a
r 

F
a

ir
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 P

ro
to

c
o

l?
 G

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
 F

o
ru

m
 /

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
G

B
’s

 
h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 t

h
is

 
 

 
 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

.1
 –

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
rs

 o
v
e

r 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 –

 W
h

a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 L

A
’s

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ty

 i
n

 t
h

is
 c

o
n

te
x
t,
 

a
n

d
 d

o
e

s
 i
t 
o

v
e

rr
id

e
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
a
n

 A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 G

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 B

o
d

y
?

 

 
 

 
 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 4

.1
 –

 T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 r
e
fe

r 
to

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 a
n

y
 f

u
tu

re
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
o

lic
y
 o

n
 p

o
s
t 

1
6

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 
 

 
 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 4

.2
 –

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
lo

c
a

lit
y
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 

 
 

 
 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 5

.1
 –

 C
la

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

p
h

ra
s
e

 “
le

a
rn

in
g

 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

” 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

 
 

 
 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 5

.1
 -

 C
la

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

p
h

ra
s
e

 “
c
o

n
n

e
c
t 

a
n
y
 n

e
w

 a
c
a

d
e

m
y
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
” 

  
 

 
 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 5

.1
 -

 N
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 s
e

n
te

n
c
e

 w
h

ic
h

 s
ta

te
s
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

t 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 (

n
o

t 
P

a
re

n
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
ti
e

rs
) 

fo
r 

lo
c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 r

e
p

s
  

- 
a

g
a

in
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 

w
h

a
t 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
s
 a

n
d

 w
a

n
ts

 

1
9

/0
3

/0
8

 
L

e
tt

e
r 

N
A

S
U

W
T

 
 

N
A

S
U

W
T

 i
s
 o

p
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 A

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 i
n

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
 

 
 

 
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 e
n

fo
rc

e
a

b
le

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
ic

 n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 i
s
 e

n
s
h

ri
n
e

d
 i
n

 s
ta

tu
te

 
a

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 b
e

 u
p

h
e

ld
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
 

 
 

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

 T
ra

d
e

 U
n

io
n

s
, 
o

r 
o

f 
u

p
h

o
ld

in
g

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
p

a
y
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

Page 199



A
n

n
e
x
  

th
re

e
 

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
  

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
 -

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 

G
:\

S
E

C
R

E
T

A
R

\E
x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
\2

0
0

8
\A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 P

ro
to

c
o

ls
 A

p
ri

l 
E

x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 (

V
4

).
d

o
c
 

1
8

/0
3

/0
8

 
L

e
tt

e
r 

N
U

S
 

 
N

U
S

 i
s
 o

p
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 a

c
a
d

e
m

ie
s
 i
n

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
 

 
N

o
t 

le
g

a
lly

 e
n

fo
rc

e
a

b
le

 

 
W

o
rd

in
g

 i
s
 t
o

o
 v

a
g

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 m
e

a
n

in
g

fu
l 

 
R

ig
h

ts
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 a
ff
e

c
te

d
 a

re
 n

o
t 

m
e

n
ti
o

n
e

d
 

 
T

h
e

 p
re

s
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

2
 L

A
 g

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

 
T

h
e

 w
o

rd
in

g
 s

u
g

g
e

s
te

d
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
m

fo
rt

a
b

ly
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
Y

C
A

 a
n

d
 t

h
u

s
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 

m
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

is
s
u

e
s
 

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

o
u

n
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
to

c
o

l,
 a

n
d

 w
e

 w
o

u
ld

 u
rg

e
 t

h
e

 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 p

re
s
e

rv
e

 t
h

e
ir

 s
ta

tu
s
 

1
3

/0
3

/0
8

 
L

e
tt

e
r 

E
ile

e
n

 H
a

lla
s
, 

G
o

v
e

rn
o

r 
a

t 
W

in
d

m
ill

 a
n
d

 
C

la
p

g
a

te
P

ri
m

a
ri

e
s
, 

&
 

g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
fo

ru
m

 m
e

m
b
e
r 

 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
p

p
o

in
ti
n

g
 2

 g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 a

s
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 L

A
 g

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
 o

n
 

a
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

y
 

1
9

/0
3

/0
8

 
L

e
tt

e
r 

G
M

B
 

 
O

p
p

o
s
e

d
 i
n

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
 t

o
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 

 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 e

n
fo

rc
e

a
b

le
 g

iv
e

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
le

g
is

la
ti
v
e

 p
o

w
e

rs
 o

f 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 

 
C

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
to

c
o

l 
d

o
e

s
n

’t
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

te
a

c
h

in
g
 o

f 
s
u

b
je

c
ts

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
  

c
re

a
ti
o

n
is

m
 

 
N

o
te

 t
h

e
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

p
a
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
, 

ri
g

h
t 

o
f 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

lle
c
ti
v
e

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 

 
N

o
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
e

tt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s
p
o

n
s
o

rs
 

 
N

o
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
’s

 i
n

p
u

t 
in

to
 s

h
a

p
in

g
 a

 n
e

w
 a

c
a

d
e

m
y
 

 
N

o
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

 
T

o
o

 v
a

g
u

e
 

 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

o
u

n
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
ro

to
c
o

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
. 

 
U

rg
e

 L
C

C
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

2
0

/0
3

/0
8

 
e

m
a

il 
A

T
L

 
 

T
e

rm
s
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 a
re

 t
h

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
w

h
a

te
v
e

r 
th

e
ir

 s
ta

tu
s
 

 
T

h
e

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
tw

o
 g

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
 n

o
m

in
a

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 L
A

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 b

in
d

in
g

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 p

a
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
. 

 
O

n
c
e

 a
n

 a
c
a

d
e

m
y
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 l
e

g
a

l 
s
ta

n
d

in
g

 

Page 200



A
n

n
e
x
  

th
re

e
 

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
  

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
 -

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 

G
:\

S
E

C
R

E
T

A
R

\E
x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
\2

0
0

8
\A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 P

ro
to

c
o

ls
 A

p
ri

l 
E

x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 (

V
4

).
d

o
c
 

 
P

ro
to

c
o

l 
3

.1
 s

e
e

k
s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
h

ig
h

e
r 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 r

a
te

s
 a

t 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

p
la

c
in

g
 e

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 p

u
p

ils
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

e
n

fo
rc

e
a
b

le
 

1
1

/0
3

/0
8

 
le

tt
e

r 
L

e
e

d
s
 C

h
a

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

e
 

 
R

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 a

 c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 l
e

g
a

l 
s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

.3
 R

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 f
o

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
. 

A
re

 a
ll 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 g

o
o

d
, 

h
o

w
 w

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

y
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

, 
a

n
d
 h

o
w

 w
o

u
ld

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 j
o

in
 t

h
e

m
?

 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

 W
h

o
 a

re
 t

h
e

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
p

a
rt

 f
ro

m
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 c
o

lle
g

e
s
?
 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

 W
h

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 b

e
 a

v
o

id
e

d
 i
f 

th
e

re
 a

re
 p

u
p

ils
 w

h
o

s
e

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

p
u

ts
 o

th
e

r 
p

u
p

ils
 

a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 a
t 

ri
s
k
?

 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 5

.1
 H

o
w

 w
o

u
ld

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 b

e
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

y
 

w
it
h

 a
 b

a
la

n
c
e

d
 s

k
ill

 s
e

t?
 

 
R

e
q

u
e

s
t 

c
o
p

ie
s
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 I

n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

L
e

e
d

s
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
o

lic
y
, 

In
 Y

e
a

r 
F

a
ir

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 P

ro
to

c
o

l 
to

 m
a

k
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
. 

2
5

/0
3

/0
8

 
e

m
a

il 
A

n
n

 N
ic

h
o

ll 
 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

.1
 /
 1

.2
 I

t 
is

 s
e

lf
 e

v
id

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

a
n

y
 n

e
w

 a
c
a

d
e

m
y
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 c
le

a
r 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

.3
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 f
u

lly
 r

e
a

lis
e

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

in
g

 t
h

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 t
o

 
p

u
rs

u
e

 n
e

w
 m

o
d

e
ls

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 k

e
y
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

s
 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 2

.1
 T

h
e

 p
re

s
e

n
t 
a

c
a

d
e

m
y
 o

ff
e

rs
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 1

4
-1

9
 c

u
rr

ic
u

lu
m

 a
n

d
 i
s
 d

o
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 

b
y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 n

o
t 

b
o

u
n

d
 b

y
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

.1
 F

o
rm

a
l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 r

is
k
 t

h
e

 e
th

o
s
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 a

re
 t

ry
in

g
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 u
p

 i
n
 

th
e

ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

P
e

rh
a

p
s
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
e
x
c
lu

d
e

d
 p

u
p

ils
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 m

o
re

 
c
re

a
ti
v
e

ly
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 p

a
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 s
c
h

o
o

l 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 4

.1
 C

u
rr

ic
u

lu
m

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 m
u

s
t 

b
e

 l
e

ft
 t

o
 t
h

e
 d

is
c
re

ti
o
n

 o
f 

e
a

c
h

 a
c
a

d
e

m
y
 b

u
t 

it
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

u
s
e

fu
l 
to

 e
n
s
u

re
 a

 f
a

ir
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 1

4
-1

9
 v

o
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

ip
lo

m
a

s
 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 5

.1
 T

h
e

 t
w

o
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 a

 r
ig

h
t,

 b
u

t 
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 a

s
 a

 m
a

tt
e

r 
o

f 
d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
 f
o
r 

th
e

 n
e

w
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

y
 

 
It

 i
s
 m

y
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t
h

a
t 

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o

m
p

u
ls

o
ry

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 t

o
 s

ig
n

 u
p

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
a

s
 

s
ta

te
d

, 
th

a
t 

th
is

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 s
p

o
n
s
o

ri
n

g
 b

o
d

ie
s
. 

4
/4

/0
8

 
e

m
a

il 
C

h
ri

s
ti
n

a
 

G
e

o
rg

e
, 

L
S

C
 

 
S

p
o

n
s
o

rs
 c

a
n

 o
n

ly
 s

ig
n

 u
p

 t
o

 a
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

le
a

rn
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
it
y
 i
f 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

e
n

 i
t.

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
e

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
le

a
rn

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
, 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 i
t 

w
id

e
ly

. 
T

h
is

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

lle
g

e
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
. 

 
T

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 n

e
e

d
s
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
, 

a
n

d
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 f
o
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

g
re

e
d

. 

 
A

c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
m

a
jo

r 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

L
e

e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 
fo

r 
o

th
e

r 
p

o
s
t 

1
6

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 i
s
 n

e
e

d
e
d

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 ‘
to

p
 s

lic
e
’ 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
p

o
s
t 

1
6
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
t 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
. 
C

a
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 w
h

e
n

 a
g

re
e

in
g

 p
o

s
t 

1
6

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 f
o

r 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 

Page 201



A
n

n
e
x
  

th
re

e
 

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
  

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
 -

  
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 

G
:\

S
E

C
R

E
T

A
R

\E
x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
\2

0
0

8
\A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 P

ro
to

c
o

ls
 A

p
ri

l 
E

x
e

c
 B

o
a

rd
 (

V
4

).
d

o
c
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

s
 w

e
 m

o
v
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 W

h
it
e

 P
a

p
e

r 
“R

a
is

in
g

 E
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
”.

 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

.3
 S

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
 t

h
e

 w
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 “
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

, 
w

it
h

 c
o

lle
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
re

 e
s
s
e

n
ti
a
l!
” 

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 2

. 
W

h
y
 w

o
u

ld
 a

n
 a

c
a

d
e

m
y
 n

o
t 

a
d

o
p

t 
th

e
 L

e
e

d
s
 L

e
a
n

e
r 

E
n

ti
tl
e

m
e

n
t,

 s
in

c
e

 i
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 g

o
o

d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
a

ll 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 a
re

 m
e

t.
 

Page 202



Annex  four 

Academy  Protocol  -  Content  of  a  Memorandum  of  Understanding 

G:\SECRETAR\Exec Board Reports\2008\Academy Protocols April Exec Board (V4).doc 

As a result of the analysis outlined in section 3 of this report Education Leeds and Legal Services 
will, subject to the agreement of Executive Board, now develop memorandum of understanding to 
be agreed by the prospective sponsor of a new academy in Leeds that will ensure that: 

 parents of young people attending the academy will be represented upon the academy 
governing body; 

 every proposal to establish an academy in Leeds will identify how the views of young people 
attending the academy will inform the development of the academy; 

 sponsors agree to recognise for collective bargaining purposes those trades unions 
recognised by Leeds City Council; 

 the new academy will become an active contributor to school improvement and curriculum 
delivery partnerships within Leeds; 

 consideration is given to reflecting within proposals to establish an academy in Leeds any 
agreed Leeds Learning Entitlement; 

 admissions arrangements will be developed in consultation with both the local authority and 
with other schools; 

 the Leeds admissions policy of “Local Schools for Local Children” informs the development 
of the admissions policy and that therefore “nearest school” will be the key factor in 
determining admission to the academy; 

 young people with identified SEN will be admitted as a clearly identified priority group; 

 from its opening the academy will work actively with other local providers in the city to avoid 
any exclusions and to make suitable and appropriate provision for all children irrespective of 
their individual needs; 

 from its opening the academy will take its share of excluded pupils from other Leeds schools 
and accept in year transfers according to the Leeds fair access policy; 

 the academy will contribute to the implementation and development of a Leeds post 14 
curriculum framework; 

 the academy develops its post 14 curriculum offer using 
o the Leeds on-line Area Prospectus that is now available; 
o a Common Application System for Post 16; 
o appropriately quality assured 14-16 vocational learning providers; 
o the cross sector city-wide e-learning strategy; 

 it  must be an active contributor to the planning and quality assurance of post 14 provision; 

 City Council will nominate two governors to the governing body, one representing the 
locality and one representing the administration; 

 Both attendance support from the LA and information/data sharing protocols will need to be 
included in any future Academy agreements to enable early intervention and support for 
Persistent Absence pupils and vulnerable pupils, including Safeguarding. 

 very careful consideration is given to the impact of the academy establishing school holiday 
arrangements that were significantly out of step with neighbouring schools and specifically 
with the academy’s partner primary schools. 

Page 203



Page 204

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF EDUCATION LEEDS 

EXECUTIVE BOARD:  16 April  2008 

SUBJECT: Consideration of an expression of interest to establish an academy to 
serve the Bramley Area

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to progress an expression of 
interest into a detailed feasibility and consultation process that will allow a full 
examination of the issues surrounding the establishment of an academy to 
serve the Bramley area in inner West Leeds. 

2.0 BACKGROUND  

2.1

2.2

2.3

At its meeting on 17 October 2007, the Executive Board authorised Education 
Leeds to begin discussions with the Department of Children’s Schools and 
Families (DCSF) and the charitable foundation Edutrust to explore the potential 
of Edutrust sponsoring an academy to replace Intake High School and serve 
the Bramley area of inner West Leeds 

The expression of interest has now formally been received from the DCSF with 
Edutrust as a prime sponsor,  and including potential support from both of the 
universities in Leeds.

Education Leeds has formally assessed the expression of interest and judges 
that there is sufficient merit in the proposal to undertake further detailed 
consideration through a comprehensive feasibility and consultation process.  
This report outlines the basis for this judgement. 

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Members are asked to: 
i) approve moving to a detailed feasibility and consultation process that 

will allow a full examination of the issues surrounding the establishment 
of an academy to serve the Bramley area in inner West Leeds. 

ii) note that a further report will be presented in Autumn 2008 that will 
explain the outcome of this feasibility and consultation process and 
enable Members to come to a final decision on the value of establishing 
an academy to replace Intake High School and serve the Bramley area 
in inner West Leeds. 

Agenda Item:

Originator: Pat Toner 

Telephone:  0113-247 5613

Agenda Item 15

Page 205



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF EDUCATION LEEDS 

EXECUTIVE BOARD: 16 April 2008

SUBJECT: Consideration of an expression of interest to establish an
Academy to Serve the Bramley Area

Electoral Wards Affected: 

Bramley and Stanningley Ward 

Ward Members consulted 
  (referred to in report) 

Specific Implications For: 

Equality & Diversity 

Community Cohesion 

Narrowing the Gap 

 Eligible for Call-in                       Not Eligible for Call-in   
        (Details contained in the Report)      

1.0 PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to progress an expression of interest 
into a detailed feasibility and consultation process that will allow a full examination of 
the issues surrounding the establishment of an academy to serve the Bramley area 
in inner West Leeds. 

2.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2.1

2.2

At its meeting on 17 October 2007, the Executive Board authorised Education Leeds 
to begin discussions with the Department of Children’s Schools and Families 
(DCSF) and the charitable foundation Edutrust to explore the potential of Edutrust 
sponsoring an academy to replace Intake High School and serve the Bramley area 
of inner West Leeds. 

Increasingly the role of the Local Authority is changing from ‘provider’ of services 
and schools to the ‘commissioner’ of provision to serve local communities: 
Academies are independent schools whose success critically depends on the 
absolute responsibility given to their sponsors, their governing bodies and their 

Agenda Item:

Originator: Pat Toner 

Telephone: 0113-247-5613

Page 206



2.3

2.4

principals.  However, most Academies are jointly commissioned by the DCSF and 
the Local Authority on a partnership basis.  They are established through an 
agreement between the DCSF, the Local Authority and the sponsor.  The basis of 
this agreement, or protocol, is detailed in a separate report to the Executive Board 
and was shared with, and accepted by, the DCSF and sponsors as they considered 
the contribution they might make to improving the outcomes for young people in the 
Bramley area. 

An expression of interest has now formally been received from the DCSF with 
Edutrust as the prime sponsor and identifying support from both of Leeds 
universities as active potential partners within the academy.  Intake school’s 
governing body has been actively included alongside the DCSF and Edutrust in 
developing this Expression of Interest. 

Education Leeds has formally assessed the expression of interest and judges that 
there is sufficient merit in the proposal to undertake further detailed consideration 
through a comprehensive feasibility and consultation process.  This report outlines 
the basis for this judgement.  

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.2.1

MAIN ISSUES 

When considering this expression of interest Education Leeds considered three 
things. Firstly, the potential of academy status to provide additional support or 
benefit to enhance young people’s outcomes that isn’t available through the 
established school improvement partnership arrangements that operate through the 
Leeds School Improvement Policy.  That is, “does the proposal bring potential 
benefits to young people?”  The second consideration was the extent to which 
potential sponsors recognise and value the contribution an academy will make as 
part of the educational community in Leeds.  That is, “does the proposal meet the 
requirements of the Leeds protocols?”  Finally, Education Leeds considered the 
extent to which the expression of interest committed the Council irreversibly to a 
particular decision or course of action.  That is, “if an alternative proposal emerges 
as the best solution for the Bramley area can it still be developed?”  These three 
questions are each addressed in turn below. 

Does the proposal bring potential benefits to young people? 

Intake High school is located between Rodley and Bramley in West Leeds.  It was 
one of the first specialist colleges and grew rapidly in the 1990s.  It has had a high 
reputation for performance arts and is still excellent in this area at post 16 but has 
suffered from continual poor performance in core subjects.  Intake was visited by 
HMI under the school facing challenging circumstances floor targets initiative and 
placed in special measures in April 2004.  Achievement at 5 and 1A*-G was then the 
lowest in Leeds, and today is still under 80%.  A strong partnership with Otley Prince 
Henry grammar School brought the school out of special measures in January 2006, 
a term ahead of schedule.  A new headteacher began in September 2006 and, while 
improvements are evident in a few areas, overall progress has been limited.  Intake 
has a relatively low number of preferences from parents and pupils choosing a high 
school.  However, it serves a large residential area and is an appropriate size for the 
potential demand.  The school is facing very significant financial pressures resulting 
from the combined impact of a falling role and changes to post 16 funding that is 
limiting the schools capacity and options for accelerating improvements.  The school 
is due for a further inspection soon.  Whether or not the school is endorsed as 
satisfactory by Ofsted, the pace of improvement is insufficient.  In such 
circumstances Education Leeds, on behalf of the Local Authority, is bound by 
regulations to consider the benefits of academy status.  Academy status provides an 
opportunity to build a new vision with a strong partner and to secure the governance 

Page 207



3.2.2

3.2.3

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

3.3.4

3.4

3.4.1

and increase leadership activity to deliver more rapid improvement. 

In addition to the above, this particular expression of interest indicates that the 
DCSF will release sufficient capital to enable a new school to be built to replace the 
existing Intake School.  This is likely to lead to a capital investment in excess of 
£20m, considerably more than was potentially available to refurbish the site as part 
of the BSF programme. 

In summary Education Leeds recognises that, given the school’s present 
circumstances, existing arrangements are not impacting quickly enough.  The school 
has benefited from effective school improvement partnership arrangements in the 
past but needs to identify a suitable partner that will be able to provide close long 
term support to secure and embed improvements for the longer term.  Action needs 
to be taken to change the perception of the school in its community and to provide 
financial assistance.  Developing an academy has the potential to address all these 
issues positively and provide fresh impetus to leadership and governance. 

Does the proposal meet the requirements of the Leeds protocols? 

Edutrust is committed to social responsibility and partnership.  Representatives of 
Edutrust have held an informal meeting with parents and a series of meetings with 
young people and staff.  They have indicated a willingness to recognise relevant 
trades unions as they have done in all the academies they sponsor.  They have also 
indicated their commitment to operate as an active partner with the community of 
schools in Leeds.  Edutrust has been made aware of the need to agree to a 
Memorandum of Understanding and have indicated that they will have no difficulty 
with this in principle.  If we move into a process of feasibility and consultation 
Edutrust will have to formalise their position on this.  

Edutrust have made a clear commitment to apply the admission arrangements that 
already operate across Leeds in addition to abiding by the Admissions Code of 
Practice.  Within the expression of interest Edutrust have made a very strong 
commitment to inclusive practice and to avoiding exclusions. 

Edutrust understand that an academy is unlikely to be successful unless it operates 
as an active member of the wider education and children’s services community.  
This is a strong indication of the academy’s willingness to plan the development of 
curriculum provision in partnership with other schools and other providers. 

A move into feasibility stage will allow Education Leeds to address the make up of 
the academy’s governing body with Edutrust particularly in regard to their willingness 
to have two City Council nominees on the governing body.

If an alternative proposal emerges as the best solution for the Rodley and 
Bramley area, could it still be developed? 

It is only at the end of the feasibility and consultation process that the City Council 
will be required to make binding decisions on the future of Intake School and the 
establishment of an academy to serve the Bramley area.  At this stage the only 
question to be addressed is whether there be value in further detailed work, 
including formal consultation, being undertaken to enable the Council to determine if 
an academy will better serve young people than the present provision made through 
Intake School.  If, as a result of detailed feasibility considerations and the outcome of 
consultations, alternative viable strategies emerge then the Council will be free to 
withdraw from considering an academy and progress the alternative instead.  A 
further report will be available in the Autumn of 2008 that will enable the Council to 
make its final decision on this matter. 

Page 208



3.4.2 Given the above, it is the judgement of Education Leeds at this stage that there are 
potential benefits for young people in the Bramley area and for the City Council to 
continue to explore the potential of establishing an academy to replace the existing 
Intake School. 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR COUNCIL POLICY AND GOVERNANCE 

4.1

4.2

4.3

Key stakeholders including young people, ward councillors, Intake school governors 
and staff have already been engaged in developing the attached expression of 
interest.  The relevant neighbouring authority, Bradford, and the LSC have both 
indicated that they are willing to support this proposal in principle at this stage.  In a 
further report to be presented in Autumn 2008 formal community consultation and 
formal consultation with all stakeholders including recognised trades unions will have 
to take place and the outcomes analysed and addressed. 

The issues addressed in this report will impact on the ‘Narrowing the Gap’ and 
‘Going up a League’ agendas.  Academies in Leeds have the potential to contribute 
to the ambitious targets to meet key priorities within the Children and Young 
People’s Plan and the work on the Local Area Agreement. 

The development of new models of provision, such as Academies, will have 
significant implications for Council policy and governance which will be addressed in 
any proposals that are developed for further consideration by Executive Board. 

5.0 LEGAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The funding of secondary and post-16 provision in Leeds is a significant part of the 
Children’s Services overall budget and part of the Learning and Skills Council 
budget.  The establishment of an Academy in Leeds has the potential to have major 
financial implications for Leeds City Council as it increasingly takes total 
responsibility for all 14 – 19 provision here in Leeds.  A detailed financial plan will be 
developed alongside any specific proposal that is developed for further consideration 
by Executive Board. 

6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

6.1 Members are asked to: 

 approve moving to a detailed feasibility and consultation process that will 
allow a full examination of the issues surrounding the establishment of an 
academy to serve the Bramley area in inner West Leeds. 

 note that a further report will be presented in Autumn 2008 that will explain 
the outcome of this feasibility and consultation process and enable Members 
to come to a final decision on the value of establishing an academy to 
replace Intake High School and serve the Bramley area in inner West Leeds. 

Page 209



Page 210

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date: 16 April 2008 
 
Subject: School Admission Appeals Code 
Appendix 1 is Not for Publication under Access to information procedure Rule 10.4 (5) 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To ask Members whether they wish to consider a challenge to paragraphs within the 

School Admissions Appeals Code which currently limit the ability of elected Members 
to represent or act as witnesses for parents who appear before school admission 
appeals panels. 

 
2. Background Information  
 
2.1 Following a consultation exercise, ,on 17 January 2008, under section 84 of the School 

Standards and Framework Act 1998, the DCSF published the School Admissions 
Appeals Code.  The Code is statutory guidance and imposes mandatory requirements 
with which the authority has to comply, and guidance  with which the authority should 
comply unless it can demonstrate it that it is justified in not doing so.  

 
2.2 The two paragraphs set out below  which relate to the role of elected Members are 

mandatory paragraphs with which the authority must comply.: 
 

Paragraph 2.13 states: 
 

”Parents must be advised that their ‘friend’ or adviser at a hearing cannot be a 
member of the local authority, a member of the admission authority concerned, or a 
local elected politician, as this may lead to a conflict of interests and place undue 
pressure on the panel. Choice Advisers may wish to support parents in preparing for 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator: Nicole Jackson 
 
Tel: x74537 

 

 

 

x  

Agenda Item 16

Page 211



their appeal as part of their role in supporting parents with their secondary school 
choices. Where this is part of their locally agreed role, Choice Advisers may 
accompany parents to the appeal as an adviser but cannot present an appeal on their 
behalf. Where parents intend to be represented or accompanied they should inform the 

clerk in advance of the hearing. Panels must not treat appeals from unrepresented 
parents any differently from appeals from those that have representation.” 

 
Paragraph 2.17 states: 

 
“Members of the local authority must not be invited to attend appeal hearings as 
witnesses. Occasionally parents ask if their child can attend the hearing. As the appeal 
is about refusal of a parent’s statutory right to express a preference for a particular 
school, attendance can be distressing for some children and unless there are 
exceptional reasons children should not be invited to attend.” 

 
2.3 Several elected members have expressed concern at the restrictions contained in 

paragraphs 2.13 and 2.17 which prevent Members from representing parents at school 
admission appeals and from acting as witnesses for parents. Counsel’s advice has 
been sought as to whether it is possible to mount a legal challenge in relation to the 
above paragraphs as the Members concerned consider that the Code prevents them 
from fulfilling their role set out in the Constitution as ward member dealing with 
individual casework and acting as an advocate for constituents in resolving particular 
concerns or grievances. 

 
2.4 Counsel’s advice is set out in the exempt Appendix 1.The Appendix is exempt as in 

officers view  the Appendix contains legal advice the disclosure of which prior to the 
commencement of any legal proceedings  may prejudice the Council in progressing the 
matter and therefore the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

 
2.5 Experience shows that at this authority approximately 4 elected members in the past 

have regularly sought to represent parents. 
 
3.0 Recommendations 
 
3.1 Members are asked to consider whether they wish officers to contact the Secretary of 

State to express Members’ concerns at the relevant paragraphs and to seek an 
amendment to the Code to allow  Members to represent parents and to give evidence 
at appeal hearings. 

 
3.2 Subject to 3.1 above, if such approaches are unsuccessful officers are requested to 

bring a report  to a further meeting of the Executive Board regarding considering   
mounting  a legal challenge.   

 
 

Page 212



Page 213

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (5)

Document is Restricted



Page 214

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Director of City Development 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date: 16th April 2008 
 
Subject: Roundhay Mansion – Progress Update 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report updates Executive Board on the progress made in the marketing of the 
Roundhay Mansion.  This includes the appointment of Christie & Co, as agents, the formal 
marketing of the property and the generation of initial interest.  Officers will seek to turn this 
interest into the submission of formal offers in Spring 2008. 
 
The report also seeks agreement to the evaluation methodology to be used to assess 
prospective bids and proposes a 60%/40% quality/price split to ensure that Council secures 
an operator of the appropriate quality. 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To update Executive Board on the current progress with the letting of the Roundhay 

Mansion as a Restaurant/Function facility and to secure agreement to the evaluation 
methodology to be used to evaluate bids. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Roundhay Mansion is a Grade II Listed building located on the edge of 

Roundhay Park. For many years the building was used by Craven and Gilpin as a 
café/bar/function venue, however, they surrendered their lease in 2003. 

 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator:  Martin Farrington
  

Tel:            2243816 

 

 

 

  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 17

Page 215



2.2  Since that time, significant investment has been made in the external fabric of the 
Mansion and a new the Visitor Centre and Education Centre has also opened. In 
December 2005, the Council’s Executive Board approved an injection of funds into 
the Capital Programme including £407,250 of Heritage Lottery Funding for the 
refurbishment of the Roundhay Mansion and the development of the Visitor and 
Education Centres, at a total cost of £1.9m.  

 
2.3 Following an unsuccessful marketing exercise undertaken in 2006, Executive Board 

on 17 October 2007 agreed to the remarketing of the opportunity on the basis that 
the Council will make a contribution towards the cost of the initial capital fit out 
works. Further to Executive Board’s resolution, officers have considered the most 
appropriate way to remarket the Roundhay Mansion and have concluded that the 
services of a specialist agent is required who is experienced in leasehold disposals 
in the restaurant/function market. In particular, it was considered important to 
appoint an external Agent who specialises in leisure/café/restaurant premises and 
would be able to target the opportunity at suitable likely operators.  

 
3.0 MAIN POINTS 
 
3.1 Further to Executive Board’s resolution in October 2007, Officers have commenced 

a procurement exercise to appoint specialist agents. Through this exercise, Christie 
and Co have been appointed on the basis that they demonstrated a clear 
understanding of the issues facing the Council in marketing and securing an 
acceptable tenant for the Mansion and experience and knowledge of the 
restaurant/function market. 

 
3.2  In terms of the more formal marketing of the property, since their appointment, 

several meetings and discussions with Christie and Co have taken place with 
officers from the Council in order to agree an appropriate procedure and timescales 
for the remarketing of the Mansion. 

 
3.3 Christie and Co immediately commenced informal marketing of the property by 

verbally approaching known contacts in this field and appear to have been having 
some success already. Christie and Co have also sent out an e-mail or ‘eclipse’ to 
all relevant companies and individuals either on their mailing list or who have left 
their details on their website. 

 
3.4 This ‘eclipse’ comprises of a short description of the property, proposed uses and a 

summary of the main terms upon which it is being offered. It is designed to generate 
initial expressions of interest. 

 
3.5 This activity has been followed up by a full and detailed brochure supplied to those 

parties that have shown a serious intention in take their interest further. The 
marketing brochure has been completed and the property released on Christie and 
Co’s website. The details have been e-mailed to approximately 500 corporate 
clients and other agents. 

 
3.6 The Mansion has featured in a half page advertisement in the Estates Gazette on 

23rd February and was listed on caterersearch.com on 18 February. An article, 
approved by the Council’s Press Office, has also appeared in the Yorkshire Post as 
well as one in the Yorkshire Evening Post. 

 
3.7 As a result of the above, further serious interest has been expressed including 

interest from some high profile names and businesses. Christies are continuing to 

Page 216



monitor the interest and report accordingly.  In total more than 200 requests for 
marketing details have been received by Christie and Co. 

 
3.8 Based on the level of interest received, the Council has invited initial offers from 

interested parties.  Once received, the offers will be closely scrutinised and a short-
list compiled from which a select number will be invited to submit more detailed 
proposals for approval. At this point the interested parties will be expected to carry 
out more detailed enquiries and undertake a due diligence exercise. 

 
3.9  In view of the fact that the Council has indicated a willingness to consider making a 

capital investment itself, it is important that any final bids made are based on an 
appropriate degree of due diligence to ensure that they are capable of being 
delivered as submitted and that a preferred bidder does not try to amend their bids 
once the competition has closed. 

 
3.10 In addition, to determine the successful bidder, the Council will need to evaluate 

bids against a pre-agreed methodology. In this regard it is considered important that 
the evaluation criteria that is used places an appropriate emphasis on the quality of 
the operation and should not be solely based on price (level of rent proposed). 

 
3.11 Accordingly, it is proposed that 60% of the evaluation will be based on quality 

criteria with price accounting for the remaining 40%. The 60% of the marks that will 
be weighted to quality will take account of the following elements: 

 

Quality element Sub-criteria Weighting 

Nature of the offer Overall quality of the proposal 
and concept put forward 
 
Extent of the operation and 
proposed hours of business 
 
Suitability of the proposal to the 
heritage context of the 
Roundhay Mansion and its Park 
setting 
 
Suitability in Planning Terms 
 
Unique qualities or added value 
of the proposal 

30% 

Deliverability of the 
proposal 

Financial strength of the bidder. 
 
Proof of funds in place to deliver 
the bid 
 
Robustness of the capital 
expenditure plan 
 
Experience of the bidder in 
delivering similar schemes 
 
Robustness of the business 
proposal put forward 
 
 

25% 

Page 217



Quality Assurance Robustness of the quality 
assurance processes in place 
and/or proposed by the bidder. 
 

5% 

 
 

In addition to the above, it is proposed that bidders are asked to provide a mark-up 
of the Council’s draft lease as part of their best and final offer. On this basis the 
Council will be able to develop a degree of understanding around the extent to 
which it will be able to agree lease terms that will be acceptable to both parties, prior 
to any final decision on a preferred bidder being made.   

 
 
4.0 LEGAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Council has made funds available to contribute to any fit-out costs of the 

Roundhay Mansion should they be required following the conclusion of the bidding 
process. 

  
 
5.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 Members of Executive Board are requested to note the current progress with the 

marketing of the Roundhay Mansion and to approve the evaluation methodology 
proposed for assessing bids as outlined in Section 3 of the report. 

 

 

Page 218


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 ICT "Applications Infrastructure"
	Applications Infrastructure Report App 2 EXEMPT 3rd Apr

	7 Equality and Diversity Scheme 2008-2011
	Equality & Diversity Scheme  - App 1 7April
	Equality & Diversity Scheme  - App 2 7 April

	8 PPP/PFI 6 Monthly Update Report
	PFI update app 2april

	9 Access to Counsel's Opinion
	10 Proposed Assembly of Land at Elland Road, Leeds
	Elland Road Report1 Appendix 3rd April
	Elland Road Report2 EXEMPT 3rd April
	Elland Road Report2 Appendix EXEMPT 3rd April

	11 Safer Leeds Partnership Plan
	Safer Leeds Partnership Plan 7th April (vsn 2)

	12 Council House Building
	13 Strategies to Address Comparative Underachievement in Leeds Schools
	Underachievement 7April

	14 Academy Protocols
	15 Expression of Interest to Establish an Academy to Serve the Bramley Area
	16 School Admission Appeals Code
	School Admission Appeals Code Report App1 27th March EXEMPT

	17 Roundhay Mansion - Progress Update

